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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBERERBREREXBER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BEEE
2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
RMB million RMB million
ARBHET AREBHETT
Gross revenue U= 1,812.7 2,729.1
Revenue W 25 642.0 1,054.1
EBITDA T BT & N 3 58 A A B (1,032.9) (16.4)
EBIT (Loss from operations) =N IRAIRE

(L EE) (1,169.3) (159.7)

Loss attributable to equity shareholders — Zx/A &) i 52 fE (5 &5 18
of the Company (1,279.1) (261.6)
Basic loss per share TR EANEE (55.0) cents 7 (11.3) cents &
At At
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
R-ZE-ZF RNZE—NF
=A=+-A =A=+-H
RMB million RMB million
ARBBET ARBHETT
Net assets of the Group REBEEFE 2,708.7 4,088.2
NAV per ordinary share @ BREBREEFE? 2.28 yuan T 3.44 yuan 7T

Notes: B et -

b EEHER R FATERPZE
FFEEHE SHESWAUAREER K
Mz EERITHRRGEWRAZBEE -

) Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from the (1
sales of goods, concession sales charged to retail customers,
gross rental income and management and administrative
service fee income charged to tenants.

(2) NAV per ordinary share represents the total equity attributable (2)
to equity shareholders of the Company per ordinary share.
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MRRERBAEXREER

KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX BERXKIEE
2020 2019
RMB RMB
—E-EHF —ZET-NF
AR AR TT
Sales per ticket RHEED 1,245 1,250
Annualized area efficiency (per m2) @ FEATFHR(BFEHFAK)@ 21,200 31,600

Notes: Bt e

) Sales per ticket represents gross revenue per total number of (1) REEBEBERSAKERAERZS
transactions of department stores. B

1 ¥

) Annualized area efficiency represents annualized gross revenue (2) FEATFBIEFELBENERINEER
per department store average operating area. HEHKEmE-
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Five Years Summary Financial Information

IFEMNBERBE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 82 —E T F =HA=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi ("RMB"))  (UANEE ([AR%E])Z5)
RESULTS
Fifteen months
ended
31 March
2016
Year ended 31 March RMB'000
BE=A=t+-ALFE Bz
2020 2019 2018 2017 “E-RF
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 =A=+—H
}\Eﬁ%?n ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Revenue hea
- Continuing operations —BEREER 642,012 1,054,065 1,159,060 1,144,753 1,603,739
- Discontinued operations —RIFEEER - - - - -
642,012 1,054,065 1,159,060 1,144,753 1,603,739
(Loss)/profit attributable R FE1
to equity shareholders (&8)/ &
- Continuing operations —BEREER (1,279,095) (261,575) 27,234 (352,337) 22,181
- Discontinued operations —RIFEEE - - - - -
(1,279,095) (261,575) 27,234 (352,337) 22,181
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERAE
As at 31 March
R=ZA=+-8
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—g-®F -T-AF -T\F -FtF T AF
ARBTT ARBTr ARETHT AR%Tr ARETR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 6,669,619 7,199,981 7,279,287 7,104,859 7,238,892
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE 721,565 1,061,670 1,200,911 1,245,330 1,587,518
DEDUCT: i
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEERE 2,645,748 2,040,450 1,932,084 1,769,159 2,634,471
NET CURRENT MEEEFE
LIABILITIES (1,924,183) (978,780) (731,173) (523,829) (1,046,953)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,745,436 6,221,201 6,548,114 6,581,030 6,191,939
DEDUCT: ik
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FrRBat 2,036,718 2,132,976 2,162,515 2,263,725 1,563,530
NET ASSETS EEFH 2,708,718 4,088,225 4,385,599 4,317,305 4,628,409
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020
("the year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Being disrupted by the novel coronavirus COVID-19 epidemic,
China’s gross domestic product (“GDP") at constant prices was
RMB20.6504 trillion in the first quarter of 2020, representing
a decrease of 6.8% over the same period of last year. Among
which, the value-added by primary industries dropped by
9.6% to RMB1,018.6 billion; the value-added by secondary
industries dropped 3.2% to RMB7,363.8 billion; and the value-
added by tertiary industries dropped by 5.2% to RMB12,268
billion. On a quarter-on-quarter basis, the GDP for the first
quarter of 2020 declined by 9.8% quarter-on-quarter after
adjusting for seasonal factors. In the first quarter of 2020, all
the three major demands appeared to be in varying degrees
of decline, thus leading to the negative economic growth.
Of which, the final consumption expenditure drove the
drop of GDP by 4.4 percentage points, while the per capita
consumption expenditure of national residents declined by
12.5% in actual. Despite the great disruption and suppression
on the consumption of residents by the epidemic, the potential
demands of domestic consumption market remain enormous,
with a stable and positive trend. In March, decline of retail
sales of consumer goods narrowed by 4.7 percentage points
as compared to that of January to February, which appears
to be a recovering trend. In this regard, the PRC government
has increased its spending on safeguarding people’s livelihood
including hygiene and health issues, thus pushing forward the
resumption of production among various fields. Such initiatives
have credited with an important role in stabilising domestic
demands and unleashing the potential thereof.

Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

FE®HE

AANBRERUMLCTEREERBERAA
(IRrADEFg ([E5g])  MAZER
ARAREMBAR ([AEE]BEE-F
“EFE-_A=t+-HLEFE([XFE]) 2z

XK EE
ZHABRFSCOVID-19Z EEHE - —F
—ZF—ZFF R EGDPA206,5041E T °
B ERTE L EFRETE6.8% °
Heo % EEEILINME10,186E T NBE
32% B EFIEINET3,638E T N FE
9.6% ; “_F%ﬁMEQZ@Mﬁﬁ‘W¢
52% - IR E Z«éﬁﬁl%ﬂﬁﬂ%
T -TF—Z[ZGDPIRLL TF#9.8% °
—EFE-FE- ﬁﬁxiﬁmfﬁfﬂ%ﬂ;
TR AEEEHRAaER B &K
HESENHGDP I R44E " » B 26
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Under the harsh business conditions, emerging industries have
been vibrant and have fostered a new sustainable growth
momentum, indicating their strong vitality and dynamics. The
performance of emerging service industries, supported by
modern information technology via the Internet, have been
vibrant from January to February. The operating revenue from
the Internet and related services, software and information
technology services increased by 10.1% and 0.7% respectively
over the same period last year. In the first quarter of 2020,
the growth rate of online retail has been accelerating. The
domestic online retail sales of in-kind goods increased by
5.9% over the same period of last year, representing a growth
of 24.9 percentage points over the growth rate of consumer
goods retail sales in the same period of last year. It accounted
for 23.6% of the total retail sales of consumer goods,
representing an increase of 5.4 percentage points over the
same period of last year.

When facing the situation, various commercial enterprises in
Xi'an City were stepping forward in the midst of adversity
in 2019. Some of the enterprises have chosen to cease their
operation due to the slump in their businesses. The Group is
also confronted with the same situation. Despite the decrease
in sales, the Group has thought of ways to realize its potential
and has strived to move forward in sales performance while
persisting in fine-quality positioning, insisting on exclusive
service and adhering to distinctive operations.

In recent years, the Group has been gradually implementing
the “One Store, One Positioning” strategy in line with
the deployment of the Board and the management, so
as to subdividing the customer base and retail market for
determining the positioning of the stores of the Century Ginwa
Xi'an Department Stores Business Sector, correspondingly
making the positioning of the stores more comprehensible and
clearer, thereby reducing the internal competition situation.
In terms of management work, the Group continued to step
up its efforts to reduce costs, to implement organizational
streamlining, to establish a new flat management plan,
to simplify the work process and to review the approval
procedures according to its actual business development, with
a view of improving work efficiency significantly.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The Group’s business promotion department and the finance
department proactively communicated with brands and
suppliers for the reasonable rearrangement of repayment
terms, and reached consensus with various partners. By
building up confidence among brands and suppliers, the
Group created a desirable situation in collaboration with all the
interested parties and the Company.

Under the unfavorable situation that the profits of brick-and-
mortar retail enterprises are declining, the management of
the Company has opened new sources of income and has
saved expense. While striving to reduce operating costs, the
Company proactively communicated with the government
departments in respect of fully utilizing various preferential
policies issued by the government departments. The Company
has sought various supports in terms of tax reduction and
exemption, as well as human resources and social security
contribution reduction, thus supporting its operation from a
lateral support perspective.

In response to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus COVID-19
epidemic during the year, the Company has taken effective
measures in a timely manner to increase the level of prevention
and control. On the one hand, the Company has proactively
raised anti-epidemic materials, such as face-masks and
disinfectant solution, for protecting the health of employees.
On the other hand, the Company has increased the frequency
of sterilization of shopping malls, so as to create a safe
shopping environment and ensure consumers’ shopping safety,
with a view of minimizing the impact of the epidemic.

Although the epidemic has led to great impact on the economy
in the first quarter of 2020, the long-term positive trend of
development will remain unchanged considering that China has
a complete economic system, a solid economic foundation, a
huge domestic market, a rich supply of labor, a relatively large
capacity, and a relatively greater resilience, potential and space for
economic development.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

In 2020, according to the decisions of the Board and resolution in
the general meetings, the Company will introduce new investors
with strong capabilities, which will bring about fundamental
improvement to the Company in terms of capital, management
philosophy, management experience, etc.

In the meantime, the Company will continue to adhere to the
new philosophy of retail, realizing the “technology upgrades,
service upgrades, management upgrades”. In the specific
business operations, brand adjustment, membership recruitment,
service techniques, teams of talents and other aspects, the
Company will abandon the original inertial thinking, and
constantly adopt new technologies and new methods to achieve
new breakthroughs in all aspects; at the same time, the Company
will intensify efforts in precise marketing, management efficiency,
operation safety and other aspects, so as to steadily implement
various measures.

1. Continue to implement the “One Store, One Positioning”
strategy. In terms of brand adjustment, in line with the
precise positioning of each store, the brand adjustment
strategy for 2020 was implemented, and under the
premise of maintaining and stabilizing existing suppliers,
new target brands were gradually introduced, so as to
truly make each store in Xi'an City distinctive and therefore
reduce inter-store competition among common brands,
with a view of realizing a virtuous cycle of differentiated
operations.

2. Explore the existing available resources of the Group,
improve the funding pool of the Group, utilize new
financing channels and instruments, enhance the
utilization efficiency of the Group’s funds, and thus
optimize the credit period to lay a foundation for its
operation.

3. Carry out various administrative work and improve work
efficiency. Century Ginwa has been in operation for 21
years and has built up a strong corporate culture. For
giving positive effects in the development of corporate
culture, the Group will strengthen the training of
employees through various means such as training
and teaching in the future, so as to enhance the staff's
professional quality, lay the concept of employees’ careers
planning, and thus increase the corporate cohesion,
with a view of building a stable and reliable team for the
sustainable development of the enterprise.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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APPRECIATION

Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE
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On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere KTANEHEAREREZTEASRE KEE T
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers, P {hiEr - FRBRIT R ERBE AR
bankers and business associates for their continued strong HE BREEE—BEUR S T

support.

Huang Shunxu
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the performance of the Group
was illustrated as follows.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

Gross revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2020 decreased to RMB1,812.7 million as
compared to RMB2,729.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2019. The decrease was primarily due to
increased market competition arising from surrounding
shopping malls and online retail shops which leads to a
decrease in concession sales during the year.

Annualized area efficiency (annualized gross revenue
per department store average operating area) for the
year ended 31 March 2020 was RMB21,200 per square
meter, as compared to RMB31,600 for the year ended
31 March 2019.

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 decreased to RMB642.0 million as compared to
RMB1,054.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2019.
The decline was primarily attributable to drop in sales of
goods and concession sales.

The rental income and management and administrative
service fee income of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2020 were RMB114.5 million, as compared to
RMB133.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Group's operating loss for the year ended 31 March
2020 was RMB1,169.3 million as compared to the
operating loss of RMB159.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2019. Regardless of the impairment losses on
goodwill of RMB470.6 million and expected credit loss
on receivables due from the Prepaid Card Management
Company of RMB586.5 million recorded in this year,
the operating profit margin (profit from operation over
gross revenue) decreased from 1.3% to -6.2%.

MBRE
REBEFER AEBORRM TR

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

AEBEE-_ZT-_TF=A=1+—
BIEFFEFEzRRamLbEARE
1,812,700,0000 MEBE —ZF— N
FZAZ+—HLEFEAARE
2,729,100,0007C B > EEZAH R B
EEYRLMETTEEH TS
HEMBERFARNETFEBEHEER
e

HE T - ZTF=ZA=+—HItF
EzFRAFHR(FEARBRKZER
Lxﬁi%?ﬁi@%ﬁi«%ﬁﬁ%ii

FRKARBE21,2000 MERZ - F
—NFZA=Z+—HLEFEAAR
#31,6007T °

AEEBE-_ZT-_FTF=-_A=1+—
AEFEzZRam TREARE
642,000,000 MEZ—F— 1
FZAZ+—BHLEFEABARK
1,054,100,0007C° T /B EZEH N
mHERSTEREHEE T

BHE T _-_ZTF=ZA=+—H1I*F
B -AEEZHSWAREERIT
BERTEE WA & AR 114,500,000
T mEE—E-NF=ZA=+—H
1HFE A AR¥133,600,0007T °

AEBEE T -_TF=RA=+—
HEFEZREBBEBAARE
1,169,300,000c MEEZ —F— N
FZAZ+—BHULEFEAKEESD
B AR #159,700,0007T I~ £ &
TFEHB2HEREBEAR
¥470,600,0007T M f& U 3B f+ &
EENRIZEHEEBBEARK
586,500,0007T @ #& & & F & (&
B F B A B E)H1.3% [ E
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

(vi)  Net finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2020
were RMB118.5 million (2019: RMB88.1 million). The
increase in net finance cost was mainly due to increase
in balances of bank and other borrowings.

(vii)  The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
and loss attributable to shareholders of the Company
were RMB1,312.6 million (2019: RMB263.8 million)
and RMB1,279.1 million (2019: RMB261.6 million)
respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s consolidated net asset value
was RMB2,708.7 million (2019: RMB4,088.2 million). As at
31 March 2020, the Group had cash at bank and on hand
amounting to RMB500.8 million (2019: RMB544.7 million).
The current ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2020 was
0.27 (2019: 0.52). The gearing ratio, being bank and other
borrowings less cash at bank and on hand divided by the total
equity, as at 31 March 2020, was 0.81 (2019: 0.45).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back to the year, the PRC retail industry will continue
to face challenges and be subject to internal and external
factors including macroeconomic fluctuation, government
policy guidance, rapid growth of other retail channels such as
e-commerce and rising costs.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimize its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximize the returns to its
shareholders.

MEEJEA_J'HIE& *ﬁ'

MBRE &)
(vi) %E_E:EEEEHE—F—EI
LFE BBBRAFEAARS

118,500,000 (= E—NLF: AR
#88,100,0007T ) © B 7% & F3 ) 5818
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i)y BEZZ-ZTF=-A=+—HLHF
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EiEo Rl A ARE1,312,600,0007C
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7T) M AR¥1,279,100,0005T ( =
T—NnF: AR®261,600,000
JT) °
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E-_EF-_RA=+—H AEEZRITLHE
FNFEER S A ARES500,800,0007T (=
T — AF: AR#544,700,00070) e A =
T-ZFE=F=+—H" le‘izzﬁbtt
KE027(ZE—NF:052) HRZZE=_F
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, due to the impact of numerous uncertainties
in domestic and international economy (especially the
novel coronavirus COVID-19 epidemic, which has not been
completely solved), the current situation may not be greatly
improved in the short term. However, leveraging the restart
and revival of the national economy coupled with the positive
guidance and stimulation of the government departments on
the consumption capacity, we believe that the consumption
capacity will be further released.

Favoured by the overall circumstances, the Company will also
diversify its business for increasing its profit, further develop
its brand agency business, introduce well-known domestic
and foreign brands to enter the northwest market, so as to
provide consumers with more quality choices and provide
operational management services to the franchise stores. By
reducing channels to directly provide goods to consumers,
the pattern of profit distribution will be changed. With our
strong brand strength, outstanding operating efficiency, good
financial performance and loyal customer base, we believe the
Company will maintain its leading position in the marketplace
among the industry and generate better returns for our
shareholders.

The Company will also adjust its strategy and formulate
corresponding policies in a timely manner in the face of many
unfavorable conditions.

In the aspect of existing business expansion, based on the
successful practice and experience of the trendy department
store and the supermarket business of the Group, we will
continue to strive for the healthy growth of scale for coverage
of second-and third-tier cities.

In the aspect of business diversification which increases profit
sources, we will further develop brand agency business and
introduce well-known domestic and foreign brands to enter
the northwest market, so as to provide consumers with more
quality choices and provide operational management services
to the franchise stores. By reducing channels to directly provide
goods to consumers, the pattern of profit distribution will be
changed. With our strong brand strength, strong management
practice ability, superior geographical position and a large
number of loyal customer bases, we are confident that the
Company will maintain its leading position in the industry and
generate better returns for our shareholders.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Looking back to the year, the challenges in the PRC retail
industry have intensified and the industry will be subject
to internal and external factors including macroeconomic
fluctuation, government policy guidance, rapid growth of
other retail channels such as e-commerce, rising operational
costs, capital liquidity shortages and financing difficulties.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimize its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximize the returns to its
shareholders.

Cooperation with Investment Fund

After successful introduction of Hony Capital, a leading
private-equity firm in China sponsored by Legend Holdings,
in late 2010 to acquire the Company’s convertible bonds
amounting to HK$1,330.5 million, the cooperation between
Hony Capital and the Group has become closer. In December
2012, Hony Capital had not only made additional capital
contribution to the Group of US$60 million (approximately
HK$470 million) for business expansion and as working
capital, but also used all of its existing convertible bonds to
subscribe for non-redeemable convertible preferred shares
which reduced the debt burden of the Group, substantially
increased shareholders’ capital and strengthened the financial
position. As at the date of this announcement, Hony Capital
held 28.07% of the Company’s ordinary share capital in issue
and was the Company’s second largest shareholder.

Optimize business structure and focus on the concept
of new retail

In current year, the Company focuses on the concept
of new retail, to achieve “technology upgrades, service
upgrades, management upgrades”. In the specific business
operations, brand adjustment, membership recruitment,
service techniques, teams of talents and other aspects, the
Company will abandon the original inertial thinking, and
constantly adopt new technologies and new methods to
achieve new breakthroughs in all aspects; at the same time,
the Company will implement planning and design in precise
marketing, management effectiveness, safety operations,
and other aspects one by one, and achieve the matching
of responsibilities and rights. Specific strategies include the
following five aspects:
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EEENWR DM

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Optimize business structure and focus on the concept
of new retail (continued)

Strategy I: Plan implementation. Thoroughly complete the
various business indicators of the year 2020. In the aspect of
brand adjustment, we must complete the brand adjustment
plan of 2020 according to the time node. It also clarifies the
overall operational planning work in the future.

Strategy Il: Active expansion. Continue to promote the work of
Xi‘an's global center project in an orderly manner. At the same
time, on the basis of comprehensive investigations, we will
continue to explore expansion projects in second-and third-tier
cities in the Shaanxi province.

Strategy lll: Capital protection. Strengthen revenue, use new
types of financing channels tools, optimize the receivable
turnover period and create a healthy capital liquidity
environment.

Strategy IV: Driven innovation. Integrate consumer finance
and internet financial products; meanwhile analyze the
consumption behavior data of members, and develop the
mobile application of shopping guides.

Strategy V: Management effectiveness. Fully embody the
corporate culture effectiveness, performance management
effectiveness and communication mechanism efficiency, and
integrate the application of new management technologies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 30 to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the reporting year (2019: HK$Nil).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2020, the number of the Group’s staffs
was approximately 6,500 (2019: 7,000), including directly
employed approximately 1,500 (2019: 1,700) full time
employees, and the remaining were concession sales staffs
managed on behalf of the suppliers. Most of the employees
are employed in Mainland China. The directly employed
employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary increments
are assessed based on both individuals’ and the Group’s
performance, professional and working experience and by
reference to prevailing market practice and standards. Apart
from the general remuneration package, the Group also
granted share options and discretionary bonus to the eligible
staffs based on their performance and contribution to the
Group. The Group regards high-calibre staffs as one of the key
factors to corporate success.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a) Decrease in carrying value of assets measured at
fair value

Due to the recent uncertainties surrounding the stock
markets in the PRC, the Group’s investments in Ginwa
Enterprise A-Shares have experienced a decrease in
value by approximately 18% since the end of the
reporting period.

(b) Change in substantial shareholder

On 5 June 2020, all the conditions precedent in the
sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA") which was
entered into among Maritime Century Limited, Ginwa
Investments Holding Group Ltd. (“Ginwa Investments”),
Mr. Wu Yijian, Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings
(Group) Co., Ltd. and Qujiang Cultural Financial
International Investment Limited (“Qujiang Investment”)
on 1 December 2019 have been satisfied or waived,
and the sale and purchase of the shares under the
SPA was completed (the “Completion”). Following
the Completion, Qujiang Investment has become
the substantial shareholder of the Company, holding
29.24% of the total number of ordinary shares of the
Company in issue.
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Biographies of Directors

EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Shunxu (“Mr. Huang”)

Mr. Huang, aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board on 24 June 2020. Mr. Huang
graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 2007 and
Northwest University in 2015. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
international trade and economics/information and computing
science, a master’'s degree in finance, and a doctorate in
political economy. Mr. Huang is experienced in financial affairs.
Mr. Huang has joined Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings
(Group) Co., Ltd.* (FAZHIXLEmMIER(EE)ERER
A]) since September 2018 and is currently chairman of the
board. From 2009 to 2017, Mr. Huang worked at the finance
office of Xi'an Economic & Technological Development Zone.
From 2007 to 2009, Mr. Huang worked at the Shaanxi branch
of China Development Bank.

Mr. Qin Chuan (“Mr. Qin")

Mr. Qin, aged 57, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company on 21 October
2019. He was an executive Director from November 2001 to
March 2006. He ceased to be a Director since March 2006
to 20 October 2019. Mr. Qin graduated in Shaanxi Radio
& Television University majoring in mechanical engineering
in 1987 and obtained a degree of Master of Business
Administration in China Europe International Business School
graduated in 2005. Mr. Qin has rich experience in investment,
finance and listed companies’ management. He joined Ginwa
Investments in 1995. Mr. Qin is currently the vice-president
of Ginwa Investments and the assistant to the president
of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 600080). He was
the director of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. from May 2011
to October 2018.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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Mr. Qi Yong (“Mr. Qi")

Mr. Qi, aged 48, joined the Group as an executive president of
the Group in June 2020, and was appointed as an executive
Director on 24 June 2020. Mr. Qi graduated from Northwest
University in 1995. He holds a bachelor's degree from the
School of Literature and Art Communication. Mr. Qi has
over 20 years of experience in commerce, retail and property
management. He has been the management of Xi‘an Vanke
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.* (ALZERTXERS
FR/28]) since July 2017 responsible for commerce, office
and hotel business, and the general manager of Xi'an Vanke
Commercial Management Co., Ltd.* (AZEBREHER
A@]) . From 2015 to 2017, Mr. Qi served as the general
manager of CityOn (Xi‘an) Shopping Centre* (E&Hb# (7
)WL) . From 2010 to 2015, Mr. Qi served as the vice
president of Xi‘an Saige Group* (FALEKEE) responsible
for attracting investments and construction of shopping malls.
From 2000 to 2006 and late 2008 to 2010, Mr. Qi joined
Lenovo Group and served as the director of retail business of
the northwest district.

Ms. Wan Qing (“Ms. Wan")

Ms. Wan, aged 43, was appointed as an executive Director
on 24 June 2020. Ms. Wan graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and Xi'an Jiaotong University. She
holds a master’s degree in business administration. Ms. Wan
has obtained certain professional qualifications in the PRC
including certified public accountant and certified tax agent.
Ms. Wan is experienced in financing, finance and mergers and
acquisitions. She joined the Group since 2008, and holds the
positions as financial controller and deputy general manager
of Century Ginwa Co., Ltd.. In June 2020, Ms. Wan was
appointed as a vice president of the Group. From 2002 to
2008, Ms. Wan worked in a reputable accounting firm in the
PRC responsible for audit work.
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Mr. Li Yang (“Mr. Li")

Mr. Li, aged 40, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 24 June 2020. Mr. Li graduated from Tongji University
and Northwest A&F University. He holds a master’s degree in
civil engineering and a doctorate in economic management.
Mr. Li has obtained certain professional qualifications in the
PRC, including funds practitioner, securities practitioner and
insurance practitioner. Mr. Li is experienced in financial affairs
and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Li has joined Shaanxi
Investment and Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.* (PR7ZG# &L
BEERBEREMLAR) since August 2017 and is currently
the deputy general manager and deputy executive manager.
From 2016 to 2017, Mr. Li worked at Shaanxi Financial Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* (RRAZBMEEETERMNBERAA) .
From 2014 to 2016, Mr. Li worked at the Shaanxi branch of
China Development Bank Securities Co., Ltd.* (EIFFEHFAER
FEAA]) . From 2005 to 2014, Mr. Li worked at the Shaanxi
branch of China Development Bank.

Mr. Chen Shuai ("Mr. Chen”)

Mr. Chen, aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2010. He was also appointed
as a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company on 7 January 2011 and the
nomination committee of the Company on 7 March 2012. He
currently holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003. As at the date of this
annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen Holdings
Limited, was beneficially interested in (i) 322,727,272 ordinary
shares of the Company, representing approximately 28.07% of
the number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue, and (ii)
1,177,068,181 convertible preferred shares of the Company.
Mr. Chen directs city services, hotel management, investments
in financial services, culture and media, consumer goods and
retail and construction material sectors of Hony Capital. Mr.
Chen has extensive experience in investment management,
supplier management and retail business.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Prior to joining Hony Capital in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked
in an investment company, a PRC retail chain and department
store and a PRC domestic comprehensive supermarket
company. Mr. Chen holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from The China Europe International
Business School. He received his bachelor degree in economics
from Beijing Forestry University. Currently, Mr. Chen acts as a
director of Shanghai SMI Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 600649)
and Shanghai Environment Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 601200).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”)

Mr. Tsang, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 25 September 2008.
Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Tsang has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and finance. At present, he practices public accounting.

Mr. Tsang is currently the company secretary of Green
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 2700).

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (“Mr. Ruan”)

Mr. Ruan, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 May 2015. Mr. Ruan
is currently the Deputy General Manager of Bozhi Technology
(Beijing) Limited.

Mr. Ruan was the senior investment manager of Hony Capital
from 2003 to 2009. He previously worked in ZTE Capital
and TCL Ventures as vice president and executive director
respectively and served as a law lecturer mainly for corporate
law, tax law and securities law in the arts and law faculty in
Beijing University of Chemical Technology. During that period,
he was a part-time lawyer in a number of law firms. He has
solid legal practice experience and is familiar with corporate
governance, corporate finance and investment, mergers
and acquisition, business restructuring. He holds a master
of business administration degree from the China Europe
International Business School and a bachelor degree and a
master of economic law degree from the Law School of lJilin
University.
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Dr. Han Qinchun (“Dr. Han")

Dr. Han, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the nomination committee
of the Board on 30 September 2019. Dr. Han currently serves
as CEO of Hong Kong International Financial Assets Market
Ltd. Dr. Han was a (managing) director of Global Chinese
Real Estate Congress and was the Executive Deputy Director,
Center For Real Estate, (a director and a special-term professor
of Real Estate Research Centre of) Peking University HSBC
Business School. Dr. Han obtained a Doctorate Degree of
Philosophy in Urban Economics and Management from The
University of Hong Kong in 1998. Dr. Han has rich experience
in financial investment, equity capital market and listed
companies’ management. He had been engaged in securities
and investment banking operations in BOCI Securities Limited,
Agriculture Bank Securities Limited (now known as ABC
International Holdings Limited) and Everbright Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited (now known as Everbright Securities Financial
Holdings Limited). He is currently the director of Hong Kong
International Financial Assets Market Limited and is the
independent non-executive director of Lingbao Gold Company
Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code:
3330) since March 2012 and LongiTech Smart Energy Holding
Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code:
1281) since February 2015. He served as the vice-chairman and
co-president of Hong Long Holdings Limited (currently known
as Sun Century Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 1383) from early 2006 to January
2010.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together
with the audited financial statements for the year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Environmental Protection

In order to promote corporate governance, drive environmental
protection proactively, facilitate relationships among
stakeholders and contribute to the society, the management
has established Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Committee to set targets, policies, procedures and
guidelines for ESG related matters so as to promote the
sustainable development of the community where the Group’s
business is operated. Five Task Forces are set up under the
ESG Committee. Members in the Task Forces come from
the elites of relevant departments responsible for assisting
the ESG Committee in promotion of the corresponding ESG
related matters, establishment of key performance indicators
and periodic effectiveness assessment. ESG Committee is
responsible to report to the board of directors periodically the
status of execution and recommendations of improvements.

The Group has set up an energy conservation project team to
implement a number of energy saving and emission reduction
measures in offices, department stores and supermarkets to
reduce electricity consumption, discharge of pollutants, and
to avoid wastage of resources. For achieving the concept of
“Green management and balanced development”, the Group
will continue to review and monitor the implementation of each
measure, and optimize the measures based on their effectiveness.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on its operations, including but not
limited to laws and regulations in relation to product safety
and liabilities, customer rights protection, employment and
occupational safety and laws and regulations relating to
property leasing and property management.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in
the relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek
external advice if considered necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal business activities of the Group are the retail services
at its department stores. The risks associated include burglary,
fire, significant incidents, cash storage and in transit. The
Group has followed relevant laws and regulations to set up
security measures to lower the chance of these risks, to protect
the security of human lives and inventories and to minimize
any loss.

For other risks, such as credit risks, interest rate risks, liquidity
risks, currency risks and equity price risks, and risk reduction
measures, please refer to “Financial Risks Management and
Fair Value” in note 28 to the financial statements.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group firmly believes that maintaining good relationship
with key stakeholders (including employees, customers,
vendors, governing bodies and shareholders) is the key
element to ensure long-term success and continual profit
growth.

(1) Employees
Employees are the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group has established comprehensive
talent recruitment and sound performance appraisal
polices to reward and recognize performing employees
with competitive remuneration package, and to
promote them with career development and progression
by appropriate training and providing them with equal
opportunities within the Group for career development.

(2) Customers

Our customers come from buyers of department stores.
Through good standards of the look, appearance and
actions of employees, the Group creates a good service
model to customers. The Group not only devotes to
set up a consistent labelling system and clear pricing
system, but also endeavors to eradicate the selling of
fake and inferior quality products. The Group treasures
complaints and comments from customers. In order
to provide excellent customer services and to increase
market share and business expansion, the Group has set
up various channels to strengthen the communication
with customers, including customer satisfactory surveys,
customer opinion cards and website of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Relationships with key stakeholders (continued)
(3) Goods Suppliers and Services Providers

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria
in choosing goods suppliers and services providers and
has set up a vendor evaluation system. The evaluation
will base on prices, quality, costs, delivery and after-sales
services after strict execution of purchase procedures
and goods/services inspection standards. In order to
ensure sustainable quality of goods and services supply,
the Group will carry out continual monitoring and
periodic examination of all vendors.

(4) Regulators

The Group operates in the retail business through
different department stores which are subject to the
jurisdictions of the national and local regulators.
Along with compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations, each department store of the Group
has taken steps to ensure that relevant local concerns,
customs and changes of laws or regulations have been
accounted for.

(5) Shareholders

For communication, shareholders may contact the
Group via “contact us” section of the website of the
Company. Besides, the Group will also communicate
with shareholders through printed or online version
of notices, announcements, annual and interim
reports. Annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board of the
Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2020 and the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2020 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 119 to 128.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2020.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for
the four years ended 31 March 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017 and
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 and the assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2016, 2017, 2018,
2019, 2020 are set out on page 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17 October 2014, the Company adopted the Share
Award Scheme under which the shares of the Company
(the "Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to any member of
management and employee (either full time or part time)
of any member of the Group, Directors (including executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors), any suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers (professional or otherwise), joint venture and service
providers to any member of the Group from time to time (the
"Selected Participants”) pursuant to the terms of the Scheme
Rules and the Trust Deed of the Share Award Scheme. The
Share Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date
and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date, i.e., 16 October 2024.

The maximum aggregate nominal value of the Awarded Shares
which may be awarded to a Selected Participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1 per cent of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of such award.

When a Selected Participant has satisfied all vesting conditions
specified by the Board of the Company at the time of making
the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company
forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer
the relevant Awarded Shares to that participant. The Selected
Participant however is not entitled to receive any income
or distribution such as dividend derived from the unvested
Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

MBEBE

REERBE_ZE_ZTF —_T—HhE-
TN\ ZT—tF=A=+—HL
NEFERBE_ZT—X~"F=A=+—H
I+ REAZEEEE URAEERZ
T—XF - ZT—+HF T )\F -=F
—NER_ZTE-_EF=ZA=+—RHZEE
HEEMEHNFECR -

V&N
ARRRE-F-FE=A=+—ALS
AR 2 BB B RN B B R A 27 -

B% 17 5% B 5t &

RZZE—WMF+A+EH K2 REMK
AT &l - R UL AR E R D (2R
7)) AR BB BT IR A R 13
AZBERIBRTAEEERKE AR ZE
MEREEKEREES (2B FE) EF
(BIERITES  IERITEE LB IEHTT
BE) AEBEIAKERATEZEM
HEm B BRER BB (RS EME
B AECEMRBHEHER ([ER20
&) o B RENETEIN M B EAAE R BRIE
BT IEHIERT  TRIFTEI B BZ B Hie
+F (2T -_mWF+A+B)BEX-

RIBRR D BTSSR EELINEME
HHERERD 2EEE LR TEBAR
NRAIRNEBAREB PR 2 EBTRANE D
v —

HER2MENEARARRETENELE
B EE RS DI B 0 2 BE R B AR 1 - (R ] JE X
BHRBNARRRBRD  ZEABRRZSH
2INEEEAWERAD - R BHES
EEEWDRITMREDE TROKEER
By A B U A S0 IR AN AR, ©




SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

Given that the Company does not expect to grant any awards
under the Share Award Scheme prior to its expiry on 16
October 2024 and in order to reduce administrative cost and
improve the cashflow position of the Company, the Company
has terminated the Share Award Scheme on 18 May 2020.

As at the date of the termination, the Company has purchased
3,070,000 shares of the Company through the trustee in the
open market on the Stock Exchange for the purpose of Share
Award Scheme and no share was granted by the Company
under Share Award Scheme.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in
note 27 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2020, the Company’s reserves (including
retained profits, if any, and contributed surplus, subject to
equity shareholders’ approval) amounting to RMB995,255,000
(2019: RMB995,255,000) were available for distribution to the
Company'’s shareholders. In addition, the share premium of the
Company in the amount of approximately RMB1,136,595,000
(2019: RMB1,136,595,000) may be distributed in form of fully
paid bonus shares.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

B RBEE (F)
ERAAREHR-_B=MEF+A+AA
51 5% B &1 81 i 2 A 5 LA ] 2%
BB ARETHRSREERAARZ
BeRitn ARFAER-_F-FTFAHA
+ BB SR B -

REIEEH ARRAFEBIBRTEAERR
Pz ABTI%E AT 3,070,000/ A A A AR
M ARR By BB A 8- AR RDRARE
Pt B2t 813 h B

R
AEBRARBZHEEREBE-_ZE-_FF
ZAZt+—BIFEZEEHFBEHRUBE
mEMTEE27 ©

RZE-_ZF=ZF=+—H AQAFAH
DRTEBRR2FE(BRERERB &M (0
B)RBARBH (BAREGREZHE) ) B
AR #995 2550000 (ZE—NF: AR
#995,255,0007T ) ° th 4N ANAF 2 |’ H
mEETELHAAR1,136,595,0007T (=
Z—NF: AR¥1,136,595,0007T) * A LA
BRARERDIK -

EBIKER

AEBZHEEAEELX MEFHIEATES
T ([AEeRTE]) - BBEEFEI TR
URFEABEZ EEERGTE - RIRRE
B AEBREREESEETAKE
BHEE (EHERMbIEIEEEM)MH5%
ERTEIER - BEEREEB ZEHZUEA
¥ 30,0008t A LR - S {EE AR
IMEFR - IRIBFRBUEZRER 2T A%
EAEFTEESNEREBRIKGEIEL
"I AEEREEEELAFEZHETE
D RIRZRIRET BIE T (5K 0 BR UL DASN -
miE— PERANEREIEREBRENZ
BEE-BRERIKTEEE LA ERKE
BYNENKEZE2HET-

LS EEEERERDT
—E-hEFEFER

27




28

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 23 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 March 2020 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Shunxu (Chairman) (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) (resigned on 10 June 2020)

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (Vice Chairman)
(resigned on 21 October 2019)

Mr. Qin Chuan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 21 October 2019)

Mr. Sha Yingjie (resigned on 21 October 2019)

Mr. Qi Yong (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Ms. Wan Qing (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Yang (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Mr. Chen Shuai (resigned as Vice Chairman on 21 October
2019, but remains as a Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Cao Yonggang (resigned on 21 October 2019)

Mr. Qu Jiaqgi (resigned on 21 October 2019)
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Dr. Cao Guogqi (resigned on 30 September 2019)

Dr. Han Qinchun (appointed on 30 September 2019)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, one third of
the Directors for the time being should retire at each Annual
General Meeting from office by rotation, none of Directors
would retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. Mr.
Huang Shunxu, Mr. Qin Chuan, Mr. Li Yang, Mr. Qi Yong,
Ms. Wan Qing and Dr. Han Qinchun, the newly appointed
Directors, are subject to re-election in accordance with Bye-law
86(2) of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng, Dr. Cao Guogi and
Dr. Han Qinchun, and considers them to be independent for the
year ended 31 March 2020. The Company considers that each
of such Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent
from the Group based on the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 18 to 22.

None of the directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND TOP FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest

paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the following
transactions between certain connected parties (as defined
in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into
and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements and
independent shareholders’ approval, if necessary, had been
made and obtained by the Company in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transactions

On 13 February 2015, the Company’s three subsidiaries,
as lessors, entered into tenancy agreements (the “Tenancy
Agreements”) with Xi'an Century Ginwa Epin Life Supermarket
Company Limited (“Xi‘an Epin”), as tenant, in respect of
renting at Bell Tower Store, Hi-Tech Store and Nandajie Store
for operations of supermarket business for a period of three
years commencing from 16 February 2015, at annual rental
of RMB5.6 million, RMB0.8 million and RMBO0.3 million
respectively. Xi‘an Epin terminated the Tenancy Agreement for
Nandajie Store in December 2015. Renting to Xi'an Epin for
operation of supermarket business in the Group’s department
stores can enhance the product mix. As at the date of the
Tenancy Agreements, Xi‘an Epin was wholly-owned by Ginwa
Investments, which was in turn beneficially owned as to 96%
by Mr. Wu Yijian, an Executive Director and Chairman of
the Company, and was therefore a connected person of the
Company. The transactions under the Tenancy Agreements
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company.

Subsequent to the entering into of the Tenancy Agreements,
Ginwa Investments transferred all its equity interests in Xi'an
Epin to an independent third party of the Group. Following the
aforesaid transfer, Xi'an Epin ceased to be a connected person
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As a
result of which, the Tenancy Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder ceased to constitute as continuing
connected transactions for the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business of the Group
are provided under note 31 to the financial statements. None
of these related party transactions constitutes a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed,
except for those described above in the paragraphs headed
“Continuing connected transactions”, in respect of which the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO which were required to be entered into the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/
or the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"”), were as
follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares of the Company
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were they taken
to or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests or short positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code or any interests which are required to be
entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

Long position in the share options of the
Company

In accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to an
ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 15
February 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the
Company may grant options to the eligible person of
the Company to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued ordinary
share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose shares issued in the exercise
of options for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible person for their contribution
to the Group. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 15 February 2011 and unless otherwise
cancelled or amended according to the Share Option
Scheme, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Eligible person under the Share Option Scheme
includes the followings:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an
affiliate; or

(ii)  a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(iv) any person or entity whose service to the
Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group as may be determined by
the directors from time to time.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval of the option limit; and (ii) the
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
person under the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any shares of
the Company subject to options granted during such
period under any other share option scheme of the
Company) exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue for any time being.

Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive
or substantial shareholders (as such terms as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of their
respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
or any other share option scheme of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the prior
approval of the independent non-executive directors
or shareholders of the Company as the case may be.
Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, the maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant shall not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the date of such grant; and
(ii) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

EERFTETHRAEBRAEARTR

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN 7 HHEROPREFECEZRER
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND (#)

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the (b) ALTEREZRER (&)

Company (continued)

The exercise price of the share options shall be at least
the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant (subject to
Share Option Scheme adjustments).

As at the date of this annual report, none of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme. Set out
below are the details of movements in the outstanding
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme for

BREZTEERAZL B TIIRR
ZEB@E  (WROEE: ()R
BHZBRBERAT  ROVE D
B2 Y (B R (i) IR B S P 3
ZEBERERMAR RORERER
HEMAAEERA 2 FHRTE
(IREBREEFELRE) -

HEAFHRAS RIZEREA I
BmO BT ZRG TXHINEE
TE-EE-A=+—HItFEE"
RIEBRETE R LN RITEN

the year ended 31 March 2020: BRI ER B B RS
Number of share options
EREHR
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
price Vesting and 1 April during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HKS) exercise period 2019 the year the year the year 2020
pmt w2
RoE-NF =)
%@ BA-H ERRY/ =t+-H
ARALS RLAH (B1) BRRTEH HATE AR ERfTE b3 BATE
Mr. Wu Yijian 30 May 2013 1.76 30 May 2013 to 1,150,000 - - 1,150,000 -
29 May 2019
K-8k Z3-=f ZE--ERACTHE
EA=1R ZE-NERAZTAEA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERFETHAEREARATR
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN 7 HERPRESFZEERER
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND ()
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(b) Long position in the share options of the (b) AXRATFBEREZRE (&)
Company (continued)
Number of share options
ERENR
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
price Vesting and 1 April during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HK§) ~ exercise period 2019 the year the year the year 2020
ipmt w2
RoE-NF =R
%@ BA-A ERRY/ =t-8
ARARS RHEH (B1) BRRTES AT AR TR X% AR
Mr. Qu Jiagi 28 May 2013 173 28 May 2013 to 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 -
27 May 2019
BFEEE Z5--f “E-ZERAZTN\AE
EA-TNE ZE-NERAZTLR
Mr. Sha Yingjie 28 May 2013 1.73 28 May 2013 to 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 -
27 May 2019
DERRE Z5--f ZE-ZERAZTN\AE
EAZTNE ZE-NERAZTLR
Other employees of 28 May 2013 1.73 28 May 2013 to 27 May 2019 32,555,000 - - 32,555,000 -
the Group
(in aggregate)
rEEEpEE %= “Z-Z£RACTN\RE
(af) AAZTIA “E-PERAZTLA
Other eligible 275p 2017 032 27 Sep 2017 10 26 Sep 2019 33,000,000 - - 33,000,000 -
persons
ApaERAT  ZE-tF ZEENACTERE
AAZTER ZB-REAAZTAE
Total #3f 73,205,000 - - 73,205,000 -

LS EEEERERDT
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the Company
(continued)

a. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 28 May 2013 was HK$1.78.

b. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 30 May 2013 was HK$1.73.

C. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 27 September 2017 was
HK$0.26.

All the interests stated above represents long positions.
Neither long nor short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO as
at 31 March 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were they taken
to or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or
any interests which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange or any interests which are required to
be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or are required pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 March 2020,
the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being interests of
5% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the directors or chief executives of the Company.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long position/short position in the shares of the (a)

Company

Directors’ Report
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FERR (&)
FAARBZRAEA

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions  Nature of interests shares held the Company

BALT

] FRERA BRAEER

RR&® RR/BR REtE EERHA REzBOBI

Maritime Century Limited Long positions  Corporate interests 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
K& DAER (Ht1)

Ginwa Investments Holding Group ~ Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%

Ltd.

SERERREEBRAT kB RREHEBRAER (K1)

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions  Corporate interests 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
REAREBRAR K& NSIL: (Hit2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
RkE RREHEBRAER (Hit2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
K& RREHZERAER (Hit2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited  Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
kB RREHEBR AR (Hit2)

Hony Group Management Limited ~ Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
K& RREBHZERAER (Hit2)

Hony Managing Partners Limited Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
RkE RREHEBRAER (Hit2)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
K& RREBHZERAER (Hit2)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
BeREE kB RREHEBR AR (Hi2)

HESHEHEERERLA

BN REER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying (b)
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as

defined in Part XV of the SFO) ERBIFEXVER)
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Number of ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions Nature of interests shares held the Company

AR

o & BRTERR

REEE RE/KR E#tE LERHE BREZBNEA

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
REARERAF kE RAER (H7£3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H723)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H723)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H723)

Hony Group Management Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H723)

Hony Managing Partners Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H723)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H723)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%

#LRRL
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

Long position/short position in the underlying
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes:

(1

MCL held 336,166,156 Shares. Ginwa Investments
holds the entire issued share capital of MCL. Mr. Wu
Yijian beneficially owns 96% equity interests in Ginwa
Investments. As such, Mr. Wu Yijian was deemed to
be interested in 336,166,156 Shares by virtue of his
shareholding in MCL.

The long position of 658,893,428 Shares represents (i)
the 322,727,272 Shares held by Glory Keen Holdings
Limited (“Glory Keen"”); and (i) the security interest
held by Glory Keen over the 336,166,156 Shares
held by MCL under share charge. Hony Capital Fund
2008, L.P. holds the entire issued share capital of
Glory Keen. Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the
sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hony Group Management Limited, is
the sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008
GP, L.P.. Hony Managing Partners Limited owns 80%
equity interests in Hony Group Management Limited.
Hony Managing Partners Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Mr.
Zhao John Huan held 49% of the issued share capital
of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Each of the
above-mentioned parties is therefore deemed to be
interested in the interest held by Glory Keen.

The long position of 1,294,774,999 underlying
Shares represents the interest in the 1,294,774,999
conversion shares which may be issued under the
Hony Convertible preferred shares. The exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the Hony Convertible
preferred shares are subject to the restrictions as stated
in the paragraph headed “Other terms of the Preferred
Shares” under the section headed “Subscription
Agreement” in the circular dated 19 November 2012.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as at
31 March 2020, had an interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any
other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2020, director of the Company had the
following interests in business which competed or were likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business:

Name of director Name of company

Nature of business

TERR (&)

BEXFEEEN R-E-FF= A
S+—H BAAREFRIEARAR
FF 0 - 5L 4 £ A7 A 5 £ AT % 49 o 461 BRI
3 A (M2 R A BRI 4 B
E GBIV SR E3H B2 RETAA
AREE REERMERAE WS T
e AE 1T T 5 AN B £ ] Bk B 2 ]
2 IR A BRI A TIE R AE 2 5%
A R -

EERGERE2ES
R-F_TF=A=+—-B FATEE

BEA T EARE X E R KA EBR
FHAEBARBEFANRGOES:

Nature of interests

EEnE YNGR EXBHE EEME

Mr. Wu Yijian Ginwa Investments Project investment, entity 96% of the equity
investment, real estate interest in Ginwa
development, property sales, Investments
leasing and agency services,
department store and
supermarket operations

R—B5%HE TRERE BHARE tERE THAEE RISIEREZI6%AE
WEHE HERKERE -
ReEpamERERTS

Note: 5t -

Although Mr. Wu Yijian has competing interests in Ginwa Investments
by virtue of his common directorship, the Directors consider that such
competition, if any, is neither significant nor material to the Group as
a whole. Furthermore Mr. Wu Yijian will fulfill his fiduciary duties in
order to ensure that he will act in the best interest of the Shareholders
and the Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable
of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the businesses of such companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had any interest which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were
less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year ended
31 March 2020. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken
together were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest major customers
and suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the note 27 to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no contract concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

None of the members of the Group was engaged in any
litigation, arbitration or claim of material importance and no
litigation, arbitration or claim of material importance was
known to the directors to be pending or threatened by or
against any member of the Group during the year ended 31
March 2020 and as at the date of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at
the date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s shares in the market as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Shunxu
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board perpetually reviews its corporate governance
practices, risk management and internal control policy and
procedures from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly
stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment
to excellence in corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020 with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules except for certain deviations. The corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2020 is stated as follows:

CG Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. None of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term.
However, all the directors (Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive) are subject to retirement at least
once every three years under Bye-Law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws of
the Company. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
in the CG Code.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus
considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent for the year ended 31 March 2020.

CG Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. He should
also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees to attend. The chairman of the Board
and the chairman of the remuneration committee were not
able to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 19 September 2019 due to other important business
engagement. They had delegated the Vice Chairman of the
Board to chair and be available to answer questions at the
annual general meeting.
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CG Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings. During the year ended 31 March
2020, not all Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors were able to attend the general meeting of
the Company due to their other business commitments.

CG Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. As stated
in the announcement of the Company dated 31 October 2018,
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John, former executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company, tendered his resignation
with effect from 31 October 2018 and the Company has
been searching for a suitable candidate to assume the
vacancy followed by resignation of Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John.
Accordingly, the role and duty of the chief executive officer of
the Company has been assumed by Mr. Wu Yijian, chairman of
the Board, Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, vice-chairman of the
Board and Mr. Sha Yingjie, executive director of the Company.
Subsequent to the appointment of Mr. Qin Chuan as the
Chief Executive Officer on 21 October 2019, the Company has
complied with CG Code Provision A2.1.

CG Code Provision D.1.4 stipulates that directors should clearly
understand delegation arrangements in place. Issuers should
have formal letters of appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their appointment. However,
the Company does not have formal letters of appointment for
the Directors except for Mr. Wu Yijian, an executive Director.
In addition, the service agreement entered into between
the Company and Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, an executive
Director, expired on 6 August 2018 and has not been renewed.
Notwithstanding the above, every Director is subject to
retirement at least once every three years under Bye-Law 87(1)
of the Bye-Laws of the Company. The Board will nevertheless
continuously review the need to having formal letters of
appointment and service agreement for the Directors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2020, the Board is comprised of one Executive
Director, one Non-Executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. As at the date of this annual report,
the Board is comprised of four Executive Directors, two Non-
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

The followings are the members of the Board:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Shunxu (Chairman) (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) (resigned on 10 June 2020)

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (Vice Chairman)
(resigned on 21 October 2019)

Mr. Qin Chuan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 21 October 2019)

Mr. Sha Yingjie (resigned on 21 October 2019)

Mr. Qi Yong (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Ms. Wan Qing (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Yang (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Mr. Chen Shuai (resigned as Vice Chairman on 21 October
2019, but remains as a Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Cao Yonggang (resigned on 21 October 2019)

Mr. Qu Jiagi (resigned on 21 October 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Dr. Cao Guogqi (resigned on 30 September 2019)

Dr. Han Qinchun (appointed on 30 September 2019)

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Group. Each Executive Director is suitably
qualified for his position, and has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently. Biographical information of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.
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OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks
in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. According to
CG Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly
and Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
at approximate intervals. During the year ended 31 March
2020, the Board met regularly and frequently for the review
and approval on the business of department stores, shopping
mall and supermarkets. Details of Directors’ attendance of the
Board and the shareholders’ meetings held for the year ended
31 March 2020 are set out as follows:

EEgCEF
EXCREEBETFORBRREIERG &
ENEREERVHREA UEHESE
LB B TR R o AR AR SR B Y R B
FoREBEEXEIBTIRIEANURZA
T EEERTHETER MEFSEH
REBFETRIOR HEF K -REE
TECTF-A=+-HILFE EFg
EHRREERTER U RERES
BERES BYTOSBREMISZE -
REBEE_T-_TF=FA=+—HILFESE
TZEFEERLMRAE EEZ2HF
AEREDIINT

Board
Name of Director meetings AGM & SGM
RERBF
rER
EEpR BEEZgeE REREFIKE
Executive Directors
HMITEE
Mr. Wu Yijian (resigned on 10 June 2020) 9/10 0/1
R—BEE(RZT_ZTFA+HET)
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (resigned on 21 October 2019) 6/10 171
AKX EE (RZE-AF+TAZ+—HEE)
Mr. Qin Chuan (appointed on 21 October 2019) 4/10 0/1
ZNEE(RZE-NAFTA-+—HEZE)
Mr. Sha Yingjie (resigned on 21 October 2019) 6/10 0/1
DEREE(RZE-NAF+AZ+—BEHT)
Non-Executive Directors
FHITEE
Mr. Chen Shuai 10/10 0/1
BRED S A&
Mr. Cao Yonggang (resigned on 21 October 2019) 5/10 0/1
EKAIEE (RZE-NF+AZ+—HEHE)
Mr. Qu Jiaqi (resigned on 21 October 2019) 6/10 0/1
MEREEE (RZE-NAFTtAZT+—HET)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUIFNTEE
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 10/10 171
TEESEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 10/10 0/1
BBz i 5t 4
Dr. Cao Guoqi (resigned on 30 September 2019) 2/10 0/1
ERHEEL (RZE—-AFNLA=THET)
Dr. Han Qinchun (appointed on 30 September 2019) 7/10 0/1

BREBL (R _E-NAFAA=THEZE)
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All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. They have separate
and independent access to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company at all times and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
When queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken
to respond as promptly and as fully as possible. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings
are given to the Directors and Board procedures comply with
the Bye-Laws of the Company, as well as relevant rules and
regulations.

FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested
in the Board. The Board carries out its functions according to
the powers conferred upon it by the Bye-Laws of the Company
which is uploaded onto the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, and since the date of uploading, no
significant changes have been made.

The main functions and duties conferred on the Board include:

management of the overall business and strategic
development;

- deciding business plans and investment plans;

— convening general meetings and reporting to the
shareholders; and

-  exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred
by shareholders in general meetings.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management of the Company. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

The Directors may have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company to ensure that the
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are followed. In addition, the Directors may, upon reasonable
request, seek independent professional advice under
appropriate circumstance at the Company’s expenses.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate, appropriate,
independent and professional advice to the Directors to assist
the relevant Directors in discharging their duties.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment to
the Board meeting and scrutinizing the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision; in
particular, they bring an impartial view to issues relating to the
Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management
experience and have provided their professional advice to
the Board. The independent non-executive Directors provide
independent advice on the Group’s business strategy, results
and management to ensure that all interests of shareholders
are taken into account, and the interests of the Company and
its shareholders are protected.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors,
in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, which
requires that every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive directors.
In addition, at least one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications or financial management
expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
The Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing one-third of the Board, in compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company's accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction
training so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of his duties and responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enrol in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance and
corporate governance practices organized by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development and refresh their knowledge and
skills during the year ended 31 March 2020 for ensuring their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Such
professional development was completed by way of attending
briefings, conference, courses, forum and seminars, teaching,
self-reading and participating in business-related researches
which are relevant to the business or directors’ duties.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual as this
ensures better checks and balances and hence better corporate
governance.

The Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the functioning of
the Board and the strategies and policies of the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for monitoring the
daily operation and management of the Company.
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TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Directors (including the
Independent Non-executive Directors) has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date, renewable
automatically by three years on the expiry of such term and
every successive period of three years thereafter, subject to
the relevant provisions under the Company's amended and
restated Bye-Laws requiring no less than one-third of all the
Directors (i.e. both Executive and Non-executive Directors
are included) to retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting of the Company, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian, Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr. Huang Shunxu,
Mr. Qin Chuan, Mr. Qi Yong and Ms. Wan Qing have entered
into service contracts with the Company for a specific term,
and all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting, and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) Audit Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee and (iii) Nomination Committee
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
board committees, which explain their respective roles and the
authorities delegated to them by the Board, are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice and other assistance
under appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the Audit Committee consists of two Independent
Non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng, and one Non-executive Director, Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai is the chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to review
the financial reporting process of the Group and its risk
management and internal control system, oversee the audit
process and perform other duties assigned by the Board and
make recommendations for the Company to improve the
quality of financial information to be disclosed. It also reviews
the annual and interim reports of the Company prior to their
approval by the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, and recommended the appointment of the external
auditor. Also, the Audit Committee together with management
and independent auditors have reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited results for the year ended
31 March 2020 and the unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2019 prior to their approval by
the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, two meetings were HE-_EZ-_THE=A=+—HIIFE-
held by the Audit Committee. The attendance record of each BEEBEERITTMATSR -BREES %
member of the Audit Committee at the meetings of the Audit KEREXRZEee:E FE Ly
Committee is set out below: T
Attendance/
Number of
Audit
Committee
Name of Director meetings
g/ B
ZEg
EEMNA 23%A
Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2
BRED ST &
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 212
TEELE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 2/2
Bre e & % A
There had been no disagreement between the Board and the REE-—_ZEZ-_ZFTF=H=+—HIEE"
Audit Committee during the year ended 31 March 2020. EEeliETEeTES RO
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE %ﬁ@ﬂi =k=4
The Company established the Remuneration Committee with AAFEKTEHEWMEE S EEZmBES
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. )‘5% EELSTARRET -
The Remuneration Committee shall consist of not less than TWNEEelmR I MEKELEK FHE

two members. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of two Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng and Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and one Non-executive
Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to
formulate the remuneration structure and policy of the Group,
to review the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management, including bonuses and share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, to ensure that such
remuneration is reasonable and not excessive. Generally, their
remunerations are determined based on their experience and
qualifications, the Group’s performance as well as market
conditions.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Remuneration
Committee had reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy and
reviewed the remuneration package of the Executive Directors
and senior management for the year ended 31 March 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, four meetings were
held by the Remuneration Committee. The attendance record

TREREE

HE T2 ZF=-A=Z+—HILFE"
MEZEBeCEMAEENE Mﬁﬁ&%ﬁ
BE_Z-_ZF=A=+— Eﬁifﬂﬂ

BEENSREBEOFINET
BE T THE-_A=-t+—HLFE %

MEEERTTHAREHR -FHEESX

ZE e /A

of each member of the Remuneration Committee at the HERFMEE@HENL FELHWM
meeting of the Remuneration Committee is set out below: T:
Attendance/
Number of
Remuneration
Committee
Name of Director meetings
HE M
ZEg
EEnE ER¥E
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 4/4
B s 2 5% 4
Mr. Chen Shuai 4/4
BR B 5% A4
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 4/4
LER LA

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of one Non-
executive Director: Mr. Chen Shuai and three Independent
Non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng and Dr. Han Qinchun. Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
once a year and to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. In identifying suitable director candidates and
making such recommendations to the Board, the Nomination
Committee would also take into account various aspects
of a candidate, including but not limited to his education
background, professional experience, experience with the
relevant industry and past directorships.

REEES
ARREKUIREZE S HERRBERD
BN EEEERTR
REZESHEIKERBE —BIFNTE
EREVELE  UNR=EBIIIFRTES:
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed the board’s structure, size and
composition to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills,
independence and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Company and reviewed the annual
confirmation of independence submitted by Independent Non-
executive Directors and assessed their independence. Also,
the Nomination Committee will also give consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board, and the Board
will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, three meetings were
held by the Nomination Committee. The attendance record of
each member of the Nomination Committee at the meeting of
the Nomination Committee is set out below:

BE_ZT_THF-_A=-+—RHLFE &%
g ﬁﬂﬁﬁ§$Am S A@&@W
Mﬁ%ﬂﬁ%éﬁm%ﬂmgﬁ {2312
jﬁ&@%*%ﬂé$@ﬂ¥%2%g'ﬁ
EEMBUFATESRERINBELEFE
FERE AN AR R SR B - BN LE - 18
ZEBENMERNYEABRBEERNDAR
EIEEeXEREEESTEXRESZ TL
BE MEFEHEHNENETEXNES
TOAE BUR DA AR EL RIS

BE_ZT-_TF=-A=+1— Etif’%
FEEGRTT=ZRGH - RREEER
RERREEZZEGEHM L FLEEH N

Attendance/
Number of
Nomination
Committee
Name of Director meetings
HE/RA
ZE®
ESfnE BEUE
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 3/3
wEE
Mr. Chen Shuai 3/3
PRED &
Mr. Cao Yonggang (resigned on 21 October 2019) 2/3
ExAEE (RZE-NETAZT—HEET)
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 3/3
Bre e & 5 A
Dr. Cao Guogi (resigned on 30 September 2019) 0/3
EEHEBL (RZZE-AFAA=THEIE)
Dr. Han Qinchun (appointed on 30 September 2019) 173

BREEL (RZZE-NFALA=THEZE)
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has re-appointed KPMG as its external auditor
during the year ended 31 March 2020. The external auditor
is refrained from engaging in non-audit services except for
specific approved items, such as review of interim results of
the Group. The Audit Committee reviews the external auditor’s
statutory audit scope and non-audit services and approves its
fees. A remuneration of RMB4,200,000 was paid/payable to
KPMG for the provision of annual audit and review of interim
results services in the year ended 31 March 2020.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group for each
financial year which shall give a true and fair view of the
financial position, performance and cash flow of the Company
and its subsidiaries for that period. The directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the
Company. As at 31 March 2020, the Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s external auditor,
in relation to the financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Kee Wai has been informed of the requirement of
the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, and he confirmed that he
had attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2020.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems
of the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the CG Code by
establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems, while
the Board oversees management in performing its duties on
an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below:
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Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

(i) Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives;

(i) Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly;

and

(iii) Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and
on-going monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the year
ended 31 March 2020, no significant risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Group has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for
carrying out internal control across
the Group;

(i) Control Environment:

A dynamic and iterative process
for identifying and analyzing risks
to achieve the Group’s objectives,
forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed,;

(i) Risk Assessment:

Action established by policies
and procedures to help ensure
that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement
of objectives are carried out;

(iii) Control Activities:

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Internal and external communication
to provide the Group with the
information needed to carry out day-
to-day controls; and

(iv) Information and
Communication:

Ongoing and separate evaluations
to ascertain whether each component
of internal control is present and
functioning.

(v) Monitoring:

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the
Group also adopts and implements inside information policy
and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken
from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of disclosure requirements in relation to the
Group, which include:

(i) The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality;

(i) Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations; and

(ili) The Executive Directors are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the
year ended 31 March 2020, no significant control deficiency
was identified.

Internal Audit

The Group has engaged an external professional (the “Internal
Control Consultant”) to carry out the Internal Audit (“IA")
functions of the Group. The IA function is independent of
the Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the
risk management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted semi-
annually. Several areas have been considered during the
Board’s reviews, which include but are not limited to (i) the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last semi-annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment, and (i)
the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by
IA functions and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The company secretary
of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to
the Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the Executive
Director of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 March
2020.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the Group.
These include (i) holding annual and special general meetings
to provide a forum for shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board and the Board committees; (ii) distributing
corporate documents and releasing announcements to
disseminate the Group’s latest information to the shareholders;
and (iii) maintaining the Company’s website to provide an
electronic means of communication with the shareholders and
the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’'s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group's financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company’'s website and the
communication with its shareholders.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Century Ginwa
Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased
to present this Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter called "ESG"”) Report (the “Report”)
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
the “Group” or “we”). This ESG Report summarizes
the policies, sustainability strategies, management
approach, initiatives and performance made by the
Group in the environmental and social aspects of its
business.

The ESG Report covers the environmental and
sustainable development strategies and policies of
the Group's business in operating department stores,
shopping centers and supermarkets in the Mainland
China for the year ended 31 March 2020. The Report
discloses the required information under the “comply or
explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("HKEX"). The relevant provisions and details are listed
out at the end of the Report.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s ESG strategy
formulation and reporting, evaluating and determining
the Group’s ESG-related risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management
measures and internal control systems are in place. In
order to determine the ESG reporting scopes, the key
management personnel has discussed internally and
identified the environmental, social and operating items;
and assessed their importance to the stakeholders and
the Group. The summary of material ESG items are
listed out in this report.

-

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B - #HE8RERRSE

BRARE

RS EREERAERAR (AR
ADEFe(E5g])MAERX
ARm M EWE QR (FHE A%
Bl THRMDZRE T REAR
(TESG ) & ([AR|E]) - A&
RETASBRAZIRE 8k
BRI  AIIEBRERE  EET
B R R R

RBERE T AEERPELET
ERs - BYPOMRBRTSHNE
BEREE_E_TF=A=+—
HIEFENREPRERERMEE
FEMAFEERKE  SitHEE
B WIREEBBARZAHER AR
([BE2 AT ) B85 E R A ER27F
gz CGRE g hERA®REEID
Bz [ BT ERE ] &R L #
o A 2 ER AR H N A HTE &
RKEBH o

EXeRARAKHEIVERE
g ERRE  URFHNEERSE
BZERRR e kEazRER:
BRAILABELERZRR HE
KE AR B IR e i M N AR B 1R R
B UBETEARBIELER S
TEERR HekEnmEaE-
AEEEXEEEABETH R
WHH T B & EAREEPTRL
MIRE - HENERERR  BHEE
THERBNEREE  EMERL
HHEENRERMEEHER AR
EHREH AR EE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

The Group is committed to maintaining the sustainable
development of its business and the environmental
protection of the communities in which it operates.
The Group maintains a close tie with its stakeholders,
including government/regulatory organizations,
shareholders/investors, employees, customers, suppliers,
community, etc. and strives to balance their opinions
and interests through constructive communications
in order to determine the directions of its sustainable
development. The Group assesses and determines
its environmental, social and governance risks, and
ensures that the relevant risk management measures
and internal control systems are operating effectively.
The following table shows the communication channels,
management response to the stakeholders’ expectations
and concerns:

Expectations
Stakeholders and concerns

BOE HERRR BERE

Government / > Compliance

regulatory in laws and announcement
organizations regulations > Correspondence
> Fulfill tax > Field investigation
obligation > Process business via
> (Cooperation government website or
> Joint anti- application
epidemic

B/ EER > BFEARER > EHHmE/
> Efﬂ)ﬁxiﬁ SN
> AEAR > ERm
> HEHNEK > it FH
> FBBUNBIE AL ER
BERELH
o

BB -#HE8K

Communication channels

> Periodic report/interim
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Management response
EEERE

> Uphold integrity and compliance in
operations

> Pay tax on time, and in return contributing
to the society

> Establish comprehensive and effective
internal control system

> Respond to government'’s policies and to

build a harmonious society together

Strictly comply with the local government’s

guideline relating to business suspension

and resumption
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RE HERERRSE

. STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT = BHhESE(E)
(continued)

Expectations

62

Stakeholders and concerns Communication channels Management response
B0 E HEREER BBRE EEEOE
Shareholders / > Return on > Information disclosed on > Management possesses relevant experience
investors investment the HKEX website and professional knowledge in business
> Information > The Company'’s official sustainability
transparency website > Ensure transparent and effective
> Corporate > Annual general meeting communications by dispatching information
governance and other shareholders' on the websites of HKEX and the Company
system meetings > Set up an investor hotline to maintain close
> Joint anti- and effective communication with the
epidemic market and investors
> (Continue to improve the internal control
system and risk management
> Resume the business of shopping malls as
soon as possible
RE/REE > REMRK > RARFARBXAALE > TEEAAHBLERNEIENG  BREYK
> EAARER BZER (7] F B 1
> ReRRER > RRAHE > FERRERR T RAD BT BB AR
> HEAHRE > REAERAMBREEH RREBERERER
> REREERBRRFETGRREEED
KA ER
> BANERENMEERERER
> BERREBGEE
Employees > Labor rights > Staff activities > Set up contractual obligations to protect
> Career > Employee performance labor rights
development evaluation > Set up development subsidy fund to
> Compensation > Induction and on the job encourage employees to participate in
and welfare training continuous education and professional
> Health and > Internal meetings and trainings
workplace safety announcements > Establish a fair, reasonable and competitive
> Care for > (Contact via email, remuneration scheme
employees employees’ mail box, > Pay attention to occupational health and
> Joint anti- phone and communication safety
epidemic applications > Qrganize leisure activities to enhance
> Employees’ reasonable cohesion
recommendation > Provide epidemic prevention materials such
management measures as masks and alcohol
> Epidemic prevention and
control manual
BT > BTHH > BIES > HIEEHNEANRESL TR
> EEUR > BIEMER > RUERMPHES BBHEISEBEHE
> FBMEN > AB BB eSS
> BERRZZ > NHgREkBE > BURAT AENMARFE HNFHER
> HEET > RPEFHM BIHE > TERERERkZE
> HEARE BELBRERREFEG > BRMETEHEREREN
> BIREMLMERBEENEZ > RENERR (WAERER)
> REEFR

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

BERRE

- BOESHE(E

Management response
EEEREE

(continued)
Expectations
Stakeholders and concerns Communication channels
B0 E HEHEER BBRE
Brands / Consumers > Integrity and > Business visit
contractual > Through Brand Business
obligation Department, customer
> High quality service center
products > (ontact via email and
> |ntimate service phone call
and experience > Customer satisfaction
> Privacy protection survey
> Joint anti- > Advertising media
epidemic
e, HEE > WERED > HBFED
> amEnm > RERES/ BEERES
> BhO IR ELEE R I
> (REFLE > BRE T REEES
> HEAHNE > BEFREERE
> RESEES
Suppliers > Stable demand > Business visit
> Fair and open > Contact via email and
tender phone call
> Corporate > Through Procurement
reputation Center / Brand Business
> Joint anti- Department
epidemic
HER > FHIBE > HBFED
> RAHBE > BRETBEREEBS
> (EREE >—%%¢w/m%%ﬁ$
> HEAHRE

>

>

>

vy

VV

\l

YYVYVYVYY

Ensure proper contractual obligations are in
place

Continuously introduce quality brands and
enhance service quality to satisfy customers
Establish communication channels through
interviews, phone surveys, hotline and
complaint mailboxes

Organize customer satisfaction survey to
improve service quality

Develop a comprehensive members’
information confidentiality mechanism

and carry out regular information system
maintenance

Sterilize each corner of the shopping malls
and set up temperature measurement
counter at entrance

BRREBITANEL
SESIABE MR EEA RS E R AN
P

BBEA BHERD  REAREELKH
fﬁikiiﬁm%Lﬁﬁ
ETRPRERAETEUSERBER
ﬂm%ﬁmaﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂ&mﬁﬁﬁ
{El TN /\/\}L
REESHSEEARTIRABAORE
BOR IR T ek

Ensure proper contractual obligations are in
place

Establish policy and procedures in supply
chain management

Establish and maintain strong and long-
term relationship with suppliers
Strengthen the tendering management
system continuously and select suppliers
with due care

Resume the business of shopping malls as
soon as possible

Purchase epidemic prevention materials
BRREBITANEL

I E L E S B IR A R AR P
REBAERBNSEBE

SEMB BT TR EWEEHEHRER
BRIRERSEE

REMEDE
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(continued)

Expectations

64
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Stakeholders and concerns Communication channels Management response
B0 E HEREER BBRE EEERE
Community > Environmental > The Company’s official > Pay attention to climate change
protection website and information > Continuously invest resources in
> Reduce waste publicity website of environmental protection
generation government department > Actively promote the sorting of garbage
> Community > Community activities > Encourage employees to actively participate
contribution > Promotional activities in charitable activities and voluntary
> Economic > Publicity booths and services
development posters > Maintain good and stable financial
> Joint anti- performance and business growth
epidemic > Respond to government’s appeal of
stimulating business growth so as to
drive the economic development of the
community
fr & > RIGRE > ARAWEUEBFHMAE > BIREEE
> BMOBEEMHES BRRHB > BERREREFERAER
> (RS H > iHRED > BREENRIENTE
> REER > RIHEE > REEIEB2EASEIMERRE
> HEAHRE > FEEG SR > BREFNTHEEMEBLER
> BERGTE RS EEBNEE FE
HEREOLEER
Contact Us B P B 4%

Your opinions and suggestions are the driving force for
the Group’s progress. If you have any comments and
other questions or inquiries about this report or the
Group's performance in sustainable development, please
fill in your contact information at enquiry@cgrh.com.hk.

MATERIALITY MATRIX

During the reporting period, the Group has evaluated
a number of environmental, social and operating
items, and continuously assessed their importance
to stakeholders and the Group through various
channels. This assessment helps to ensure that the
Group's business objectives and development direction
are in line with the stakeholders’ expectations and
requirements. The Group’s and stakeholders’ matters
of concern are presented in the following materiality
matrix:

CHERMEREAEEESHNE
7 MRERARE S AR EE LA F
BERIEANKBEAEMERRE
EHRENER  FENFERED
%2 & =flenquiry@cgrh.com.hk °

ERMER

RBEHA  AEEEHEZERE
R -HegheERBNER LB
BIRREFENEFNERLE
BHZHRENERREE  WLFHEE
PAKERREFERETATND
FEHEEEN - MAKBAFNE
PRALHERGZ2HRNATHER
MERE R



Importance to Stakeholders

HES2ENEEY

Medium

High

Low
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MATERIALITY MATRIX (continued)

BB -#HE8K

Materiality Matrix
EEMERE

EREE

= EEMER(F)

¢ Anti-discrimination
& Labor rights

*
*

Talent management
Staff training and

A\

Customers’ satisfaction
Product and service

* <

Energy consumption
Occupational health and
safety

protection promotion quality
& Staff compensation and > Anti-corruption
welfare > Stimulation of
consumption
> Epidemic prevention and
control
& Epidemic prevention and
control
* AR * ATEE > BEPmBE
* (RIE A & BEIEYEE > EmEREEE
& S TRMEER > RES
> RIBUHE
> BB
* BEbE
<> Greenhouse gas > Operational compliance
emissions > Customers’ privacy

measures and protection
Suppliers management

> Community involvement
$ ORERBHM > ZEAR
< BEIRE A > RERFPILE
. E%%%fiiéﬁifzi\ > HEmEIE
> tesn

& Preventive measures <> Water resources

for child and forced utilization
labor
<> Exhaust air emission
<> Sewage discharge
<> Generation of non-
hazardous wastes
& FERMEIKRESET |+ KEREH
B FE e
& BERBER
& BEKHE
> BEBEEVMER
Low Medium High
&® h =5
Importance to the Group
HAEENEEM
<> Environmental & Employee > QOperation
$ RIESE ¢ ETHMA > ZEFE
® HRSHHEERERAR

BN REER
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group always paid great attention to energy
conservation, emission reduction and environmental
protection, and adheres to the management philosophy
of sustainable development to achieve green operation
and balanced development; in response to the global
environmental protection trends, the Group implements
energy conservation and environmental protection
measures to mitigate the environmental risks and
negative impacts from the Group’s business activities.
The ESG Committee plays a critical decision-making
role on various measures, including environmental
protection, customers’ service, supply chain, employees’
and investors’ concerns, and gradually enhances the
Group's sustainability performance. We analyze and
compare the collected environmental performance
data since 2015 to identify effective energy reduction
measures. Besides, we strictly adhere to the applicable
environmental laws and regulations and support
the government in various actions to protect the
environment, and hopes to fulfill the expectations and
concerns of both the Group and its stakeholders in
business development and environmental protection.

In order to implement the Group’s environmental
protection policy effectively, we have set up Engineering
Property Center at each mall for monitoring the daily
environmental and resources conservation management
work within the mall and office areas; and demand
our employees to strictly follow the Group's internal
guidelines to collect, classify, store and dispose of
wastes; hope to reduce waste and to avoid resources
wastage through various measures. Please refer to
the details in the “Management of Emissions” and
“Management of Resources Utilization” sections below.

. R
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - RIBRE (&
(continued)
1.  Management of Emissions RN ER

The Group always strictly complied with the
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the "“Energy Conservation
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
the applicable laws and regulations of the
provincial and municipal bureau in ecology and
environment. We integrate green operation
into our development strategies to monitor and
manage various environmental factors and their
impacts on the environment, with an aim to build
a strong environmental management system.

The Group's economic and trading business does
not involve any production activities, and its
environmental impacts mainly comes from use
of natural resources, generation of solid wastes
(Please refer to the “Management of Disposal
of Solid Waste” section below for details) and
discharge of domestic wastewater from office,
shopping mall and supermarket operations, and
never produced any solid or liquid hazardous
wastes. The use of natural resources (including
gasoline, diesel, natural gas and electricity) will
produce air pollutants and greenhouse gases
(Please refer to the “Management of Resource
Utilization” section below for details); and
domestic wastewater is discharged to the local
wastewater treatment plant through the urban
wastewater pipeline.

REE—BEBREET (PEA
REMBERFEREE) (P
EARKFMBEESLBERE)
LREBETERRRBNZE
AR URRELERNAR
PIMBERREET ERRE
BEXREZELREMA/RE
TROFE HERE—ER
AORIREEB R
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BN AR R AEERE)  BIREH
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BEVEREEE|&D) Mk
AETERK BRARE K
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.
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Management of Emissions (continued)
Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes

The solid waste generated by the Group can
be divided into two types, recyclable and non-
recyclable, which mainly include the product
packaging materials (such as plastic bags,
wrapping paper, carton box), slow-moving goods,
kitchen waste, construction and engineering
wastes and domestic garbage. In order to reduce
waste production and the negative impacts on
the environment, we encourage the shops to
use bio-degradable plastic bags and packaging
paper, and strictly implement the plastic bag levy
system; we donate slow-moving consumable
goods to the people in need; encourage
employees to take food at right portions and
reduce food waste; re-use waste spare parts for
the repairs and maintenance of the equipment
inside the malls; recycle and re-use the wooden
boards, lights and electrical equipment removed
or discarded by the brands after shop renovation;
post environmental slogans in the malls and
organize activities in the theme of environmental
protection so as to enhance the public awareness
in saving the environment.

U0

- BRERE (&

BRUNER (&)
BlgEyEEEHE
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes
(continued)

The Group always advocates the belief in green
environmental protection and actively promotes
wastes classification in order to reduce non-
recyclable wastes. Therefore, we have set up
a waste classification team, established waste
classification management policy and procedure;
improved and enhanced the waste classification
facilities, and delegated personnel to monitor the
implementation progress of each department.
We have set up recycle bin for hazardous wastes,
kitchen wastes, recyclable wastes and non-
recyclable wastes according to the requirements
of the “Administrative Measures for Domestic
Wastes in Xi‘an City”; set up propaganda booths
to actively promote the knowledge on wastes
recycling and classification, and to advocate
the concept of “mixed wastes is garbage and
classification turns wastes into resources”, hope
to raise the proportion of the recyclable wastes;
assist the local government to promote wastes
classification; and to cultivate people’s habit
in waste classification; so as to reduce wastes.
For the wastes generated from equipment
repairs and maintenance inside the shopping
malls and supermarkets, and the construction
wastes produced by shops when they move
in or undergo renovation, we follow the local
urban waste disposal management requirements
to arrange wastes collection by construction
companies or the local government sanitation
department; and illegal dumping of waste is
forbidden. The Group started to collect data
on domestic wastes and domestic wastewater
from shopping malls and offices since March of
2019, and implemented the relevant measures
relating to the production, disposal and reduction
of domestic wastes. With the active support
of our employees, the Group’s environmental
management system has been enhanced
progressively, and will continuously optimize
various re-use and wastes reduction measures.
The Group focuses not only on its own business
operations, but also actively promoting the global
sustainable development trend.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Compliance

During the reporting period, the Group strictly
abides by the environmental laws and regulations
of the State and local ecology and environmental
bureaus, and the Group did not involve in any
confirmed violations or non-compliance incident
relating to emissions that had a significant impact
on the Group.

Management of Resources Utilization

The Group has been strictly complied with
the “Regulations on Energy Conservation
in Shaanxi Province”, the “Regulations on
Energy Conservation in Public Authority”
and the applicable energy-saving policies and
requirements of each city. We established an
energy-saving project management team to
carry out the energy-saving and emission-
reduction projects on shopping centers,;
continuously enhancing the projects by adopting
various measures to conform with the national
environmental protection policy of energy-
saving and emission-reduction. The Group
clearly understands the use of resources not
only increased the operating costs, but also
has impact on the environment. In order to
build a conservation-oriented enterprise, we
started monitoring and managing the Group’s
ESG data since 2016 to correct our wasteful
behavior in daily work and living. Besides, we
have also established “Employees’ Suggestion
Rationalization Management Measures” to
provide direct communication channel between
employees and the management in order to
advocate employees to participate in operation
management. We hope that employees can
raise up different effective recommendations
relating to their familiar working environment
and to formulate efficient energy-saving and
emission-reduction policy, further promote and
implement measures in energy-saving, emission-
reduction and efficient use of resources, thereby
reducing operating costs, creating publicity and
atmosphere of energy-saving and emission-
reduction in the working environment, and
minimizing the Group’s negative impact on the
environment.
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - IRIBRE (22
(continued)
2.  Management of Resources Utilization ERFERANER (£2)

(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption

Diesel and gasoline fuel-based vehicles are
mainly used for guest pick-up, business trips and
materials transportation. We analyze the monthly
fuel consumption data to regulate our employees
on the usage of vehicles. If abnormalities are
found, the vehicle administrators are required
to provide explanation. Drivers must plan the
routes before using the vehicles and use the
shortest route and the fastest way to reach the
destination. We also require the driver to stop
the engine to prevent engines idling; conduct
regular repairs and maintenance to reduce extra
fuel consumption and waste gas emissions due
to part failure. Besides, we also promote and
publicize the "low carbon travel” emission-
reduction measures, encourage employees to use
public transportations or the shared bikes within
the urban area to reduce use of vehicles, thereby
reducing emissions and greenhouse gas. We
hope the employees could deliver the message of
“Living Green” to their family and friends; and
to motivate more people to build an ecological
civilization together. During the reporting period,
the Group consumed approximately 11,409.00
liters of diesel and approximately 8,815.00
liters of gasoline; due to the phase-out of diesel
vehicles at the end of last year, the number
of diesel vehicles has been reduced from 8
vehicles to 3 vehicles, resulting in a decrease of
approximately 1,742.47 liters or 13.25% of diesel
consumption from the previous year; and we
purchased 2 gasoline vehicles for business needs,
thereby increased the gasoline consumption
by approximately 1,081.00 liters or 13.98% as
compared with the previous year.
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)
2. Management of Resources Utilization 2.
(continued)
Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption (continued)
Natural gas is mainly used in staff canteen
cooking utensils. We stipulate that the kitchen
staff should prepare food according to actual
needs, and reduce waste of natural gas due to
excessive food prepared. During the reporting
period, the Group consumed approximately
39,606.00 cubic meters (m3), representing a
decrease of approximately 12,487.00 cubic
meters or 23.97% compared with the previous
year. This is mainly because the operation was
suspended for one month as a result of the
COVID-19 epidemic. The staff canteen was
temporarily closed accordingly, thereby reducing
the consumption of natural gas.
During the reporting period, the Group’s use of
energy and Scope 1 greenhouse gas emitted are
as follows:
2019/2020
2019/2020F &
Cco,
equivalent
emissions
Consumption (Tonnes)
R
EBYHE
ERAE (W)
Direct Use of Energy:
EEfEAER:
Diesel 11,409.00 Liters
5 D 31.63
Gasoline 8,815.00 Liters
i AFH 23.87
Natural Gas 39,606.00 m?
RARR MK 72.54
Greenhouse Gas Emission 128.04
BEREHMEE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity ' 0.54
BERBHHEZE

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

EREANER (&)

GEH - BB RXAREHR
EHE (&)
AARETEANREIRERN
BEREEY BB EHEE
EREBRTEEHERY B

AEFERZRYMEFEBE
MRAR - RREHR K&
B B R AR 439,606.00
UHEK BREFETHKLD
12,487.0037 5 K2%23.97%
FTERHARIH B AZIE
FE UBAERY(EEE—
BA BEITZBETALMEE
FAHA BT RKARNE
ﬂE]o

R B3P - AR R B (S A AL
R HE R B — R = e
BRI -

2018/2019
2018/2019% &
CO,
equivalent
emissions
Consumption (Tonnes)
-8 774
EEHHKE
FEHE (g )
13,151.47 Liters
nF 35.22
7,734.00 Liters
~H 17.69
52,093.00 m?
AVAV IO 95.41
148.32
0.66
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - BIEBRE (E
(continued)
2.  Management of Resources Utilization ERFERANER (£2)

(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption (continued)

S U R KRR AE B
EE (&)

Note: Bt

! The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity 1 REEFEERENHNE
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters BEEEE S RPN ES
(m?) of the floor area of the shopping malls ZEEEA0.001F 7 K
and offices. During the reporting period, there EITETE  MRIBEEA
was no expansions in the shopping malls, BRI S Y
supermarkets and offices nor relocation or By BRTERBEAE
demolition project related to the business. R METI B SB I

T2
Management of Electricity Consumption BEHEANEE

The Group has always concerned about the
impact of its business operations on the
environment. However, due to the nature of our
business, high demand of electricity consumption
in shopping malls, mainly used in lighting and
air-conditioning. In order to balance the energy-
saving and emission-reduction target and
satisfying the customers’ needs, we strengthen
the management of electricity use within malls
and the publicizing effort of energy-saving and
emission-reduction in various aspects. We hope
to maximize the efficiency in electricity use,
and at the same time, build up habit in energy
conservation in our business environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the management of lighting system, the
Engineering Property Center strictly controls the
electricity consumption during renovation of
new brands and the existing brands, controls
the use of high-energy lighting, and at the
same time, recommend the use of LED energy-
saving lighting. The brands have to control their
electricity load, and turn off the lights when
there is no one in the shops. The Engineering
and Property Center conducts detailed inspection
and acceptance procedures on different aspects,
such as industrial art, fire prevention, safety,
design, resources and energy consumption when
the renovation is completed. These measures can
effectively control the energy consumption of
the brands in future operation. For the electricity
management of existing brands and the public
areas of the malls, other than continue to request
the brands to use LED energy-saving lighting,
we also adopt various electricity conservation
measures, such as, we only switch on the
monitoring lights and emergency lights during
non-business hours; the brands must apply in
writing and pay the extra electricity charges if
they demand additional electricity during non-
business hours. We will not provide additional
electricity if the brands or external units did
not submit the application and pay the extra
electricity charges. We implement regional
lighting arrangements, and turn off unnecessary
lights in some areas, thereby reducing the
electricity usage on lighting in the malls.
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Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the electricity management of air-
conditioning, we conduct regular repair and
maintenance and monitor the operation of air-
conditioning equipment inside the malls, clean
the facilities regularly, and carry out appropriate
energy-saving re-engineering for the facilities,
thereby increasing their output rate, and
reducing the additional electricity consumption
from abnormal operation. Besides, we adopt
appropriate measures to control the temperature,
timing difference and air volume of the air-
conditioning equipment, such as, we reasonably
adjust the temperature according to seasonal
change, real-time temperature data feed from
the monitoring system inside the malls and the
feedback from on-site personnel. We also adjust
on/off time of the facilities and the ratio of fresh
air supply, aiming at satisfying the comfort needs
of customers, and at the same time, achieving
the goal of energy-conservation.

The Group has established a strict review and
approval procedure for selecting suppliers of
power facilities and equipment, the suppliers
have to provide qualification certificates and
product manual. We compare the qualification
among different suppliers and evaluate different
criteria about the equipment (including energy
consumption, quality, function, etc.) prior to
purchase so as to reduce unnecessary energy
consumption due to unsuitable facilities and
equipment. The Engineering Property Center is
responsible for the daily inspection of offices
and shopping malls, and the organization,
planning, execution and inspection of energy-
saving and consumption reduction work, and
the maintenance staff conducts regular repairs
and maintenance on electrical facilities and
equipment. When faults or abnormal operations
are found, immediate repair is carried out
to reduce energy consumption and to avoid
accidents. We also actively conduct energy-
saving technological transformation for electrical
appliances to improve the power efficiency of the
unit.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the electricity management in office, we post
different energy-saving promotional slogans in
the offices; increase the natural lighting capacity
of the work place; encourage employees to
change their habit in use of electrical appliances
by turning off the unnecessary lights and
electrical appliances during lunch break and
after work, the computer and the printer are
set to automatic sleep mode. Restricted use
of air conditioners according to seasonal and
temperature changes, the temperature setting of
the air conditioner in summer and winter cannot
be lower than 26°C and not higher than 20°C
respectively, air conditioner should be turned
off 15 minutes before the end of office hours;
doors and windows must be closed when air
conditioners are turned on.

The Group believes that publicity and education
is also an important part of energy-saving and
emission-reduction work. Within the corporate,
we remind our employees to abide by the
energy-saving measures during the morning
assembly, so as to enhance their awareness in
energy-saving, and hope that employees can
understand that everyone must work together
to remain competitive under the fierce market
competition. We also hope that employees can
start from every little thing and are determinant
to avoid resource wastage, thereby enhancing
their environmental protection awareness in work
and life through participation in energy-saving
and emission-reduction activities. Besides, we
post various energy-saving slogans in shopping
malls, use electronic displays to publicize energy-
saving tips. We organize different promotional
activities in shopping malls to educate the public
about the relationship between energy usage and
the sustainability of the planet.
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Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

BB -#HE8K
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N RIERE (F

In response to the COVID-19 outbreak in early
2020, the country has requested the Group's
shopping malls and offices to suspend operations
for one month. During this period, the Group

conducted an extensive planned power outage,
disconnected all equipment and switched
off advertising light boxes inside the malls,

and left only the necessary and emergency
electronic equipment stay on in order to reduce
unnecessary power wastage. Therefore, the

Group consumed electricity of 34,350.62
megawatt hours (“MWh") during the reporting
period, representing a decrease of 4,513.71

MWh or 11.61% compared with the previous

year.

During the reporting period, the Group’s use of
energy and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emitted are

as follows:
2019/2020
2019/2020F &
Cco,
equivalent
Consumption emissions
(MWh) (Tonnes)
—&E1ehx
HTRAE EEHNE
(JEFLBF) (W)
Indirect Use of Energy:
R fE A ae R :
Electricity 34,350.62 31,447.23
EW)
Greenhouse Gas Emission 31,447.23
BEREHHEE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity ' 132.89

BEREBHHEZE

BEREANER (&)

BEORAWEE (&)

HRAE - - FFYE
BFAEARREMA Bk
$¢HXM%%$®&%

Ti=ZE—8 A Ei

$Elﬂﬁ%%IWLﬂ
f% ¥ T EARK
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%?
A R%TT%E&J@M
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RE ARASERBEHA
HE #£34,350.620K I B - &2
FEERAD4,513. 71K B
811.61%

N E A AREEE AR

&%ﬁﬂ%ﬁl = R g
BB R T &
2018/2019
2018/2019F &
Cco,
equivalent
Consumption emissions
(Mwh) (Tonnes)
k= |4
TRE EEHNE
(JEFLEF) (Mg )
38,864.33 36,204.75
36,204.75
160.06
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Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)
Note:

! The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m?) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the reporting period, there
was no expansions in the shopping malls,
supermarkets and offices nor the relocation or
demolition project related to the business.

Management of Water Resources
Consumption

The Group uses government-supplied water
sources in shopping malls and offices. Although
we do not encounter any water supply
problem during the reporting period, we clearly
understand the importance of water resources
for business operations and living needs;
therefore, we implement various measures to
enhance water resource use efficiency and to
avoid wastage. The Engineering Property Center
of each mall regularly collect and analyze the
statistical data of water consumption to monitor
the water usage. We educate and promote
the concept of “green life” to our employees
and customers by way of slogans, training
and publicity activities. We have implemented
a number of measures and retrofitted the
equipment in the malls; for the purpose of
reducing water use as long as the comfort of
the customers is not compromised. For example,
adjust the operating frequency of the water
pump motors flexibly so as to minimize the
electricity and water consumption, strengthen
water pipes inspection to avoid running,
dripping, leaking and long flowing water; re-
use condensed water from air-conditioning
equipment in the cooling tower, as the
temperature of condensed water is low enough
to reduce the temperature of the cooling tower
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(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Water Resources
Consumption (continued)

less energy is consumed, and at the same time,
reduced the frequency of water replenishment
into the cooling tower; install water-saving
faucets and reasonably adjust the volume of
water outflow; use foot valve manual flushing to
replace automatic induction flushing; regularly
check the water facilities to prevent water
leakage; immediately repair or replace when
problem is found, and keep detailed records.
The Group persistently instilling their employees
about the importance of the savings culture,
and puts up posters of different resource saving
methods in the office area, and demands the
employees to control the water flow at low
level, water tap should be turned off after use;
recycle washing water and use water-saving
spray gun for car washing. In addition to the
water equipment transformation projects carried
out last year producing results progressively; the
continued support of the water conservation
measures by our employees, customers and the
brands; business suspension for one month due
to the coronavirus epidemic; shortened business
hours of selected malls after operation resumed,
and also the overall number of customers
dropped; altogether led to a drop of water
consumption by approximately 55,361.14 cubic
meters or 16.92% during the reporting period
when compared with the previous year, and the
total amount of consumed water is approximately
271,879.67 cubic meters.
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Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Paper Consumption

In order to reduce the impact of our daily office
operation on the environment, the Group
actively promotes the “Paperless Office” policy,
sets up office automation system to enable
each department to distribute information and
documents in electronic format; paper purchase
by the procurement center and set up an office
paper distribution registration management
system; demand employees to check the format
of the document before copying or printing;
reduce the font size of the file to make full use
of the paper without affecting the legibility;
fully utilize paper by reusing single-sided papers,
and collect double-sided printed papers to
qualified recycler for handling. Because of our
active implementation of the office automation
management policy and the extensive use of
online checkout at various business operating
locations, effectively reduced paper consumption.
The overall paper consumption has been further
reduced due to the Group has suspended its
business for one month due to the coronavirus
epidemic. During the reporting period, the Group
has consumed paper of approximately 2.53
tonnes, representing a decrease of approximately
5.71 tons or 69.30% when compared with the
previous year.
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(continued)
3. Environment and Natural Resources BERRXARER

The Group has always been actively bringing
environmental responsibility into its daily
operations, energy consumption and waste
production is monitored and managed over the
years, and will continue to monitor, identify
and disclose the impact of our business
activities on the environment. The major impact
to the environment and natural resources
from shopping malls and offices operations
mainly come from waste gas, greenhouse gas,
wastewater and solid wastes generated from
the use of natural resources (including electricity,
natural gas, fuel, water, paper, etc.), and the
construction wastes and domestic wastes
generated from the operation of shopping malls.
Since the revenue from shopping malls operation
has been greatly impacted by the COVID-19
epidemic, in order for the Group to break
even and adhere to green operation, we have
switched our policy of investing in environmental
protection projects to further enhanced the
management of equipment maintenance,
monitor the equipment condition continuously,
focus on enhancing the quality of maintenance
and extend the useful life of the equipment, so as
to achieve the goal of raising efficiency without
increasing wastes. We will continue to promote
the cost control concept in advocacy of corporate
culture so that our employees can consciously
save resources, and at the same time, put in
more effort to advocate the concept of “save
one unit of electricity, save one tonne of water,
save a drop of oil, save a piece of paper, save a
penny”, manage resource utilization and enhance
the employees’ awareness of environmental
protection.

The Group will continuously pay attention to
climate changes and establish various effective
and appropriate measures with reference to its
operations, with an aim to reduce our carbon
footprint. We hope to share our efforts and
achievement on natural resources conservation
in this report, to convey the message of
environmental protection to the stakeholders,
so as to achieve a more powerful environmental
advocacy work and influence everyone to work
together to ease the climate change.
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Employees are our valuable assets and the key driver
for the Group’s sustainable and long-term business
development. We devote to create a non-discrimination,
equal, harmonious and safe workplace and establish
a comprehensive talent management mechanism.
In order to adhere to our governance philosophy
of attracting talent by means of “compensation”,
“relationship”, “career” and “working platform”,
we offer equal opportunities of advancement and
providing commensurate remuneration and various
benefits, and organize a variety of activities. The Group
enhances employees’ consciousness of innovation, work
flexibility and focus on commitment when dealing with
their customers, promotes full participation of all our
employees in management, encourages employees to
make rational recommendations and put into practice
so as to fulfill the mission of providing high quality
merchandizes and services to the customers. Besides,
we encourage employees to maintain harmonious
interpersonal relationships, promote team spirit of
cooperation and unity, bravely face difficulties and
overcome challenges. Our human resources policies vary
by locations to comply with the local labor laws and
regulations.

Talent Selection

The Group is a fair opportunity employer and respects
personal privacy. We have established recruitment policy
and procedures and adhere to the principle of merit
based and fair recruitment. The appropriate candidates
would be selected based on their morality, knowledge,
abilities and job requirements, and regardless of their
nationality, gender, age, geographical, religious beliefs.
The policy applies to all phases of the employment
relationship, including but not limited to, hiring,
promotion, performance appraisal, training, personal
development and termination. The Group actively
supports the rehabilitation plan for people with
disabilities and employed a number of employees with
physical disabilities during the reporting period.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Labor Standards

The Group cherishes human rights and prohibits any
unethical hiring practices, including child and forced
labor by conducting background checks (review the
identity documents of the applicants) in its hiring
process. Employees’ consent for working overtime
is required to avoid forced overtime work, and the
employees are compensated in accordance with the
applicable labor laws and regulations. During the
reporting period, the Group did not hire any applicant
under the legal working age in order to comply with the
local laws and regulations in respect of child and forced
labor.

Compensation and Welfare

The Group attracts and retains outstanding talents
with competitive remuneration packages and regularly
assesses their salary levels to ensure it is up to the
market standard. The Group benchmarks the up-to-
date remuneration data in its industry, and strives
to establish a fair, reasonable and competitive
remuneration scheme in order to ensure the pay level
of general staff is competitive in the region where the
Group operates; and the core members are remunerated
competitively within the industry. Employees’ salaries
level is decided based on one's knowledge, skills,
experiences and education background relevant to
their work requirements, and the Group implements
a remuneration system that consists of basic salary
and performance-based bonus. The employees’
remuneration package includes basic salary, seniority
salary, overtime pay, year-end bonus and performance-
based bonus, and so on. Other benefits include working
meals, messing allowance, communication allowance,
medical allowance, birthday gifts, Spring Festival gifts,
Mid-Autumn Festival gathering, bi-annual medical
checks, medical insurance, provision of group accident
insurance for employees in high risk job positions,
etc.. We provide anti-heatstroke and warm drinks and
supplies to special position workers (including security
guards, staff canteen’s employees, parking crews) during
high temperature and cold weather.
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(continued)
Compensation and Welfare (continued)

In order to enhance work quality and employee
competencies, the Group conducts periodic
performance appraisal and fairly assess the level
of awards, salary increment and/or promotion
recommendations based on a number of criteria,
including working experience, seniority, knowledge
and skills, performance, contributions, etc.. In the
performance appraisal process, the department head
communicates and discusses with employees about
their achievements, suggest areas for improvement, and
setting objectives and performance indicator for the
next appraisal period, so as to motivate the employees
for continuous improvement and to develop their
potential.

Besides, the Group provides social security benefits for
all employees following the requirement of the local
labor laws and social security laws and regulations.
The Group contributes to various social security
schemes (endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work injury insurance and
maternity insurance) and housing provident fund for the
employees in Mainland China, and contributes to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employees
in Hong Kong. The Group handles dismissal and
compensation in accordance with the local laws and
regulations.

The Group pays attention to its employees’ health
and encourages work-life balance, and protects their
rights of rest days and holidays such as annual leave,
maternity leave, funeral leave and work injury leave in
accordance with the local labor laws. Besides, the Group
cares about its employees’ physical and mental health
and organizes various leisure activities to enrich their
spare time. The details of activities are as follows:
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(continued)

Compensation and Welfare (continued)

Name of Activities

International
Women's Day
cultural activities

A series of activities
celebrating the
70th anniversary
of the founding of
the PRC

“Don’t forget your
heart and bear
your mission
in mind” Party
Group activities

"] recommend
and comment on
the good people
around you”
learning activities

Details of Activities

In order to celebrate the 109th
anniversary of the International
Women's Day on March 8th, it
embodied the Group’s special
care for female employees and
organized a variety of cultural
activities to allow them to relax
after working intensively and
fully display their styles.

The “Me and My Mother
Country” recitation, photography,
calligraphy, fine arts, and
essay writing competitions and
the classic recitation contest
celebrating the 70th anniversary
of the founding of the People’s
Republic of China.

From history and culture to natural
scenery, we commemorated the
revolutionary martyrs, learned the
spirit of the martyrs, and felt the
magical charm of nature together.

Actively recommended the good
people around you, and carried
out the learning activities of “I
recommend and comment on
the good people around you” in
various departments.

BTIHFEB (&)

EEERE

=\ BIER
CeEIL SRl
XALEE

EHZE70
BF &5
B

[ NS0
FRAE
ETEEH

ETN L
CLE TN
BB

RR HEREBRE

" BRREIER (&)

EERAR

REBRI=N]
PR &5 B % 20 E0109
FE BRAKE
BB THHR7IRE
F HBEEZY
B X LR B E i
MEZRIIEZER
BELIE TN R
R P R th e R

Ko

P [ 3 A1k &y
CRNGERE A
V&~ A BOUEm
LBEABREDF
AR MBS
TORFREAFBEXN
=

e/ e XX L2 B A
[0 AR QI T e
e R BB R
e HEERZT
KB R F B
o

BB S EHFA
RR A AR
RF [ AR - AT
- SN
e

HESHEHEERERLA

BN REER

85




86

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

(continued)

Compensation and Welfare (continued)

Name of Activities

Xi‘an City
orienteering
competition

Walking activities

Autumn games

Football match

Makeup competition

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

Details of Activities

Encouraged employees to
participate in the “2019 City
Orientation Competition”
organized by the Xi'an Municipal
Government, and the Group’s
Gao Xin store organized
two teams to participate in
the competition to cultivate
cooperation among employees.

Carried out fitness activities in a
low-carbon civilization, close to
nature, active and healthy way;
to allow employees enjoying
green ecology, feeling good,
and encourage employees to
do more exercise, develop good
habits, and promote good
health.

Held a rope skipping competition
for employees in autumn at
the main entrance of the mall
to enhance the cohesion of
employees and team morale.

The management cadres cooperated
with the brand suppliers in the
football match to enhance employees
communication with each other,
and to establish a closer team
relationship.

Halloween make-up contest is a
big morning party to celebrate
Halloween together, so that
employees can ease their work
pressure, and good for the
employees’ physical and mental
health.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Compensation and Welfare (continued)

Although the COVID-19 outbreak during early 2020
has severely impacted the Group’s business, the
Group did not reduce the employees’ compensation
and welfare, nor lay off any employee. In order to
protect the employees’ health and safety, the Group
has implemented various anti-epidemic prevention
measures. Please refer to the “Health and Safety” and
“Product and Service Responsibility” sections below for
details.

Development and Training

In order to align the staff career development with its
long-term corporate business plan, the Group sets up
staff training polices with reference to the departmental
human resources needs. The human resources
department established a comprehensive staff training
plan with an aim to build an excellent, well-trained and
responsible corporate team. This can enhance the staff’s
knowledge and management capabilities and improve
their work ability, performance and efficiency, and raise
their enthusiasm in work to activate team spirit.

New hires have to participate in induction training
and pass the assessment. The training topics include
corporate culture, site management, sales skills,
membership policies, service etiquette and skills, quality
awareness, fire safety (on-site public facilities). On
top of providing foundation training, we also provide
skills advancement, professional and management
training to ensure that staff possess professional theory
and knowledge, and new knowledge for overcoming
challenges in order to lay a solid foundation for long-
term development of employees and the Group.
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Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Development and Training (continued)

During the reporting period, in addition to the new
hire induction training, we also organized various
training programmes related to customer service and
operation in shopping mall, property management,
finance, ethics, employees’ health and work safety
(please refer to "“Health and Safety” section below
for details of employees’ health and work safety), etc.
The training topics include on-site service workflow,
simple English for reception, practice for greeting
customers, sales skills, good communication skill for
sales, merchandize management knowledge, ordering
process, property management rules, warehouse
management rules, operation of POS machines,
filling sales ticket techniques, employees’ professional
ethics, etc. In order to improve the effectiveness of
the training programmes, employees are asked about
their satisfaction and opinions as reference for next
year's training plan, after completion of the training
programmes.

Health and Safety

The Group pays attention to its employees’ health and
provides a safe work environment so as to prevent
occupational hazards and various incidents from
happening. We sign target responsibility statement
of “Setup Safe Workplace” with each subsidiary, and
formulate safe management team with reference to
the company’s operation. Management and employees
at all levels must clearly understand their own safety
responsibilities and strictly perform the requirements as
stated on the target responsibility statement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

The Group establishes a safety management manual
to strengthen its fire safety management in its
business sites, key departments and offices. Smoking
is prohibited for staff and customers; and we target to
keep our shopping centers, malls, supermarkets and
offices smoke-free. We designated staff to regularly
carry out fire prevention patrol every day at all locations
and critical departments; and keep patrol records. We
take immediate remediation or precautions once fire
hazards are found. In compliance with the local fire
prevention standards and policies, we have stringent
management on fire equipment and facilities; carry out
repairs and maintenance, and keep records.

In order to regulate the property management work,
we have established property management policies
and procedures. Engineering Property Center is
responsible for monitoring, inspection, providing
guidance and evaluation work. Employees have
to report to maintenance staff immediately when
repairs (such as electrical equipment, electric power
distribution equipment, facilities at shopping malls, air-
conditioners, drainage equipment, etc.) are needed for
shopping centers, supermarkets and offices so as to
ensure the customers’ and employees’ safety at these
locations. Staff of special work types (such as electrician,
welders) must possess valid license before they are
allowed to work; for example, to get a fire certificate
before using fire; carpenter should promptly clean up
with the sawdust and shavings after job completion;
inflammables, explosive, chemical or dangerous
materials are prohibited and no storage is allowed;
paint workers should not blend paints on-site or at the
locations close to fire or electric source; paints should be
covered with lids immediately after use.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

Training topics are mainly related to workplace
safety and occupational health. The Group raises its
employees’ safety awareness by providing appropriate
occupational health and safety training to introduce
the corporate development plan, enhance their
awareness on safety and continuously strengthen
their consciousness, improve their professional skills,
especially for those job positions under significant
potential safety hazards, and enable them to perform
their duties in a safe environment. Employees have to
report to the management immediately when incident
occurs or aware of any potential hazards. Safety
education and training work plays an important role to
ensure the workplace is safe. New hires must receive
safety training prior to put into work. This is to make
sure that staff have the necessary safety knowledge in
their position; familiar and able to master the safety
techniques required. Key and special positions (such as
fire control center) have to take professional training
and pass the examination before they are assigned to
take up the role. Firefighters have to be familiar with
and master the use of various types of fire prevention
facilities to ensure that they can operate with the
equipment for fighting fire. During the reporting
period, we organized various safety training activities
such as fire control training, knowledge on fire control
laws, central air conditioners operation process, split
air-conditioners maintenance training, elevator safety
knowledge training, and so on.
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VI.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

For the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, the Group
has adopted a number of epidemic prevention measures
for the sake of employees’ health and safety. After
business suspension at shopping malls, we demand
our employees avoid going to the areas with severe
epidemics and maintain daily communication with them.
Employees have to keep on reporting their location and
body temperature so that we know exactly their health
status. After the shopping malls resumed business, we
distributed epidemic prevention and control manual
to our employees, strengthened the staff education
on personal hygiene, provided anti-epidemic materials
such as masks, alcohol hand sanitizer, protective
clothing, protective glasses to employees, and stipulated
that employees must wear masks when working,
pay attention to hand hygiene; we also measure the
body temperature of employees every day, and use
“health code” to monitor employees’ health status.
Since employees are facing customers in the malls,
we have adopted a series of anti-epidemic measures
to enhance the hygiene management of the shopping
malls to protect the health and safety of customers and
employees. Please refer to the “Product and Service
Responsibility” section below for details.

Compliance

During the reporting period, the Group did not
involve in any non-compliance incidents relating to
employment, health and safety, and labor standards that
have significant impact on the Group.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

The Group conveys its concern on environmental issues
to its suppliers and business partners, and expects them
to implement similar practices. The Group also serves
to maintain long-term, stable and strategic cooperative
relationships with leading suppliers, and co-develops
with its suppliers on the basis of equality and win-win
situation.
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BE-HERERKSE

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Supply Chain Management (continued)

We have established centralized procurement
management manual to strictly control and monitor the
procurement process relating to materials, engineering
work and services. We have set up strict processes and
requirements in respect of the management of approved
suppliers, procurement methods, quality improvement,
procurement contract, etc.. in order to ensure the
procurement processes are carried out following the
principles of fairness, justice, openness, effectiveness,
integrity and ethical, and to enhance efficiency and
ensure good product and service quality. The centralized
procurement team is responsible for establishing
procurement policy and carrying out daily procurement
work. The audit team conducts qualification evaluation
and reviews the procurement process. The supervision
team monitors the compliance of procurement process,
handles reports and appeals relating to the procurement
process, corrects violated behaviors and penalizes the
employees for breaches.

To accept new suppliers, we will pay visits to their
business sites, and evaluate their certifications, internal
management policies documents, work manual,
operational status, etc. to make sure that they possess
the capabilities in fulfilling the obligations. We also
establish strict evaluation procedures for renewal of
merchandise suppliers, and regularly compile statistics
and review the performance of our suppliers, assess
their capability, business status and operational results;
in order to grasp the product sales situations and make
appropriate adjustment to our strategies. The evaluation
includes reviewing of their market position, their
overall capability, product quality, supply performance,
sales performance, quality service, business results;
and conduct a comprehensive evaluation based on
a combination of scores and text comments. The
evaluation result is sent to management to ensure
that the selected suppliers are competitive and possess
recognized qualifications and good internal control
system, stable quality, on-time delivery, laws and
regulations compliance. We have established policies
and procedures in supply chain management and
provided various reporting channels for employees,
suppliers, customers and other business partners
to report any violations and suspected abuse one’s
authority for own interest. During the reporting period,
the Group did not have significant issues relating to
violations in this respect.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product and Service Responsibility

“Customers’ needs give direction to our actions” is
our customer service philosophy, and we are customer-
oriented, aim at providing good quality service and
products to our customers. In order to strengthen the
brand products quality monitoring, to maintain our
reputation, to eliminate fake and shoddy goods, and
to protect the consumer rights and interests; we follow
the applicable local laws and regulations in brands
and goods selection; and monitor and manage closely
the brands and suppliers that we work with. We also
establish supplier renewal system to ensure that the
suppliers’ merchandises are continuously keeping at
high quality.

In order to build up an image of excellent service,
we strictly require our staff to pay attention to their
appearance, phone manner, reception etiquette,
conduct and behavior, dressing, job descriptions and
requirements, and service greetings, etc. We have
established service quality monitoring system to
accurately evaluate the company’s service quality, to
promptly remediate problems found, and to provide
customers with satisfactory services meeting their
needs. We frequently conduct customer satisfactory
survey to obtain feedbacks on our malls’ reputation,
merchandise and service quality, shopping environment,
service facilities, goods pricing, etc. in the form of
phone calls and on-site visit. We analyze and evaluate
our customers’ comments and suggestions; and to
formulate improvement plan to enhance our service
quality. We remind our employees of the service image
requirements and customers’ feedback during morning
assembly.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product and Service Responsibility (continued)

In order to strengthen the quality management of
merchandize and maintain the reputation of the malls,
we have established the “Merchandize Quality Control
Regulations” according to the national product safety
standards. Before the merchandize are placed on the
counter, the Operation Department have to check and
accept the brand products according to the acceptance
standards, and the Customer Service Department
monitors the merchandize acceptance process including
the appearance, shelf life, labels, safety, instructions
for use, etc., to ensure the products provided by the
suppliers comply with the national standards and our
requirements, and at the same time, to prevent the
inflow of fake or inferior merchandize and to protect
the legitimate rights and interests of consumers.

The daily operations of the Group in shopping malls
often involve the use of the others’ intellectual
property rights and portrait rights. In order to
prevent infringement behaviors, we have established
“Management Regulations Involving the Use of Others’
Intellectual Property Rights and Portrait Rights in
Propaganda”, strictly regulate the pictures, celebrities
portraits, copyrighted emoticons, text materials,
fonts, video and audiovisual materials used by us and
brand owners in promotion inside and outside the
shopping malls, and through different media. Any
promotion without the authorization from the owners
are strictly prohibited. We also regularly organize
training relating to the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Advertising”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Copyright” and the applicable
laws to strengthen the professional skills and litigation
awareness of the employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product and Service Responsibility (continued)

In order to strengthen our connection with customers,
we have set up membership system since 2000, member
services and concessions are given by member class;
a customer service consultant is assigned to each
of our senior members and focus on meeting the
customer’s personal preferences and needs; and we
become the pilot enterprise in the Northwest Region.
Confidentiality is one of the Group’s core values. We
set up management policies relating to information
security, information system network, set up access right
with information system to handle and store customers’
information diligently and confidentially, and to protect
customers’ privacy. All employees are strictly prohibited
to disclose any such information to third parties without
proper authority unless there is a legal or professional
right or duty to do so.

With the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, the Group
has implemented a number of preventive measures to
protect the health and personal safety of our customers
and employees, and the details are as follow:

o Launched the “Emergency Plan for Epidemic
Prevention and Control” and set up epidemic
prevention and control team to cope with the
situation of possible spread of epidemic in the
shopping malls;

o Posted a reminder “Safety first at time of
epidemic” in the malls;

o Put up posters to remind customers to keep a
safe distance of 1.5 meters from the staff in the
malls;

o Arranged staff at each entrance and exit to

scan customers “One code pass”. Customers
can access the malls only after measuring body
temperature and wearing face masks;
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R HEREBRKE

VI. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product and Service Responsibility (continued)
o Used spray disinfection to sterilize the public
areas, public facilities, waste mask disposal point,

etc. and increase the frequency of cleaning and
sterilization during business hours;

o Ceased to use central air-conditioning;

° Set up isolation rooms;

o Provide customers with anti-epidemic materials
such as hand wash liquid soap and alcohol hand
sanitizer

o Set up waste anti-epidemic materials (such as

masks) disposal point on each floor of the malls;

o The brand must sign “Epidemic prevention and
control commitment letter” to ensure preventive
and control work has been done, and can meet
the relevant government requirements.

Compliance

During the reporting period, the Group’s products and
services did not involve in significant issues relating to
violations nor did the Group receive any complaints
concerning breaches of customer privacy and loss of
data.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Anti-corruption

Maintaining an ethical working environment is one
of the Group’s core values. We have adopted a zero-
tolerance approach for all kinds of corruption, bribery
and extortion situation. Therefore, we set up internal
management system to regulate employees’ conduct.
Offenders who request and accept bribes, obtain
other illegal interests are heavily penalized, including
termination of employment contracts, sent to the
judicial authority (if violating local laws and regulations),
and so on. We conduct anti-corruption training and
case study each year and demand all personnel to
build a habit of strict compliance with policies and
procedures, and to prevent all bribery.

We bring the disciplinary monitoring work in the
business process, ensure that there are channels
(including for reporting boxes, email and hotline)
for reporting suspected cases of obtaining personal
interests in carrying out one's job duties, briberies,
extortion, fraud, money laundering in breach of
policies, regulations, and laws in strict confidence
to the Internal Control Department. We also set up
suggestion box and reward employees who make
good recommendations. We sign the anti-corruption
agreements with suppliers. During the procurement
and bidding processes, the Internal Control Department
participates in the procurement and bidding work to
monitor the compliance of each department (such
as bribery, receiving gifts and mis-behavior in the
bidding process, etc.); the Internal Control Department
also participates in the engineering work inspection
process, and is responsible for monitoring whether the
engineering companies are authorized, their employees’
qualification, whether the equipment is consistent
with the contract terms, and whether the company
has executed the inspection according to the process,
and so on. During the reporting period, the Group or
its employees did not involve in any litigation cases of
corruption.
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VIl. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

VIII.
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The Group is committed to building the corporate
culture of "open and creative, win-win, harmonious
development and community contribution”,
and devoted to charitable activities to show our
determination in taking up the social responsibility, to
care for the people in need and to push on building
a harmonious enterprise. During the reporting period,
we organized “Care for Children’s Village” activity to
give daily and study supplies to the kids with financial
difficulty and let the children fully feel our care towards
them. Besides, in order to align with the environment
protection policy of Xi'an Municipal Government, we
organized promotional activities at each shop to fully
promote the domestic wastes classification. This is to
build a correct concept of waste management, and to
raise the public awareness of environmental protection,
and achieved preliminary results.

The Group is a responsible taxpayer and offers job
opportunities to local people. We paid “five insurances
and housing provident fund” for staff in Mainland
China and the mandatory provident fund contributions
for staff in Hong Kong. We run our business following
good practices; we actively promote green energy-
saving and environmental friendly concepts; we set up a
role model for the industry; and to some certain extent,
we have contributed to social stability and building a
harmonious community.

HONOR

During the reporting period, the Group was awarded
the following important honors:

> “Advanced Unit” in Xi‘an Commercial Service
Industry “May First Labor Day” Commendation
Conference

> The Third Prize of Excellent Quality Control
Achievements in Xi‘an in 2019 was awarded for
the “Reducing Electricity Consumption in Office
Areas” topic of Pioneer QC Group

> The Second Prize of Quality Control
Achievements in Xi‘an

> “Advanced Trade Union” in the Economic and
Technological Development Zone in Xi‘an
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE IMPLEMENTATION

ESG Committee is established and chaired by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. The committee members
include representatives from major departments,
including the Human Resources Department, the
Marketing Planning Department, the Enterprise
Management, the Internal Control Department, the
Engineering Property Center, the Finance Department,
the Employees’ Union, etc. The ESG Committee will
follow the requirement of laws and regulations; and to
conduct business following appropriate best practices;
like setting up ESG targets, policies, procedures and
guidelines. In order to promote our Group's business
and the long-term sustainable development of the
local community of our business locations, we improve
our corporate governance, protect the environment,
engage our stakeholders and to contribute to the
society. We have five ESG Task Forces under the
ESG Committee, with keys members from the
related departments assisting the ESG Committee to
supervise and monitor the progress of various ESG
activities, to coordinate in setting up key performance
indicators, to regularly assess the effectiveness, and
to hold seminars to enhance the staff awareness in
environmental protection. The Group also collects the
appeal and feedbacks of stakeholders through various
channels. For example, customers, suppliers/brands
and shareholders can make their recommendations
via customer service center, Procurement Department/
Brand Business Department, and general meeting of
listed companies. The Group also set up suggestion box
to collect employees’ suggestions which are directly
sent to the management. The management implements
the relevant suggestions after evaluating the feasibility.
During the reporting period, the management has
followed the employees’ suggestions and adjusted the
temperature by regions in the malls to reduce electricity
consumption. The ESG Committee is responsible for
submitting reports and improvement proposals to the
Board on a periodic basis.
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IX. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND h BE HSNELNHIT
GOVERNANCE IMPLEMENTATION (#)
(continued)

The terms of reference, organizational structure
reporting line and members of the ESG Committee are
as follows

ESGRE g BERE AR E
EREEBLKEWT

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
Leader: Chief Executive Officer
(Secretary of the Committee: Company Secretary of the Group)
RE HEREREES
EE THEAR
(REEWE AAWE)
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Community and

Shareholders/Investors

Focus Task Force

REEMUE
Bixa

Xi'an - Enterprise
Management

BR-CRER

To maintain good
communication with
shareholders and
other stakeholders,
and to enhance
shareholders' value
in the long run

To care for the
community and
people in need;

to ensure that

the interests of

the community

are considered in
conducting business
activities

BRRMEMRDER
FRENER BSHK
ROREEE
BOHERAFTEA
T BREBEHEZ
AL H) P2

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

Employees and

Occupational Safety

Focus Task Force

BINBZR
g

Xi‘an - Human

Resources Department

AL - ANERH

To care for our
people, from
recruitment, training
to developing our
employees

To maintain good
communication and
interactions with the
management team
To give appropriate
encouragement

and recognition to
employees

To provide a

safe working
environment

To prevent briberies,
extortion, frauds and
money laundering

BIBTMEE BE
MR
RERERERITMNE
BHEE
HETHTEENSE
RERE
RELZEZNTERA
BRIl 9% K5F
REBEHDE

Convenor

BE HERERZEE

BEA

Suppliers Focus Task

Force

HERE
mixa

Xi'an - Purchasing
Department

A% —RER

To pay attention to
product safety from
suppliers

To focus on the
procurement
procedures and the
practice in supplier
selection

To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
suppliers and to
build up trust; so as
to keep the good
reputation, integrity
and sustainable
development of the
Group

MIftEEERLE
BIRBRFNERH
fEAED|

B EERE RIFHE
BHNRVER MR
SEMBE HENT
RELER

Customers Focus Task

Force

EF
mixha

Xi‘an - Customer

Service Department

AZ-BER%A

To concern about
the customers’
service quality
expectations

To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
customers and to
build up trust; so as
to keep the good
reputation, integrity
and sustainable
development of the
Group

To focus on
protecting our
customers' rights
and interests; and
their privacy
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Environmental Focus
Task Force

BRERE
mixa

Xi'an - Engineering
Property Center

BEZ-TRHRTL

To cultivate a
corporate culture in
promoting energy
conservation, to
prevent pollution, to
reduce emissions and
to reduce wastes

To pay attention to
the environmental
protection related
policies, measures
and effectiveness
(including setting

up of KPIs and
performance
evaluation)
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VISION OUTLOOK +- RRES

As a good corporate citizen, the Group strives to strike
a balance between achieving the corporate economic
goals and business objectives, and to fulfill their
social responsibility. We will continue to evaluate our
performance in environmental protection, employee
care, merchandise/service quality and community
investment and to build edge for the sustainable
development of the Group.

The Group will endeavor to comply with the stringent
laws and regulations of environmental protection,
allocate resources to improve equipment and facilities
using natural resources. We will also put employee
satisfaction and production safety as its top priority. The
Group aims at attracting more talents through providing
a safe workplace and competitive remuneration
scheme. As for merchandise and service quality, we will
continue to invest resources for further enhancement
of our employees’ service quality and to provide better
customer service and high quality merchandises to
our customers. We are also committed to fulfilling our
social responsibility by actively participating in charitable
activities and promoting the community’s sustainable
development.

The Group aspires to become a respectable enterprise.
Going forward, the Group serves to enhance its business
performance through implementation of sustainable
development strategies and to generate more
meaningful long-term value for the enterprise and its
stakeholders.
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Xl. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA +— REZEREFE

SUMMARY
Unit 2019/2020 2018/2019°
By 2019/2020 2018/2019
R s
Greenhouse gas (“GHG") Emissions:
BERME:
Scope 1':
gE-—"
Total Tonnes 128.04 148.32
mE g
Intensity 3 Tonnes 0.54 0.66
=3 Mg
Scope 22
gE—
Total Tonnes 31,447.23 36,204.75
wme 48
Intensity 3 Tonnes 132.89 160.06
=2 Mg
Air Emissions:
BERBHERE:
Nitrogen Oxides Kilograms 246.88 166.76
AEW NN
Sulfur Oxides Kilograms 0.31 0.31
mEY /Ny
Particulate Matters Kilograms 13.87 10.05
LR R N
Non-hazardous Wastes *:
EEE R ED:
Total Tonnes 100.53 2,648.40
we 183
Intensity 3 Tonnes 0.42 11.71
=3 Mg
Packaging Materials Used for Merchandise:
BmATRAEEME:
Total Tonnes 65.58 89.40
we 183
Intensity 3 Tonnes 0.28 0.40
=3 Mg
[

1 02 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20




XI.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY (continued)

Energy and Water Consumption:

RARRERERE:

Electricity:

g5
Total
mE

Intensity 3
mE

Diesel:
£y
Total
wme
Intensity 3
B

Gasoline:
FUH
Total
me
Intensity 3
el

Natura gas:
RAARR:
Total
wE
Intensity 3

Water:
KER:
Total
we
Intensity 3

Unit
B

MWh
JK EL B
MWh
JK FL B

Liters
AT
Liters

A%t

Liters
AT
Liters

A

Cubic meters
AVAYS I
Cubic meters
3K

Cubic meters
VAN
Cubic meters

2019/2020 2018/2019°
2019/2020 2018/2019
FRE FR
34,350.62 38,864.33
145.16 171.81
11,409.00 13,151.47
48.21 58.14
8,815.00 7,734.00
37.25 34.19
39,606.00 52,093.00
167.36 230.30
271,879.67 327,240.81
1,148.88 1,446.69
HESTEHEERER DA
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Xl. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY (continued)
Notes: BT :

- BEABBRAEE ()

104
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Scope 1 refers to the Group’s business direct GHG
emission, including combustion of diesel, gasoline and
natural gas.

Scope 2 refers to the Group’s business indirect GHG
emissions, including consumption of purchased
electricity.

The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity is
calculated based on 0.001 square meters (m?) of the
floor area of the shopping malls and offices. During
the reporting period, there were no expansions in
the shopping malls, supermarkets and offices nor the
relocation or demolition project related to the business.

During the reporting period, all shopping malls did not
carry out any renovation works, so no construction
waste was generated, and the non-hazardous waste
was the domestic waste produced by the employees of
all shopping malls and offices. Domestic waste data is
a multiple of average daily weight of waste produced
by each person and the number of employees at month
end.

Part of the data for the previous year are restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation.
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RR HEREBRE

"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND += - FEBBEX

GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY

HKEX

General Disclosure/
Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs")
—BWE
BRENEE

Aspect A1
EmEA1

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI A1.1

B 5 45 R IR AT

KPI'A1.2

BB AR IRAL.2

KPI'A1.3

BB AE IR IRAL3

KPI'A1.4

BB E IR IRA14

LY

Reporting Guideline

mEE S
A. Environmental
AEBE
Emissions
B

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

BRABERIORERBHN MKE LS BERES

BEYMHELESTH:

(a) BUR K&

(b) BEFHETABEAZENHBERELRONER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BETE R R AR R B DB

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

&Zﬁ%ﬁf%ﬂ#ﬁﬁzg (RWEETE) R (ER)EE (Mg E
S8 -BHERKETE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FIEXEEREEYRESE (BAHE) R (WER)EE (I
GERE - SHERNHE

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FEABREEEYESE (ABE) R (ER)EE (1A
SEREH - SERIEHE) -

ZFRARAXF

B (RIR - HERES iﬁ%

Page
B
67 - 70
102 - 104
70 - 78,
102 - 104
N/A'
A
102 - 104

HESHEHEERERLA

BN REER
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Xill. “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND + - - EBBEXBEFAERATF
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY B RE - HERERRE
HKEX (continued) Eal) (&

General Disclosure/

Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs") Reporting Guideline Page

—RiEE

ERENER HREEL H#

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results 67 -70
achieved.

BB IR IRALS i URUE B E B R S PSR -

KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous 1 and non-hazardous wastes 68
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.

RSB IR IRAL.6 HEEBEFNNEZTEEYN T E BREELESNERKL
FRIGRCR

Aspect A2 Use of Resources

EmA2 BERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, 70 - 80
water and other raw materials.

—RIRE BEHERER (BIERIR K KEAM R E) BB R

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.q. 70 - 78,
electricity, gas or oil) in total (MWh) and intensity 1 (e.g. per 102 - 104
unit of production volume, per facility)

RS AE I IR A2.1 REASSWEER SEELR(WE Rh) BFEE
(ATETERARE) REE (MAGESEM  BBERMET

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 1 (e.g. per unit of 78 - 79,
production volume, per facility). 102 - 104

BA 52 AR IR IRA2.2 BAEKELRTZE (WAGEEEMN BERBTE) -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results 78 - 80
achieved

R B BIEIRA2.3 el it e R 52 A A e 5t BI PR IBACR

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 78 -79
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

BB RIEIRA2.4 3t SR EGE AR R R A AR - DA KRR T+ /K a5t &l
KNEFEHR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for merchandise (in tonnes) 102 - 104

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

BB AE IRIRA25

and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced 1.
EmAREMANESE (AEEE) R (ER) BESE
R E-
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“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND +=-
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY
HKEX (continued)

General Disclosure/

Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs")

—RiRE
BREXER

Aspect A3

ETA3
General Disclosure

— R

KPI' A3.1

S 48 B 1Z A3 1

Aspect B1
EmEB1

General Disclosure

—RKE

Aspect B2
[EmB2

General Disclosure

—RIKE

BB -#HE8K

é;ﬁ%ﬁA/\
wal) (&)

Reporting Guideline
HEES

The Environment and Natural Resources
RERKXKAER

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources

BAEETAHRBEMRAEREREATZENBEK

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
HMAEBEHEHRRERARAAERNEAFEREENER
BERTENTE-
B. Social 2
B.i &2
Employment and Labor Practices
&M1&
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
ERFMEFE RELRSEA TERE R TE#E -
%Al » RIBAR A I H 5738 S A8 A A
(a) LR &
(b) BEFHETABEAZENHBERELRANER -

Health and Safety

RERZZ

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

FARMLZ2TEFRERREREEREBELEEMN:

(@) R &

(b) BFHEITABERTENEAERZLBROINER -

EREE

ZFRARAXF

B (RIR - ERES iﬁ%

Page

H¥

81

81

82 - 87

88 - 91

HESHEHEERERLA
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XIl. “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND +=-
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY
HKEX (continued)

B CRE - HERE
Eal) (&)

General Disclosure/

Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs")

—RiEE
BREJER

Aspect B3

JE B3
General Disclosure

— R

Aspect B4
B B4

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Aspect B5

fE T B5
General Disclosure

— PR ER
Aspect B6

fETAIB6
General Disclosure

— R E

Reporting Guideline
HEES

Development and Training

B R RIE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRARTHE B B1T TVERE &0 A 3 X B RS B BUR © #3531
EE)

Labor Standards

BITEH

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labor.

BRAP IEE T ka4 THY:

(a) LR &

(b) BFHETABEATENHBEE LRGN ER -

Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

ERHEENRE R GRBRIBE -

Product and Service Responsibility

BmAREEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress.

BHMREHERANRENEREZY BES SEALES

B A KA RTT AR

(a) BUR K&

b) BEFHETABEAZENHBERELRONER -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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RR HEREBRE

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND + = ERBEBAETZFAARLTH
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE" BY By <<f—iﬁ, HtENERRS
HKEX (continued) oy (&)

General Disclosure/
Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs") Reporting Guideline Page
—REE

AREERER &Ll B
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption
[EmEB7 RES
General Disclosure Information on: 97

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—RIRE B ILBE R BEERAREN:
(a) LR &
(b) BFHBEITABERTENEEEZRBROINER -
Aspect B8 Community Investment
[ 1 B8 HERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the 98

needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.
— R ER FHENME2ERERLEEMETRFENBRELEBRS
BeEEMRNRAEE-

Notes: Mt 5% -

! The Group's main business is operating department " AEBETFEXBFREEHRER
stores, shopping centers and supermarkets. We did not 5-BY+ ’U&@/@Z s At
generate any hazardous wastes. REEFEEMBEZEY -

2 Pursuant to Appendix 27 of the “Main Board 2 AR (EHRLEDRAD Hir27
Listing Rules”, the KPIs under Area B “Social” are BE [ EZHIER S | AVEHAE
recommended disclosures only. Therefore, the Group MIERR B F KB H bt
choose not to disclose those KPIs in this report. FEBRETHEZLSHRBAN

FEHE o
® e RBRERERAR

BN REER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BR RS

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 119 to
264, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2020, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2020 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill

BB R ER

R

ARERER (&)

Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(f).

AL E RN T 15 R F2(08) & BUE -
The Key Audit Matter
BRELEE

As at 31 March 2020, goodwill, which arose from
business acquisitions of department store and
supermarket operations in prior years, amounted to
RMB222.8 million and accounted for approximately
3.0% of the Group’s total assets at that date.
Impairment losses on goodwill of RMB470.6 million
were recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 (31 March
2019: RMB194.7 million).
R_Z_ZEF=A=+—H BE (ABEFEETA
ERSMBRTSEER 2 EBWEMEL)EARK
222,800,0007T ' iz B BEEBEMAEEL3.0% - NE
—ECRFE A=+ -HIFEZRABRRADHE
REBZ REEBEAR®A470,600,000T (ZE—NF=
A=+—H: AR#¥194,700,0007T ) °

The financial performance of the Group’s department
store and supermarket operations, as a consequence of
slow down in economic growth in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"), as well as intense competition
from surrounding shopping malls and online retail sales,
has underperformed management’s expectations when
these businesses were acquired, which has increased the
risk that goodwill related to these business acquisitions
may be impaired.

HRPEARAMBE ([HE])QEERBENIKEE
BREYHLEG ITENHEFNE . EEEBEERS
NBRMSRENMBERBEEREREBWEZ S XK
BIEHE - BN T ARBREZE XN E R ERENR

e o
AA

Management performs impairment assessments of the
relevant CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated
at the end of each reporting period. Management
compares the carrying amount of each CGU with its
recoverable amount, which is determined by assessing
the value-in-use based on discounted cash flow
forecasts.
EREENSREPREESEHENHEBARSELSE
fETREM G - ERERSReEEEUMNREER
HAiE B JRE£ENERERERE SR
FERIFHEEREEMEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EPMEZDUMNEEEREEE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
goodwill included the following:

BAFERBERENEZEFERA TSR

o assessing and challenging the Group’'s
identification of cash-generating units
(“CGUs") and the allocation of goodwill
and other assets to those CGUs;
EkER SEBHHESEARM ([H
CEABM)NBRAZEFHECELE
UoREHEREMBEE:

o assessing the reliability of management’s
cash flow forecasting process by
comparing the previous year's forecasts
with the current year’s results, discussing
significant variances with management and
considering the effect of such variances on
the current year’s forecasts;

FERG F—FENTRRERFEE R
FHMEERERSRTEAERRN A EL - BE
BEINREANRE WEBZREHAFE

TEORI Y S22
o involving our internal valuation specialists

to assist us in evaluating management’s
valuation methodology, in assessing the
discount rate applied by comparison with
the discount rates for similar companies in
the same industry;

ZH RPN ABEEZE KB HFIFFEEIR
BrMETE NERLBRBETTERUURF]
BRI R - LT ER AR BE IR &

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BR RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill (continued)
AERENE (&)

The Key Audit Matter

BREZSE

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, in particular in forecasting revenue growth
and operating profit and in determining appropriate
discount rates.

mEMRBEERBASREBEEELERHEG  LHE
FETROBI M 25 38 F= I 48 2 0 T A I BB TE B O B 3R R B o

We identified the assessment of impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter because the carrying
value of goodwill is material to the consolidated
financial statements, and also because management'’s
forecasts of the future cash flows involve certain critical
judgements in respect of the assumptions made,
which are inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

BPRREERENFTEE - ERAREZFE REZ
HENRAEHGSVBRIBEN BEBREHARK
RerRfEAy REMAELRRKRNSE THEEAE Mz
ZHEARE FRTEES  AIRXIEEERANTE -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

ARERSER (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMNEZRTNAEEEREE

obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis
and challenging the key assumptions to
which the outcome of the impairment
assessments was most sensitive, including
forecast revenue and forecast profit
margins, and considering if there was
any indication of management bias in the
selection of these assumptions; and
ERERENGREDN  GEUREN LA
REBUROERKRR (BRETEA R IEA
MER) ZEERAEMTRBRERE
EEEZERRBEFEEERERR &

considering the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of the impairment assessments.

Z R A M MR A R ER A HEE



Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

R

ARERER (&)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and investment property

REBRAZIHREFURKRENEMLE

Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(h)

and (i)

EREGE A IEIREZMN T 1213 K HT5E2(h) % () & 51 B 5 o

The Key Audit Matter
HREXEE

The Group is engaged in the operation of department
stores, a shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC.
EEBTENFETELLAERNS BYPLRBR
iz

The Group’s land and buildings held for own use and
investment property are revalued at the end of each
reporting period and are stated at their fair values.
EXEEREERAZ I M RBTFURREMEN S REN
REM BHEAABAR-

As at 31 March 2020, land and buildings held for own
use and an investment property with aggregate fair
value of RMB4,109 million accounted for approximately
55.6% of the Group’s total assets at that date. Valuation
loss on an investment property of RMB28.7 million
and surplus on revaluation of land and buildings held
for own use of RMB9.4 million were recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March
2020 (31 March 2019: valuation loss of RMBNil and
surplus on revaluation of land and buildings held for
own use of RMB18.7 million).
RZZE_ZTF=A=T—RB B2 EBERARE
4,109,000,000THFEB M Z L MEBFIARIRE Y E
E%A BESEREEANSS6% HBE_T_ZTF=A
=+—BLEFE ERXFeEaEtE2EKRERER
REWE Z HEREBARK28,700,000T RFEEBAZ
T REF 2 B AR ARY9,400,0007T (ZF—NF
A=+ —HAEBBARKZTUARFEERAZLE
wREF 2B LB ARK18,700,0007T) °

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BENERTFNMEEEREE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
leasehold land and buildings held for own use
and investment property included the following:
BIFEARBIEE R T RIEFARRE YR
BENBEZREFEENATEE:

o assessing the external property valuer’s
qualifications, expertise and experience and
considering the external property valuer’s
objectivity and independence;
AHEINBEMEMNER BREER
WEREZE M RE LM

o assessing whether the properties held by
the Group were valued on a consistent
basis using a consistent methodology by
inquiry of management and the external
property valuer;
FRERNEIRRE RN Y E L ER - 5T
h BEEEFANDERSER —BIA
B BEEME:

o involving our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in assessing the valuations
prepared by the external property valuer
by evaluating the valuation methodology
adopted and comparing the valuations with
recent sales transactions of properties of
the same type and in the similar location as
the Group’s properties which were subject
to valuation; and
ZBEFR P80 N B B B K 15 B B AP a7 (il o
Y EEEMRRNGE ST EFTRAE G
ERE EBEER EXEBHEMENRR
ARMEERNDEOOHEER S &

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BR RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) HEEZEE(F)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and investment property (continued)
BFEBAZIHREFURRENEMSE (F)

Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(h)

and (i).

BRMEA M ERERMTGE12R 13U KM aE2(h) & () & 51 B 5% -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BAREXRSE RPN ERTNATERESRESEE

The fair values of land and buildings held for own use e considering the disclosures in the
and the investment property were assessed by the board consolidated financial statements in respect
of directors based on independent valuations prepared of the valuation of land and buildings held
by an external property valuer using certain estimates, for own use and investment property.
which included comparable market prices. ZREEMBHRERPAEBAFIEER 2 L1
FIEERZ LM REFURREMENAABIIRES NEFURKREMEHENKE-

SENINEMEEEMERE T (BEAELEKD
SER) mAENB LA EM TG -

We identified the valuation of land and buildings held
for own use and investment property as a key audit
matter because of the significance of their value to the
Group’s total assets and also because determining their
fair values involves a significant degree of judgement.
BHABRRFIEERAZ L REBFURKREMENEER
—HAREZEE RASHEEY E£EHAEER
BEX BEFTEARBEYREXNEERNHE-

1 1 4 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
M % BET 3R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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B & BR RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheung Tsz Chung.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

REE®X

—F_FESA=+—AIFER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # %=

(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”))  (UARE ([AR%])Z5])
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ft i AR¥TF T AR FT
(Note)
(K1aE)
Revenue W 2 4 642,012 1,054,065
Other net income HoAt)F A 5 10,629 3,895
Cost of goods sold BEmiER A 19 (252,183) (517,105)
Sales and other taxes and surcharges $H& & E b £ 18 & M hn & (19,810) (28,535)
Staff costs 8 TR 6(b) (125,151) (144,066)
Rental expenses HeMAX (1,059) (39,772)
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 (165,095) (143,350)
Utilities expenses NHEEERS (34,032) (37,770)
Advertisement expenses EERX (6,361) (21,456)
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE 15 (470,605) (194,728)
Other operating expenses HoAth 4% 2 7 2 6(c) (747,635) (90,878)
Loss from operations REEE (1,169,290) (159,700)
Valuation loss on an investment REYFEHEEE
property 13 (28,700) =
Net finance costs B E AR 6(a) (118,509) (88,107)
Loss before taxation BR &R A E5 18 6 (1,316,499) (247,807)
Income tax P15 7 3,909 (16,018)
Loss for the year REEEIE (1,312,590) (263,825)
Attributable to: HUTALEMN:
Equity shareholders of the VNN 35S
Company (1,279,095) (261,575)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR B = (33,495) (2,250)
Loss for the year AEEEE (1,312,590) (263,825)
Loss per share BREE
Basic (RMB) EXR(ARET) 11(a) (0.550) (0.113)
Diluted (RMB) e (AR%T) 11(b) (0.550) (0.113)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under the transition
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See

Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 129 to 264 form part of these financial

statements.

fat: ARECERRETERE R-F—N
FIHA—-—HERERERMEHRE LR
F165% - RIBAMEFMBEZL  LLRER

WARES - BHIFE2(C) °

F1298 2648 2 MisF AR Z S 15 R &

Z D ©

HESHEEXERERDA

BN REER
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEeRmRHEME2EKa R

For the year ended 31 I\/Iarch 2020 BE—F-_FTF=HA=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB)  (AAR#Z31)
2020 2019
—BERE —E-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ftaF AR¥F AR®TFT
(Note)
(Ktat)
Loss for the year rEEER (1,312,590) (263,825)
Other comprehensive income  AFEHZE K (KMNRH
for the year (after tax and EHREHFSERAE) :
reclassification adjustments):
Items that will not be reclassified HrEEFHEEERIEE
to profit or loss:
— Surplus on revaluation of land  —EHFBIEERZ L RIEF
and buildings held for own AR
use 10 9,365 18,695
— Equity investments at —BAnBEFEREEEHE
fair value through other AEMEEKZ Z ERRE
comprehensive income (non- (e ElEE)
recycling) 10 (59,667) (37,231)
(50,302) (18,536)
ltem that may be reclassified BRI EF N HEERCIEA -
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on —REREINEK ZERZ5
translation into presentation
currency 10 (17,192) (14,438)
(17,192) (14,438)
Other comprehensive income AEEH M2 mE U
for the year (67,494) (32,974)
Total comprehensive income rFEEXHRELE
for the year (1,380,084) (296,799)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEREBERHEMEZE KRS KR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # %=

—E—F

— = —=

F=FA=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB) (LA R Z7)
2020 2019
—EBERE —E-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ftaF AR¥TFRT ARKFIT
(Note)
(Ktat)
Attributable to: BT ALTEN:
Equity shareholders NN ES
of the Company (1,336,970) (288,549)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR 2 (43,114) (8,250)
Total comprehensive income AFEEXHRELE
for the year (1,380,084) (296,799)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under the transition
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See
Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 129 to 264 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R R

At 31 March 2020 R=ZZF=-FF=A=+—H
(Expressed in RMB) (XA R#Z231)

2020 2019
—g-®¥F —T-AF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it 7% AR¥FT ARETF T
(Note)
(Ktat)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - mERFRE 12 3,053,173 3,122,037
Investment property wEYE 13 1,265,300 1,294,000
Intangible assets mILEE 14 424,812 424,812
Goodwill RS 5 222,818 693,423
Prepayments for acquisition of Wy B ) 2 > FE NP ERIE
properties 17 1,485,125 1,394,869
Other financial assets Hthe@MEE 18 182,400 252,600
Interests in joint ventures REBDERESZ 1 1
Deferred tax assets R FIE A B 26(b) 35,990 18,239
6,669,619 7,199,981
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 19 27,562 41,823
Trade and other receivables P 52 PR TR B L At JRE MR 20 193,197 475,157
Cash at bank and on hand RITHEFELFEAS 21 500,806 544,690
721,565 1,061,670
Current liabilities REERE
Trade and other payables FE < BR S0 % H b B < 50 22 1,122,327 1,135,079
Bank and other borrowings BT REMESE 23(a) 1,465,886 866,401
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 23,198 =
Income tax payable S FT S H 26(a) 34,337 38,970
2,645,748 2,040,450
Net current liabilities REEEEE (1,924,183) (978,780)
Total assets less current BEERARBAERE
liabilities 4,745,436 6,221,201
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Long term payables EHAE R 94,046 =
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEAMEE 23(b) 1,241,517 1,498,000
Lease liabilities MEBE 24 61,911 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEAE 26(b) 639,244 634,976
2,036,718 2,132,976
NET ASSETS EESH 2,708,718 4,088,225

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GmeBBERRER
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-_ZFHF=H=4+—H
(Expressed in RMB) (LA R Z7)

2020 2019
—®F —T-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ff &t AR T T AREFT
(Note)
(Ktat)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR B 27
Share capital CREN 199,369 199,369
Reserves fE & 2,422,509 3,758,902
Total equity attributable to AT RERELEREL
equity shareholders of the
Company 2,621,878 3,958,271
Non-controlling interests FEERRER 86,840 129,954
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 2,708,718 4,088,225

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using Hiet : REEEERLIEETERE RZZT—A

the modified retrospective approach. Under the transition FMA—BEREREAEMBHREED
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See F165%  IRIBFTE RN IBE A EERER
Note 2(c). AW AREF o B FE2(c) °

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on KESENR_ZT_TFAZTLBHE

29 June 2020. KA RET) o
Huang Shunxu Qin Chuan
=4 =]l
Chairman Director

== -
The notes on pages 129 to 264 form part of these financial 512952645 2 Mt 5 VK Z S R &K
statements. Z BB e

()
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEagB X

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BHZ-—ZFE-FF=HA=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB)  (AAR#Z31)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARREE

Shares

held under Fair value

share Property reserve  Fair value Non-
Share Share award Capital ~ Contributed  revaluation (non- reseve  Statutory  Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium scheme reserve surplus reserve recycling) ~ (recycling) Teserves reserve profits Total interests equity

EER

SR NEERE NRERE DLERR

Bx  BOEE RELRR  EREE  BAER BE  (FUBE)  (THE)  EREE  EXEE  REEH Ait  FERER
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBUOO  RMB000 RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBUOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  AMBOOO
ANEETT ARBTT AREFT AREfT AREFR NEETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ¥Fr ARETT AREFT

(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note

27)) 200) 27 270 27d)i) () 27@) 27 i) 27(d)vii)

(F (

(fst

A

{ {

271)) 00) 7)) 270) 276, 2700)  27a)  270)i)
Balance at 31 March 2018 REB-NEZA=+-REH 199369 113659 (2922 (31,572) 995,255 1,125441 - (36,591) 129,585 127,530 610670 4,247,360 138239 438559
Impact on initial application of ~ EREREEHHREE
HKFRS 9 s e = = = = = (29,340) 36,591 - - (8970) (1,719) (35) (1,754)
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018~ H=Z-NEME-AzEE
E i3] 199369 1,136,595 09) IS W55 115M1 (29,340) - 19585 127530 601700 4245641 138204 4,383,845
Changes in equity for the year, ~ AEEEHEH:
Loss for the year S 5 = 5 5 - = = - (61575)  (261575) (2250 (263825)
Other comprehensive income - - = - - 18,695 (31,31) - - (14438) - (26,974) (6,000) (32,974)
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEF2EHELEE - - - - 18,695 (31,231) - - (14438) (261575 (288549 (8250 (296,799
Equity-settled share-based transactions  EREZENBRAEF 225
Note 25(3)) (Ki3t2503)) = = 1179 = = = = = = = 1179 = 1179
= = 1179 = = = = = = = 1179 = 1179
Balance at 31 March 2019 R-B-MEZA=+-REH 199369 1136595 292 (36393 995255 1,144,136 (60,571) - 129,585 113,092 340125 3958271 129954 4088225

1 24 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREa®BX

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z =T -_FF=A=1—HIEFE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA R Z7)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARREL

Shares

held under Fair value

share Property reserve  Fair value Non-
Share Share award Capital ~ Contributed  revaluation (non- reserve  Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium scheme reserve surplus reserve  recycing)  (recycling)  reserves reserve profits Total interests equity

RERS

#Ritd MERE LAERE

Bx  REEE FECRE  EAHE  MARR MRERER (FUHE)  (THE) EERE  EXER  REEA & FEREE  REAE

RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000

ARKFL ARETR AREFT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETRT AREFT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETZ
(Note (Note 27 (Note 27 (Note 27 (Note 27 (Note 27 (Note 27 (Note 27 (Note 27 (Note 27
27) (di) (i) (alii) (d)iv) (o)) (d)i) (o)) (o)) (o)

270) 2700) 2700) 27i) - 27) 2700)  2766) 276)

BB HRAESRSERRE ke mess pow G6M) WSS L (ST

129,585 113,092 340,125 3,9582M 129,954 4,088,225

Changes in equity for the year, ~ AEEEHEEH:

Loss for the year AEEFR - - - - - - - - - - (1279095  (127909) (33495  (1,3125590)
Other comprehensive income Eb2ENE - - - - - 9,365 (50,048) - - (17,192) - (57,875) (9619  (67494)
Total comprehensive income for the year A 2 BN EEE - - - - - 9,365 (50,048) - - (17,192)  (1279,095) (1,336,970)  (83114) (1,380,084)

(Note 25(3)) - - - 511 - - - - - - - 511 = 511
Transfer between reserves - - - (36,598) - - - - - - 36,598 - - -
- - - (36,021) - - - - - - 36,598 571 - 577

Balance at 31 March 2020 RB-BEZA=t-BEB 199369 1136595 (2922)  (12414) 995255 1153501  (110,619) - 129,585 95900 (902372) 2,621,878 86,840 2,708,718

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using Kist - AEBEFEARETENE RZZE—A

the modified retrospective approach. Under the transition FHA—BEREREREMBREED
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See F165% - RIEFTE R IBE L LEEER
Note 2(c). WAREZ > B aE2()

The notes on pages 129 to 264 form part of these financial F12982648 2 MisE VA % S %
statements. = v
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BHZ-—ZFE-FF=HA=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB) (A A KRB Z3%I)
2020 2019
—E-EH —ZE—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Mt i AR¥Frx ARMTFIT
(Note)
(Ktat)
Operating activities RETH
Loss before taxation BrAf AT Es 1B (1,316,499) (247,807)
Adjustments for: P
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 165,095 143,350
Impairment losses on goodwill HEREEE 15 470,605 194,728
Net loss on disposal of property, BEWME WMEREEZE
plant and equipment =Pk 403 1,123
Valuation loss on an investment KEMEGEBE
property 13 28,700 —
Interest income F B U A 5 (5,795) (7,667)
Dividend income R E A 5 (1,200) (900)
Changes in fair value of other HhEMEEZ A ANEE
financial assets £ 5 = 10,332
Net finance costs B 75 & A F R 6(a) 118,509 88,107
Net income on a financial EETEmMERIFHA
guarantee issued 5 (1,415) (5,660)
Equity-settled share-based RREEEURO N2
payment expenses FRIEFEZ 577 1,179
Changes in working capital: LEEcEE:
Decrease in inventories FEZ2mD 14,261 31,676
Decrease/(increase) in trade and Ji& UK BR X % E i R U SR
other receivables 2R () 334,287 (149,685)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and JE 11 BR SR K2 HL At JE <1 3K
other payables Z CRA) /18 (46,001) 40,513
Increase in long term payables £ HA P& 1~ SR 3G A0 94,046 -~
Net cash (used in)/generated REXEK (A /BR:
from operations EEE (144,427) 99,289
Income tax paid EHTISH 26(a) (5,861) (14,192)
Net cash (used in)/generated KReEES () FERE
from operating activities HEE (150,288) 85,097

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERTMRNER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z—-FT -_FEF=A=1+—HItFE

(Expressed in RMB) (A ARKEZ7)
2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
ftf i AR¥Frx ARBFT
(Note)
(Kat)
Investing activities RETH
Payments for the purchase of BEME BWERFZEMNK
property, plant and equipment (2,023) (17,845)
Proceeds from disposal of property, J@E%% M E R FE
plant and equipment FRIE 17,043 1,013
Payments for acquisition of gL E AN
properties 17 - (170,000)
Repayment of loan receivables from U EE = H EFEK
third parties 21,900 56,946
Proceeds from redemption of short- & [0 %8 H31% & Fr 18 20A
term investments - 1,726
Payments for loan receivables to HEKERRAE=FIHK
third parties (104,300) (45,846)
Interests received B W F B 5,795 5,941
Dividends received from investments #HEMEmMEEREFES
in other financial assets B B 1,200 900
Net cash used in investing RETEHFEAZFRS
activities (60,385) (167,165)
Financing activities AR
Capital element of lease rentals paid &1t ?Eiz/éfﬁ B9 21(b) (23,571) =
Interest element of lease rentals paid B & 2 & & 35 21(b) (6,503) -
Proceeds from new bank loans Hrig fﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ FRIE 21(b) 698,000 1,097,896
Proceeds from new other e E M EE TS KIB
borrowings 21(b) 87,172 240,000
Repayment of bank loans BEIBITER 21(b) (377,466) (988,237)
Repayment of other borrowings EEEMEER 21(b) (79,700) (334,176)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash S RIETTR S (M)
at bank 21(a) (156,010) 19,383
Other finance costs paid E A B AT R & A AN 21(b) (159,009) (170,028)
Net cash used in financing METBHFEAZERS
activities (17,087) (135,162)
® tHE S R EERERA

BN REER



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BHZ-—ZFE-FF=HA=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB)  (AAR#Z31)

2020 2019
—BERE —E-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ftaF AR TR AR®TFT
(Note)
(Ktat)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRkRBRELEEEB ZFHE
equivalents 2 (227,760) (217,230)
Cash and cash equivalents atthe FHHRERRESEEER
beginning of the year 21(a) 253,452 470,569
Effect of foreign exchange rate SN HBEBEH &
changes 39 113
Cash and cash equivalents atthe FREERRSZEIER
end of the year 21(a) 25,731 253,452

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using Hist - REBEFEAKETENE RZZE—N

the modified retrospective approach. Under the transition FUMA—HEAREREEHEHREAER
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See F165%  IRIBPMERAIBEE  LERER
Note 2(c). WAREZ o BHIFE2(0) ©

The notes on pages 129 to 264 form part of these financial F12982648 2 M sE TV % Z I %
statements. Z #BAD ©

1 28 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”). The principal activities of the Group
are the operation of department stores, a shopping mall
and supermarkets in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(BIHFZEHERE TRIAAREZS)

ARIER
HLESTEREERERAR (AR
AR_ZEZEZF)N\ANBRER
RE-NN—FREVERBREZM
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MRZZEETFT+HZT=HED
EREBBARZHMBERAA ([BX
Frl) Eme-ARBEHE_ZE_ZTF=
A=+ RALFEZRAMBERERE
BARRREWNBAR (KfE[AE
) AEBZEEEKANRPEA
REAMBE ([FE])ELEEERSE B
PR R B AR TS

B RREH

(a) BHIEHA
HZEMBRRCREBERBERZ
FEMBHREER ([FEHH
WEER]) - BEBE SR
g ([ZEESFHMAG])BEMZ
A B A 2 (8 R BB R 5 s 2
A B ER ([FEGE
A RBBAREEARESR
[RA - ZEMBMRITTEER
R AVMEB 2 8 R FE R TE A e
X FrREs LR A ([ EWR
Al]) 2 BRI BRI - NEEIX
MZEIBEABRBEENT -

HFEEA G ERME TR
KAEIERT 2 B R B HRE LR -
YRAREZ NS HFEEX
R T IR A - BRER
It AR BB R 2 #E] A&
Rl ERIFTSI BN E IR AT S
AR e RREHER
ZEMBBRERARE - BREER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZ=—L-FF=A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SHBEEE(£)
(continued)

(b) MBHREHEE

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

130
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statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020 comprise the Group and the
Group’s interests in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for investments in debt and equity securities
(see Note 2(g)), land and buildings held for own use
(see Note 2(h)) and investment property (see Note
2(i)) which are stated at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

FEZHGEVBRREREAEHE
RAEERA S0 Em

SRR R AERI 2B M ERRE
HIE (RMiEE2(9)) #H1EEH
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RETEBE%E-

EEEFTERETEBBYBER
SEAZVBHRRKELES
E2tBRRER UREE &
B WARIHZRESEZH
B~ AR R RER I F A ET AR
AR EREAEERNEEE
AEERBEARRAEZZHE
fRREL  HERBREEE
EEEARERLMEEERSFA
BEEABEZREAERAELH
i 20 - BERGERABERRIRN
RSk

B e NE =R S IR G AAE
B - B GaHEET 2 BFT R
TEX MR AREFRSEZ
HIM AR AREFTHE B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z T~ % fFr A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BItHREEF (EF)
(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) MBEBMRENERE (Z)

statements (continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB1,924,183,000 and incurred net
loss of RMB1,312,590,000 during the year ended
31 March 2020. Notwithstanding the net current
liabilities as at 31 March 2020, the directors
of the Company do not consider that material
uncertainties related to events or conditions
exist which, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. This is because:

—  the Group has obtained financial support letter
from its new substantial shareholder, Qujiang
Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited (“Quijiang Investment”), a subsidiary of
a state-owned enterprise, after the end of the
reporting period;

- Qujiang Investment has agreed to extend its
short-term loans granted to the Group of
RMB450,000,000 when they fall due;

—  the Group has obtained short-term loans from
Qujiang Investment of RMB306,000,000 after
the end of the reporting period;

— the Group has unutilised facilities of
RMB900,000,000 as at 31 March 2020 (see
Note 23(e));

—  based on a cash flow forecast of the Group
for the twelve months ending 31 March 2021
prepared by the management, the Group
would have adequate funds to meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that
it is appropriate to prepare the Group’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 on a
going concern basis.

R_E-_FF=A=+—H 'K
E.%ﬁﬁmu@]ﬁfﬁxi%ﬁﬁ}\ﬁm
1,924,183,000c K& ZE—-F =
EF=ZA=+—HIFEFMESE
BFE 1R A R #1,312,590,000
T BER_ZTE_ZTF=A
E+—E|ff?%ﬁ§biéfi‘$§ﬁ PiN

RE|BEERE UAFEMERIK

ERUESSASEFBEK L

NEKREXRREENE RN B
L E N S X L= )i

- REEERE AEEA
HHEERBEIXIES
BEBREERARN ([
TRE]) —MEALE
ZHBAR BEHEX
5 Bt

- HIRERERIHET
RETAKE ZRHAEK
A R#450,000,0007T :

- RBEHKRR AKECS
B #T R & BUSE B & X
A B #306,000,0007T :

- E/\:%‘:Fﬁi A=1—

AEENARPARE
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(R FIEE23()) :
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Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SHBEEE(£)
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies () EFBREH

132
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The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16,
Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the
developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the
related interpretations, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4, Determining
whether an arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC)-
Int 15, Operating leases — incentives, and HK(SIC)-
Int 27, Evaluating the substance of transactions
involving the legal form of a lease. It introduces a
single accounting model for lessees, which requires
a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability for all leases, except for leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term
leases”) and leases of low-value assets. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # £
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as
from 1 April 2019. The Group has elected to
use the modified retrospective approach and has
therefore recognised the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at 1 April 2019. Comparative information
has not been restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition options applied are set out below:

a. New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. HKFRS 16
defines a lease on the basis of whether a
customer controls the use of an identified
asset for a period of time, which may be
determined by a defined amount of use.
Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a
lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were
entered into or changed on or after 1 April
2019. For contracts entered into before 1 April
2019, the Group has used the transitional
practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are
or contain leases. Accordingly, contracts that
were previously assessed as leases under HKAS
17 continue to be accounted for as leases
under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements
continue to be accounted for as executory
contracts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE-—E-—FTHF=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrIF=B1EH

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is
required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other than
those short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. As far as the Group is concerned,
these newly capitalised leases are primarily
in relation to leasehold property, plant and
equipment.

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1
April 2019), the Group determined the length
of the remaining lease terms and measured
the lease liabilities for the leases previously
classified as operating leases at the present
value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the relevant incremental
borrowing rates at 1 April 2019. The weighted
average of the incremental borrowing rates
used for determination of the present value of
the remaining lease payments was 7%.

BAIAAREZ5)

2 EIBXRE®(E)

() EBtHX25 (&)

BEEMKBEEERFE165E [
g (&)

b.

AEANE
b2
FRM B HRELEDF165%
BREB G EMNFI75H
ARARARTHHEHES D
REZHEIREHEDN
ER MR AKREEER
A AR A A &
REX BREANRER
BEREAFTRID R
REMEMHEE HEEB
HEREKEEEEHERR
Sho AAEEM S ZEH
MERAEAHETRA
HEWME BELZEE
7 o

51 R N B K

RBEEEEVBKERS
ERIE165EE R (B =F
—AFW@A—H) &X&
EBEs BRREHE
H) 7H B 7 E R 4 T B Y
BE&&T'J@%HEH XA

—NEFMEA—H&HE
ﬁ%i EERMERRZH
BEfEHERE-ARE
E R R E AN R E Y18
ERERAEMEFHES
7% °



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption
and practical expedients at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16:

(i) the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect of
the recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets to leases for which
the remaining lease term ends within
12 months from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the
lease term ends on or before 31 March
2020;

(i)  when measuring the lease liabilities
at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16, the Group applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics (such as
leases with a similar remaining lease term
for a similar class of underlying asset in a
similar economic environment); and

(i) when measuring the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16, the Group relied on the
previous assessment for onerous contract
provisions as at 31 March 2019 as an
alternative to performing an impairment
review.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ERTBEREE (F)
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) EBEBEREE (£)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) ER R EERE16% [
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Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

The following table reconciles the operating
lease commitments as at 31 March 2019
to the opening balance for lease liabilities
recognised as at 1 April 2019:

g/ (&)

b. ABANEFEIELBK
& (B
TRER-F—NF=H
ST HMEEEERE
ER-ZE-HNFMEA—H
ERNEER BERIER

2 ¥R
1 April 2019
—NF
mA—H
RMB’000
ARSTF T
Operating lease commitments RZE-NEF=A=+—HH
at 31 March 2019 4RSS TH B R E 129,880
Less: commitments relating to leases B EAR A AN HE R &
exempt from capitalisation: ik
— short-term leases and other leases with *Eﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬂﬁ/\:
remaining lease term ending on Z_TF=A=+—H=x
or before 31 March 2020 Al IEERY B A T & (868)
129,012
Less: total future interest expenses B BEMNERT R (20,567)
Present value of remaining lease payments,  FIRTHE FKHIERE B
discounted using the incremental —jL¢IEIH H Tmﬁﬁia 1
borrowing rate at 1 April 2019 TR R TTREIR 108,445

Total lease liabilities recognised
at 1 April 2019

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have
been recognised at an amount equal to the
amount recognised for the remaining lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the statement of
financial position at 31 March 2019.

R-ZE—NFNWA—BHEER

ZHHEBERTE 108,445
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HEEBENEREEED
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ERTBEREE (F)
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) EBEBEREE (£)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) BEBUBHREERE 165 [H
g/ (&)
b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact b. BEBAREFEEKEE
(continued) FE(E)
The following table summarises the impacts TR B AN B S B T R
of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group's HERIE 165 H AN K B4R
consolidated statement of financial position: EUMBRRAK 2 FE
Carrying Capitalisation Carrying
amount at of operating amount at
31 March 2019  lease contracts 1 April 2019
RZB-NE RZB-hE
ZA=t-A KEHEELN mA—-A
ZEEE BRER ZEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETT ARETT

Line items in the consolidated FHRMAF B KREER
statement of financial position 1635 & 2 RS MK
impacted by the adoption of  MRKRAER :

HKFRS 16:
Property, plant and equipment 1% BE k&R E 3,122,037 97,636 3,219,673
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 7,199,981 97,636 7,297,617
Trade and other payables JE AR 3R e H M FE A 3K 1,135,079 (10,809) 1,124,270
Lease liabilities (current) HEEE (RE) = 25,448 25,448
Current liabilities nBAE 2,040,450 14,639 2,055,089
Net current liabilities RBAEERE (978,780) (14,639) (993,419)
Total assets less current EELERRDEE

liabilities 6,221,201 82,997 6,304,198
Lease liabilities (non-current) MEEE (FRD) - 82,997 82,997
Total non-current liabilities FRBDAELEHE 2,132,976 82,997 2,215,973
Net assets EERE 4,088,225 - 4,088,225

iscxemenrren 37
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE-—E-—FTHF=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIES B 556

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

C. Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019,
the Group as a lessee is required to recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. This
results in a positive impact on the reported
profit/(loss) from operations in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss, as
compared to the results if HKAS 17 had been
applied during the year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a
lessee is required to split rentals paid under
capitalised leases into their capital element and
interest element. These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows, similar to how
leases previously classified as finance leases
under HKAS 17 were treated, rather than as
operating cash outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under HKAS 17. Although
total cash flows are unaffected, the adoption
of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a significant
change in presentation of cash flows within
the cash flow statement.

The following tables give an indication of the
estimated impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
on the Group’s financial result, segment results
and cash flows for the year ended 31 March
2020, by adjusting the amounts reported
under HKFRS 16 in these consolidated financial
statements to compute estimates of the
hypothetical amounts that would have been
recognised under HKAS 17 if this superseded
standard had continued to apply in 2020
instead of HKFRS 16, and by comparing these
hypothetical amounts for 2020 with the actual
2019 corresponding amounts which were
prepared under HKAS 17.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

c.  Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash flows of the Group

(BIHFZEHERE TRIAAREZS)

2 BIBXRE®(E)

() EBtHEZ25 (&)
BEEMBBEEERFE165E [
g/ (&)

c. HAEEUFFEE DA
RERBEETREBZZE

(continued) (&)
2020 2019
- St {3 ZE-NE
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
related to
Addback: ~ operating  Hypothetical Compared
Amounts HKFRS 16 leases as if amounts o amounts
reported  depreciation under for2020  reported for
under  and interest HKAS17  asifunder 2019 under
HKFRS 16 expense (Note 1) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
g BERS |
FREHRN RRRERE REFEed
REZRNE nME:-ERRE FUEEE BN EUFR
RERR BRERRHZE6  SEREN  FURELN 288
16528 FHERAS fEite® -B-BF  -FAF
MeR Bx (M) fReE SRLE
(A) (B) (©  (D=A+B-C)
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBFT ARMTR ARETT  ARETR
Financial result for yearended ~ XEAERHBHEERS
31 March 2020 impacted by the 165 FEHNEZ-F_F
adoption of HKFRS 16; EZA=t-BLEEH
Bx&:
Loss from operations meER (1,169,290) 26,056 (30,074)  (1,173,308) (159,700)
Net finance costs HHERFE (118,509) 6,503 - (112,006) (83,107)
Loss before taxation BRAESR (1,316,499) 32,559 (30074)  (1314014)  (247807)
Loss for the year AEEER (1,312,59) 32,559 (30,074)  (1,310,105)  (263,829)
Reportable segment (loss)/profit ~ RHFMERUBHREENE
(adjusted EBITDA) for the year 165/ @vHZ-5_%
ended 31 March 2020 (note 4(b))  E=RA=t-BILEEZ
impacted by the adoption of HKFRS TH% 4% (&#) /i
16: A (BZEBITDA) ( izt
4(b)):
- Department stores -BEESRENTL
and shopping mall \ (520,125) - (19,003) (539,128) 178,625
- Supermarkets er i (13,074) - (11,011) (24,145) 17,531
- Total -Rit (533,199) - (30074)  (563273) 196,156
® ° RS TEEERERAD

BN REER
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BItHEEF (EF)
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) EBEBEREE (£)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) BEBUBHREERFE 165 [H
g/ (&)

c.  Impact on the financial result, segment ¢ HAEEEUBEE 75
results and cash flows of the Group RERBEREZHE
(continued) (&)

2020 2019
it “T-NE

Estimated

amounts
relatedto  Hypothetical  Compared to
Amounts operating amounts amounts
reported leases as if for 2020 reported for
under  under HKAS 17 asif under 2019 under
HKFRS 16 (Notes 182) HKAS 17 HKAS 17

RXBEER RBRBEER  2REER
SHEAZIE GHRAEUE EENZTH
REEENE ARAZEE fEiH B
RERAZ6E  WESEE 0 ZRoRF 0 ZFNF
2HNER (MR BREH 3l

(A (B) (C=A+B)
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTZ  ARBTZ  ARBFZ  ARETZ

Line items in the consolidated cash flow ¥FHEEHBREERH16
statement for the year ended 31 March K& HZ-E-5F=H
2020 impacted by the adoption of St-ALEERARENE

HKFRS 16: RER:
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &2 3% (F1f) /Fi5% ¢ (144,427) (30,074) (174,501) 99,289

Net cash (used in)/generated from &% (Fif) /FEREFE

operating activities (150,288) (30,074) (180,362) 85,097
Capital element of lease rentals paid B2 zERSH (2357) 23,571 = -
Interest element of lease rentals paid EffEMERS (6,503) 6,503 = -

Net cash (used in)/generated from RETH (FR)/FERLTE
financing activities (17,087) 30,074 12,987 (135,162)

1 40 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

c.  Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash flows of the Group
(continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

The “estimated amounts related to
operating leases” is an estimate of the
amounts of the cash flows in 2020 that
relate to leases which would have been
classified as operating leases, if HKAS 17
had still applied in 2020. This estimate
assumes that there were no differences
between rentals and cash flows and that
all of the new leases entered into in 2020
would have been classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had
still applied in 2020. Any potential net tax
effect is ignored.

In this impact table these cash outflows
are reclassified from financing to operating
in order to compute hypothetical amounts
of net cash generated from operating
activities and net cash used in financing
activities as if HKAS 17 still applied.

d. Lessor accounting

The accounting policies applicable to the
Group as a lessor remain substantially
unchanged from those under HKAS 17.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SHBEEE(£)

(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(d) MEBARARFEZERER

142

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those equity interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those equity
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BB E®EE (E&)
(continued)

(d) MEBLARARFERES (&)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the period between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(I)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BB E®SE (&)
(continued)
(e) Joint ventures (e) 6L E

144

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or Company and other parties contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see Notes 2(f) and 2(1)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

BELER/ARERARR LA
AL A HRE T 2 BT bl
MEREEHFEER IR

RAELEERZREREDRTIA
REMBERR MARKEED
BARELE (HFABIER
FIEHE 2 B EA R RIS R
i o IRIBHE IR RE L IAK
AN TR AREEZIRESH
RABAFEENPRBEH A
REBLHZBEREKANEE
(ﬁﬂﬁ)1¢ﬁ§ﬁ%°ﬁ?§’%$%
DEZREHRFEERNEE
{ézméb&/\&l@&éﬁfﬂz&
MOREE R AR B E L
(RBFEE2(H) R 2(1)) o EMRPAUHE
B EBBA AN 2 258 NEE T
HIREHRNRBIR 2R BIE R
ZE&EWEH/WEFSE RiRa R
s AR M ARBRKER
FHEREHSRRR EME®E
WesH B AR A Ba kb E
Y 2 R R RERR

EAKERGERBLAFEE
Rz BIAREE 2 #Eamf
MET WERILERE—TE
B EASECABUEEREE
BEESRERREHRIEL 2K
ABRSN BB S - AR E 21
@ RIEE A B 2 A R®
BEEREE LBXNAKERZA
BRRZFRE - 2 RIE

P avi (VN
maP JJ °

AEEREAEOERGMES
ZARBE SN R EE  HAKHE
PRI RE B R < a3 -
FrEsE & E 2 REHE R IR
EBFR - BIBDES R 18 25 R o



Notes to the Financial Statements

B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Joint ventures (continued)

(f)

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate or vice versa, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see Note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in joint venture are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(l)), unless classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(])).
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2
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(BrIF=BEH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associate and joint venture, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.

(i)

Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see Note

2(v)(vi)).

—  fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.
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Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

SREEREH (&)

(9) BEBREZEBHRE (F)

(g) Investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

() EZRELIHRE

(i) Investments other than equity

investments (continued)

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including

(%)

- WMERETENARE
BRI A 2B
EHHEEHFTAHM
2mE e (78 #E)
AFEZIRE RIAZ

interest) are recognised in profit or loss. AREFEEHEE
FABE-KREZA
REZH (BFENE)
RiEm R -
(ii) Equity investments (i) BERE
An investment in equity securities is classified EanIdrREHSSR S
as FVPL unless the equity investment is REARBHFEEEES

not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer's perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
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BUYFFKEEER BAK
BEVFERREREE
BIRERE RBRRAER
EREEHFARMER
YWat (Tl &%) - ABR
BAnER2HREMEE
Woas FERR o s RIE E TH A
BRI HEZER EEL
HREEREFTAHETA
AR NZEETERFTA
R - fill {E b 42 - Al

the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until ZEHREWE SR RN HE
the investment is disposed of. At the time of thEEKER R 225

disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in Note 2(v)(v).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SHBEEE(£)
(continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (h) ME -BRERRZE
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Land and buildings held for own use are stated at
their revalued amount, being their fair values at
the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amounts of these assets
do not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Residential properties held for own use and other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(1)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BB E®EE (E&)
(continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued) (h) ME - BERRE (&)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
property revaluation reserve to retained profits and
is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual values, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:
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Estimated useful lives

{5t 62 A £ 57

Land and buildings held for own use AR R EIEZHEE R t# & 20 — 50 years

carried at fair value g 20E504F

Residential properties held for own BRIz FHEBRESME 3 - 35 years

use carried at cost and leasehold LEEYEEE 3&354F
improvements

Properties leased for own use BEARAEEWE 1 —12 years

12124

Furniture, fixtures and equipment FER-EER 3 - 28 years

3& 284

Motor vehicles Ew T A 3 - 10 years

32104

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value are reviewed annually.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.
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2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

()]

(k)

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
is owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2(k)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in
Note 2(v)(iii).

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(1)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily office
furniture. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the
present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BItHREEF (EF)
(continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued) (k) HEEE (&)
(i) As a lessee (i) EBARBEA
(1) Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (1) B=ZF—NFWAH
—HREBEHAZBE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)

(1)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019/20

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019
(continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when
a lease is capitalised is initially measured
at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 2(h) and 2(1)
(iii)), except for the right-of-use assets
that meet the definition of investment
property are carried at fair value in
accordance with Note 2(i);

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’'s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

2

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

SERBRREH (&)

(k) HEEE (&)
() EBEHBEA(E)

(1)

E-ZF—hNFMH
—HEEHRZ KR
(%&)
EHEWE RN LEE
REFERAREES
R AFTE  RAE
EHEEENYRS
RN EER M B B
2RISR EAEE
B UARELEHNE
o] W) 36 B 35 AR K - 11
BR - FAREEZ
A TR B IR E AR
K% iEEE E sk
EREEREME
Hh B AR - N BRIR
ZHBRE REMD
WHRzHEBE-fF
A& EERBIEKA
BRI E MR EES
B (R M aE2(h) K2
(i) B BR - EF A
BYMETEZFERE
& ERIREM )%
NAETIER:

2 RS R
BHAREENKE
8 AAKEGFR
BERSREEEREN
ZEREER HEE
IR RN SLTPER
AERETERE
E & BRI Tk
g2 AEHGERE
BE-WEHEREBER
A EHEFE A
HEMEEE 2RE
EfEHARAE %X
W REEE < RE
BEERET RIRE
m A5 B -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)

(1)

@)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019
(continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of
investment property in “property, plant
and equipment” and presents lease
liabilities separately in the statement of
financial position.

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the
Group classified leases as finance leases
if the leases transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group. Leases which did not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group were classified
as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

- property held under operating
leases that would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment
property was classified as
investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, was
accounted for as if held under a
finance lease (see Note 2(i)); and
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BB E®SE (&)

(continued)
(k) HEEZE (£)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

154

(i) As a lessee (continued)

() EBEHBEA(E)

(2)  Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019 2) R-—ZZE—NFMAH
(continued) —HEE A2 B xR
(&)
- land held for own use under an - EREBKEHEE
operating lease, the fair value FEEEAZL

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019/20

of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, was
accounted for as being held under

iﬂz ERARET

RE B TE & F R I
ﬁﬁ/\HLZ%$
ZARBED R
2 BB E R

a finance lease, unless the building EHEFEAF
was also clearly held under an R-BRIEZEF
operating lease. For these purposes, JREA W AR BB AT
the inception of the lease was the EHERE-H
time that the lease was first entered mE -HEZ
into by the Group, or taken over FInREARSE
from the previous lessee. EEARFIZEE

s B AT A AR

ERE R -

Where the Group acquires the use of

HMAEENREEE

assets under finance leases, the amounts WEEEE 2 RA#%E -
representing the fair value of the leased AEERHEERER
asset, or, if lower, the present value of REZEFES (KA
the minimum lease payments, of such REE)ZSEELZ

assets were recognised as property, plant
and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, were
recorded as obligations under finance
leases. Depreciation was provided at rates
which write off the cost or valuation of
the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it was likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the
life of the asset, as set out in Note
2(h). Impairment losses were accounted
for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in Note 2(l)(iii). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments
were charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an

R E N FIREHE
- mMEEEE (N
fRECE & A B (F
MEMHEEME-E
DB EHEFHK
(fis A< & & 7] BE ER 15
BEHEARE) MiE2(h)
PRl B EFHMEE
EXARREE X
AAE-RERBELR
R BT 200 GiDETH 2
SRR AKR -HE
NHABEEcRmES

AREEMARE R

BB AEZEE

approximately constant periodic rate of BRI ETSeR 50 2 7 HF
charge on the remaining balance of the X HERXBAER - 5%
obligations for each accounting period. FHeEEEENE

Contingent rentals were charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which
they were incurred.

FTEARAER TN
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BB E®EE (E&)

(continued)
(k) HEEE (&)
(i) fERABA(E)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)

(2) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019
(continued)

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an

2) RZZFE—-NFMA
—HEEH 2 MR
(%)
(OEERN-SEIDEIVE 33
HEFREE AR
BREXN 2 HRER
HEMMREZ 5
HERN NEEEE
SRR ENEEH

alternative basis is more representative b L B B SE M M
of the pattern of benefits to be derived MEASEERESL

from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss

W 25 4 X I BR 41 o
ME PP R e RS

as an integral part of the aggregate o Ug A fE B 25
net lease payments made. Contingent R AMBEFNRLE
rentals are charged to profit or loss in FEH AR IS o8 a
the accounting period in which they are MerEEELNEst
incurred, 5 B A0 4 98 28 R 40
(ii) As a lessor (i) 1EBHFEA
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines ENEFEASTLE AR

at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the
lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with Note

2(v)(iii).

EXHERBKEET SR
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i 15 AR - B & 288
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EtBXREE (&)
(continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued) (k) HEEE (&)
(i) As a lessor (continued) (i) EEHAA(E)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the WMAEBERFREEEA

sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as BlpfgsEgrigEs

an operating lease with reference to the right- A EREEER D8
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the RBEHERKEHES

head lease is a short-term lease to which the WMeEHESCHHEE m

Group applies the exemption described in Note 7N 5 [ e AR B B2 2(k)() BT

2(k)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease HNe AAEBEHSHED

as an operating lease. HAKEHE-

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () EEFEREERE
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () £MITAZEEEE

The Group recognises a loss allowance for AEBEREHEEEER

expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following RTFIEE R EERERE:

items:

- financial assets measured at amortised - REENAFENS
cost (including cash and cash equivalents MEE(BEAER
and trade and other receivables); HeEEEEUAKE

I BR 3R & H b fE Uk
)

- debt securities measured at FVOCI - MNEAREFEAEH

(recycling) BEETARMEEK
=(JEE)HFEZ
BIEES

Financial assets measured at fair value, BARBEFENEREE

including equity securities measured at FVPL (BPREEARBEFEEEE

and equity securities designated at FVOCI Bt ABEmzEmE T &

(non-recycling) are not subject to the ECL EERAAEFERES

assessment. Fet AEMEEm S (N

AEE) L ESES) BA
ETHEREEBENE-

Measurement of ECLs FTERHEEEE

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of BHEEEBEEAEEERE
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the W EINEGES - EEE
present value of all expected cash shortfalls BUFMEBREBREEEN
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due RE(BBRESDERT
to the Group in accordance with the contract AEEMREREHERNE
and the cash flows that the Group expects to EEGtRERNEEREZ
receive). MEZERE)FTE -

1 5 6 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets and trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBEREE (&)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () FEEBREERE (&)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () sMITAZEFEEE

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

(continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBEREE (&)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () FEEBREERE (&)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () sMITAZEFEEE
(continued) (%&)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued) ERAERBEZEEM (&)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve (recycling).

BHEERERS®RER
HEMitE8 URBKBEE
RERAEEMTAFEER
SNEH AR EEER
TERNERNEZHHER
7 P RE AR RO (B W 5 B
BER-AEBEERMA S
BMITENRERSHER
B 288BERERY
HEEEEEHERBE
HRAAEFELEZD
AtAEMEE Y E (A3
BIZEHREFIEER
S EEBERBEREME
[ER &k Y SN =R
(AT E18) R5te

Basis of calculation of interest income FTENEBWA Z FE
Interest income recognised in accordance with AR 4R Bt 52 (V) (vi) B 2R 2 A
Note 2(v)(vi) is calculated based on the gross BRAZEREEMNRME

carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the

BEAE KIETHMEE
HBREERE ELBER
T REBAREREE

amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount BEEA A (BNERE 428
less loss allowance) of the financial asset. BEEREE)FTE -

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

NEHmRE BB AEBEF
eRmEERAHEAEER
BE-E-HIZAHE
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BFEEARENSHELE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

—  significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

—  a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIERXEF (&)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () FEEBREERE (&)

(continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees (i) EBRHBBIERZIEES
issued B
Financial guarantees are contracts that MBEREZRETA
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to (BMERAN)RERZTA
make specified payments to reimburse the (IFBEABEEFEEBA
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) REERBEIR T HMERK
for a loss the holder incurs because a REBRNRMEZONE
specified debtor fails to make payment when K MFEAEAINEER
due in accordance with the terms of a debt BHAERENEGL -
instrument.
Financial guarantees issued are initially EEEAMBERD R
recognised within “trade and other payables” [ 1<% R % B EL th 8 A<F 5K
at fair value, which is determined by reference REARERR MZFE
to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction AREDIEEBRETNE
for similar services, when such information BRTUE A BB A X R
is obtainable, or to interest rate differentials, A R T B 75 B
by comparing the actual rates charged by B ) 51 7 2= (fisf B & ¥
lenders when the guarantee is made available AEH Al ) 1B 2%F
with the estimated rates that lenders would HURBHAFERGHEA
have charged, had the guarantees not been WHRH) & B (70 7] 15 3%
available, where reliable estimates of such ZERT) A REREME
information can be made. Where consideration JE © fiel PO B H 3% IR R IR
is received or receivable for the issuance of Hgk Al WERK B - KB
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised ARBAEEERNZE
in accordance with the Group’s policies BERMBEM T AER-
applicable to that category of asset. Where no fist 5 B X B 1 K W HR 3K 8
such consideration is received or receivable, an TUCE - BN A X R &=
immediate expense is recognised in profit or R
loss.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount P H) 18 HE R A& - ) 1R BE R
initially recognised as deferred income is RIETEW A B & R R
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the HARBERFHERE®
guarantee as income from financial guarantees B AR 2 WA o
issued.

1 62 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BB E®EE (E&)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () FEEBREERE (&)

(continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees (ii) ERHEBERZEEE

issued (continued)

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and
recognises a provision when ECLs on the
financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the amount carried in “trade and
other payables” in respect of the guarantees
(i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers
changes in the risk of default of the specified
debtor since the issuance of the guarantee. A
12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is issued,
in which case a lifetime ECL is measured.
The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk
as described in Note 2(I)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments
only in the event of a default by the specified
debtor in accordance with the terms of the
instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amount that the Group expects
to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The
amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each end of reporting period
to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets (other than land and
buildings held for own use stated at
revalued amounts);

- intangible assets;

—  goodwill

- non-current prepayments for acquisitions
of properties;

- investment in a joint venture; and
- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial

position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

1 64 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SHBEEE(£)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () FEEBREERE (&)

(continued)

(iii) Hft ¥ RBEEZRE

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets

166
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(continued) (%&)
—  Reversals of impairment losses - HEEEREE
An impairment loss is reversed if there fisl A AEE FE AT R [B1

has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

B RS
f& B & 45 5 8 A5 18
4=k

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited PR 2 BEEEE
to the asset’s carrying amount that BR 74 fin 4 Iz A R 3R 1T
would have been determined had no FEEARRBEEEM
impairment loss been recognised in prior AEEZEEREA
years. Reversals of impairment losses are BHefEE 2 BES
credited to profit or loss in the year in BERRELDZFE

which the reversals are recognised.

(iv) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(I)(i) and 2(I)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the financial year
end date or to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for credit losses (see Note 2(I)(i)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for credit losses (see Note 2(1)(i)).
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(BrIF=B1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs and,
where applicable, the fair value of the embedded
derivative financial instruments. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible preference share capital

Convertible preference share capital is classified as
equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on convertible preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

—  Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted
to employees and service providers
is recognised as an employee cost or
operating expense with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Black-Scholes Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019/20

Share option scheme (continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Share award scheme

The shares awarded under the share
award scheme are acquired from open
market. The net consideration paid,
including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

SREEREH (&)

(s) BERH (&)
(i) Rk ()

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share award scheme (continued)

For shares granted under the share
award scheme, the fair value of shares
granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares on grant
date plus any directly attributable
incremental costs. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
shares, the total fair value of the shares
is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the
shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of shares that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit
or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of shares that
vest with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

()

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)
—  Share award scheme (continued)

When the awarded shares are transferred
to the awardees upon vesting, the related
weighted average acquisition cost of
the awarded shares vested are credited
to “Shares held under share award
scheme”, and the grant date fair value
of the awarded shares vested are debited
to the capital reserve. The difference
between the related weighted average
acquisition cost and the grant date fair
value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.
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B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of this asset at its carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ERTBEREE (F)
(continued)
(t) Income tax (continued) (t) FBH (&)
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, - /‘ﬂt EHIEEERBEM
if they relate to income taxes levied by the = - finl B2 A8 [R) A% 75 15 it
same taxation authority on either: IATEFP-—BRYZFE
WA
—  the same taxable entity; or - [A-—ERTERE: X
—  different taxable entities, which, in - ATRERBERE M
each future period in which significant ZEERENSMEES
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or 78 15 5k Y B3 RE 7% 18
assets are expected to be settled or BENEEZERSR
recovered, intend to realise the current 2 B2 Hif - #id%
tax assets and settle the current tax FREE A
liabilities on a net basis or realise and HEERENEIEAT
settle simultaneously. HEEXRRERE
ERENEE-
(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities (u) BERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain WEARERARABARED %
timing or amount when the Group or the Company EZEHRAEEAERBEEERE
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ffiﬁ#—fﬁﬁf;%ﬁm
a result of a past event, it is probable that an ER RSN - WA Ve AT S 2
outflow of economic benefits will be required to er FerzhEeBTIEZ
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be BEERARE NREBEHEE
made. Where the time value of money is material, TEEKHT BEBRIRIEETBITR
provisions are stated at the present value of the ERPRAX 2REARK.
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of fin & T 0] B8 H B OB R 2= SN -
economic benefits will be required, or the amount R MEAHERSHEIEL AR
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is faar: TEAH#?fEﬁE%Z%Y%
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the BE BRIFLENERING 2 7] 88
probability of outflow of economic benefits is |‘E/)TEQ'JH9|\°/A¥E?%TJZ;
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence TAREUHERREESEEEST
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non- EREZBEEET TERER
occurrence of one or more future events are FABE RIFLENRINRZ
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the A BB 1R SE RIBR O o
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #H#ZE T -THF=A=+— ELthr/*
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ERTBEREE (F)

(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (v) W&EREAMBA
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when AEEKHEASEBBEFESE
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of BiHEEm RBHERBHRENR
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets EEMEAREREENKRAS
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s HAWER -
business.
Revenue is recognised when control over a product EEMmIRB O ZEHEIERE
or service is transferred to the customer, or the @Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéi’éﬂiﬂﬁﬁ &R EH
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount B(TEERKREF=ZFREHE
of promised consideration to which the Group is HEBREEPIEABARTED
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts AEER Was TUER  ka
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue TEEEEMKHMEER I
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is KHBRERE S -

after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other BN EE Y s Rk E AU ARER

income recognition policies are as follows: HROE—TFHBERIIDOT

(i) Sale of goods and net income from () HEERREEHEFHK
concession sales A
Revenue arising from the sale of goods HEEMBEREREHEE
and net income from concession sales FRAREPEZEMK
are recognised when the customer takes B RV R & e & [0 ¥
possession of and accepts the goods. No fr i 2R o fin 2N BA X (B 2 IR
revenue or net income is recognised if BIFEEARTHEENE &
there are significant uncertainties regarding ¥ A] RE R B 0 S AN & B
recovery of the consideration due, the possible MEsBE2EEmER 8l
return of goods, or continuing management TEgERlkEs @H&J\

involvement with the goods.

(ii) Service fee income (i) REEWA
Service fee income from the operation KERERS -BYP L
of department stores, shopping mall and MR T IS 2 RIS E KA
supermarkets is recognised when the related iR AE R AR A PR 1 3R o

services are rendered.

1 7 6 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20




Notes to the Financial Statements

B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group’s customer loyalty programme
awards customers credits which entitle the
customers to the right to exchange for
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme and gives rise to a separate
performance obligation. The Group allocated
a portion of the transaction price to the
customer loyalty programme based on relative
standalone selling price. Such amount is
deferred and revenue is recognised when the
programme credits are redeemed and the
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme. Deferred revenue is also released
to revenue when it is no longer considered
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(BrIEZ=BIEH

BRIAAREZ3)

2 BIBXRE®(E)

(v) WEREMBA (E)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

(w)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see Note 2(I)(i)).

(vii) Income from financial guarantees issued

Income from financial guarantees issued is
recognised over the term of the guarantees
(see Note 2(I)(ii)).

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated into the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

2

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)
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(v)

(w)
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(vii) ER LA HERIKA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(x)

(y)

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(BrIEZ=BIEH

BRIAAREZ3)

2 BIBXRE®(E)

(w) Shesas (&)

(x)

(y)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(2)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group’s revenue is substantially derived from
retail customers in the PRC and the Group’s
operating assets are substantially located in the
west region of the PRC. Accordingly, no segment
analysis based on geographical location of the
customers and assets is provided.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 12, 13,

15, 25 and 28 contain information

about the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to valuation of land and buildings held for own use,
investment property, goodwill impairment, fair value of
share options granted and financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Expected credit losses of receivables

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value
of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of
receivables. Receivables are categorised by individual
characteristics of each customer. The Group
estimates the loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses for receivables based
on the ageing of overdue balances, repayment
histories of individual debtors, debtor credit-
worthiness, historical write-off experience, existing
customer-specific and market conditions and
forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

Expected credit losses of receivables
(continued)

The Group considers the following indicators when
assessing the credit risks, such as the changes in
macroeconomic conditions, probabilities of default
and internal or external credit ratings, or expected
operating performance of the customer, etc. At
every reporting date the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking information are analysed. Such assessment
involves a significant degree of judgement by the
management.

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of long-
lived assets as described in Note 2(l). The carrying
amounts of long-lived assets are reviewed
periodically or when indications are identified in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to the
level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of the level of revenue
and amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or, except for
goodwill, reversal of impairment in future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual values. The management reviews the
estimated useful lives and the residual values of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The determination of the useful
lives and the residual values are based on historical
experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilised. In determining the amount
of deferred tax assets to be recognised, significant
judgement is required relating to the timing and
level of future taxable profits, after taking into
account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates are
adjusted if there are significant changes from these
estimates.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of department stores, a shopping mall
and supermarkets in the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WEANDIBWHE (&)

(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued) (a) W= (&)
Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold to WaiEmMBEFPEH 2B miHEE
customers, net income from concession sales, gross B B EEHEESFWA 21
rental income and management and administrative WA UAREERITHREE
service fee income. Disaggregation of revenue from WA o & EE W FoFWA LR
contracts with customers by major products or ZEBZAOMMT:

service lines is as follows:

2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Revenue from contracts with EBMERERERFE155FEEE
customers within the scope of RZREEFEEFAHN 2K

HKFRS 15
Sales of goods R k= 302,622 596,232
Net income from concession sales FFEIEHEF WA 224,849 324,253
Management and administrative EBRITHREERA
service fee income 50,164 56,148
577,635 976,633
Revenue from other sources A SRR W 2=
Gross rental income wHES WA 64,377 774132
642,012 1,054,065
Disaggregated by timing of RWERAKESE
revenue recognition
Point in time = 527,471 920,485
Over time W8 A 114,541 133,580
642,012 1,054,065
The Group's entire revenue is attributable to the REBE K2 HUa K 8 BEREA
market in the Shaanxi Province, PRC. No analysis of ™5 o At - BEE 2 5 30 38 & K
geographical information is therefore presented. DT

1 84 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WEAMDBWHE (&)

(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued) (a) Wz (&)
The Group engages in the retail business, and Z?»‘%Tﬁé%?%%?% Bt - AR
accordingly, the directors of the Company consider NAIEERAR AEENTPE
that the Group’s customer base is diversified and Wzt BEE_T_TF=
has no customer with whom transactions have A=+t —BLEFEAEETEZ
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for the year SHBAREBRKFZI0BNEP
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: RMBNil). Details of “E-NF:AREZER) - E
concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note ERBEFNFIBEHINM T
28(a). 28(a) °
Information on gross revenue HBKREBZER
Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising BWHIEHER M fFATER
from the sales of goods, concession sales charged ﬁZ%ﬁ%%iﬁ%%@ﬁﬁ%)\%
to retail customers, gross rental income and KA P WA 2 B 1R A TR 76
management and administrative service fee income BIRWAZ B

charged to tenants.

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Sales of goods R k= 302,622 596,232
Gross revenue from concession sales #FeF BB fHE 42 Uk 25 1,395,508 1,999,289
Gross rental income @i WA 64,377 77,432
Management and administrative B NITH RS E WA
service fee income 50,164 56,148
1,812,671 2,729,101
Further details regarding the Group’s principal BRAANEETEEK 7 E—FF
activities are disclosed below. BRTXHE -
o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(i)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

Department stores and shopping mall: this
segment operates 5 department stores and
a shopping mall at the end of the reporting
period. During the year, one of the Group’s
department stores has been closed.

Supermarkets: this segment operates 7
supermarkets.

Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and net income and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and net income
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

4 WHEMDBEE (&)

(b)

2B E

AEEEBEGRIUEERAR
o BIRD B MKRRF M
o ORNERAKREZZSRE
EEEABHREERTA  KE
B2 IR IA T MIE R & 2 BT
28 - MEBLE D RS HABK
PEE: ok

s ABERLEBYHL R
BEHREDBERAR
BERES N —KBYHL
X -RER KRB Z—
XBEESHEE-

s HBAML:UHOMERL
ENEVISRRE SV

(i) HDEHBEH
R BB S D ERIA
EoBEERME  AEE
SREREERE @A
MEDPBEIEEE H

EEWMTE

Yoz ORI A A K f 2 9
REaHmENE 2R
& E D AR E A W e R
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment information (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “adjusted EBITDA"” i.e. “adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including interest income, and other financial
charges and income, and “depreciation
and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets and valuation gain or loss on investment
property. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the
Group's earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. No inter-segment sales
have occurred for the year ended 31 March
2020 and 2019.

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group’s senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year ended 31
March 2020 and 2019 is set out below.

4 WHMD

(BrIEZ=BIEH

BRIAAREZ3)

BB/ E (F)

(b) DEHmE (&)
(i)

DEBER (E)

ARBES>BRERAZ A
=B T4 EEBITDA | -
BN M A& 2 Rt F B -
ME - WERBHIZA
A He (58] 87 F
BUA R EAM R 7 1 &
WA mITEREE] B
EEWEEREREEL
BEBEEAREYE 2 H
BEREHEE - BT EL
FEEBITDA RNEB 2 &
Ty R BT EB
ME R 7 & 2 18 B {EH #
— A AR ERE
RAETTHEAR -REZEZ
= TEER T —NF=
A=1+—HItFEE A
7> 20 ] 7 4 8 £ o

BB B S AR
B EREREES BE
2o F i BEESHEE
RABEHZAR2%.

ATNFEERASE 2R
BEDMEHTRE TR

nEEEBERE MU
HESHBE-—F-TF

=A=+—BILFERE
E-E-NF=ZA=+—
AiItFEDRERETGE
DEPRIR

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

4 WHEMDBEE (&)

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) HEF/E (&)
(i) Segment information (continued) (i) 7EHER (&)
2020
S 33
Department
stores and
shopping mall ~ Supermarkets Total
BEEER
BYAHL BE TS CH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFT ARETF T
Disaggregated by timing of KUK EHRIAKHELE
revenue recognition
Point in time bR 26 282,723 244,748 527,471
Over time BE B 91,175 23,366 114,541
Revenue and net income AREPZW#ER
from external customers FRARARE 2B
and reportable segment Wi R FERA
revenue and net income 373,898 268,114 642,012
Reportable segment loss AfEIBER
(adjusted EBITDA) (#&RFEEBITDA) (520,125) (13,074) (533,199)
2019
—T-NEF
Department
stores and
shopping mall Supermarkets Total
BEEE K
B BRTS At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
Disaggregated by timing of B aERRE D E
revenue recognition
Point in time IR 24 658,679 261,806 920,485
Qver time I 5 [ 106,075 27,505 133,580
Revenue and net income from  SNEE P 2 M I
external customers and FRAR AT S D8
reportable segment revenue Yz BOF A
and net income 764,754 289,311 1,054,065
Reportable segment profit AIRED R
(adjusted EBITDA) (4 FZEEBITDA ) 178,625 17,531 196,156

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WRMDEHKE (&)

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEF/mE (&)
(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment (i) THREDZB (EE), &
(loss)/profit Fi £t Bk
2020 2019
—E-EF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARMTFIT
Reportable segment (loss)/profit  a] 45 5 50 (E518) %% A (533,199) 196,156
Other net income H At WA 10,629 3,895
Depreciation expenses TERY (165,095) (143,350)
Impairment losses on goodwill 25 (B &5 18 (470,605) (194,728)
Valuation loss on an investment &Y LEERE
property (28,700) =
Net finance costs M ERFE (118,509) (88,107)

Unallocated head office and ADEREE R EITHRR

corporate administration

expenses (11,020) (21,673)
Loss before taxation % B Bl S 18 (1,316,499) (247,807)
5 OTHER NET INCOME 5 HMFERWKWA
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARKFIT
Interest income B U A 5,795 7,667
Net income on a financial BEITERIERZFWRA
guarantee issued 1,415 5,660
Dividend income f& B U A 1,200 900
Changes in fair value of other HEmiEE 2 A EE
financial assets = (10,332)
Write-off of other payables 0 S L A FE 5P R 2,219 -
10,629 3,895

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6 PBRBATER
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRBATEBE MR, (FTA) ¢
(crediting):
(a) Net finance costs (a) BMIKEEBRFHE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT ARKFT
(Note)
(K1)
Interest expenses on bank and other $R1T % H & & 2§ & % H
borrowings (Note 21(b)) (KfaE21(b)) 189,761 158,220
Interest on lease liabilities MEBGBZME (Fa21(c)
(Note 21(c)) 6,503 =
Bank charges and other finance costs#R 17 & F3 & H fth B1 7 & A 11,522 11,286
Total borrowing costs 1S B R A 207,786 169,506
Less: interest expense capitalised B BB AN AW BB TN
into prepayments for acquisitions X182 F B F X
of properties (88,756) (79,809)
Finance income on loan receivables JEWE =7 E R Z B KA
from third parties (32) (1,591)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss GNE (U as ) BB F5E (489) 1
118,509 88,107
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using Kiet - REEBEAKETEHNE
the modified retrospective approach. Under EPNEE LR
the transition methods chosen, comparative Flo - BIBFTEZEMNBE
information is not restated. See Note 2(c). 5 R BRI ARES o B
i2(0)
The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate HE_Z-_ZF=HA=+—H
of 7.48% per annum for the year ended 31 March IFFEEERANDIRGFET7.48%
2020 (2019: 6.70%) (see Note 17). —E—NFE:6.70% ) ZHEE
M (RFEE17) ©
(b) Staff costs (b) EIRAX
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Salaries, wages and other benefits  #¥& « T& K E b 1g A 113,382 127,746

Contributions to defined ) & B8 4 FUR IR AT &4 50
contribution retirement plans 11,769 16,320
125,151 144,066

1 90 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # £
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)
(b) Staff costs (continued)

()

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the schemes at 20% of the employees’ basic
salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are entitled
to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for employees under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by an independent trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant salaries, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant salaries of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no further obligation for payment of
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual
contributions.

Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

bt &2 T 5V ERE 1T

(BIHFZEHERE TRIAAREZS)

6 PFRBAIEE (&)

(b)

BETIRA(E)
REBRABEKY 2B AR Z
EELHEMFHRNEEBER 2T
PR NREBAEE - B ZE
MEARBRESEEAH G Z
20% A2 E AT 2R - BB _Ealt
BIRETE ZEHNBRAREER
EREFRNRFRFEER
RIRETEIZ iR B 1 5 &K
TEHDLFE ZRKREH o

REBNMRBEESREHEATES
SFENED BB REGD 2 8%
EETZEEEE—ERH4%
NERETE ([RFERETE]) -
wiEestE A —ERBYTEA
BB 7 ERAMRGTE - BiERTE
¢HE - BENEREBHEBERE
ERBEHEE 2% (5 ABBES
& PR A30,0005 7t ) [ 51 2 4
o MoafE e a8 2 KA R
% °

BR1EH Ll & B 505N - R E
jﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ@%&%%ﬂﬁ?ﬂZﬁ
EO

Other operating expenses: () HttZ&EMx%:
2020 2019
—ESE-8F —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARKEF T
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BRI 257 B

— statutory audit service —AERB R 4,200 4,000
Other professional service fee HMBERBE 5,745 12,411
Expected credit loss on trade and & Uk BR 7 12 E fib & Ue 5 2 FE A

other receivables (Note) =EEE (HiF) 604,716 17,394
Provisions for future Cash Coupon # F E & 2 R RFEN &G

Card to be consumed (B HfaE20(c))

(See Note 20(c)) 94,046 -
Property management fee MEEEE 8,409 14,318
Loss on disposal of property, plant EEWE - WEL&ZEZEE

and equipment 403 1,123
Others H A 30,116 41,632

747,635 90,878
Note: During the year, expected credit loss of it : PREE - B e U BR 3R K EL A

RMB604,716,000 was recognised in loss allowance
for trade and other receivables, of which
RMB586,477,000 (2019: RMB2,004,000) was
related to the receivables due from a third party.
See Note 20(c).

fEUR Gk 2 518 B e R TR A
EEE ARK604,716,000
» H i AR #586,477,000
(ZE—NLF: ARK
2,004,00070) B FEUN 58 = /5
FRIBA R - B HI#E20(0) °

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)

192

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HREBRRAMSBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEBEZRAZBIEIE:
profit or loss represents:
2020 2019
—ECEHF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETF T
Current taxation (see Note 26(a)): ASHAFIIE ( £ ff:F26(a)) :
— Provision for PRC Corporate —H B EMEHEE
Income Tax 3,394 13,557
— Over-provision in respect of —BEFEBERE
prior years (2,166) (5,013)
1,228 8,544
Deferred taxation (see Note 26(b)): dEERLIE ( B fif:£26(b)) :
— Origination and reversal of —ERER 7 EENELD
temporary differences (5,137) 7,474
(3,909) 16,018
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEBXZHEETERRERN
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: RZHRABWE:
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥F ARETFT
Loss before taxation R A% A B 18 (1,316,499) (247,807)
Expected tax on loss before MrEi Al E 18 2 TE HAFR 18
tax, calculated at the rates BB E A ERES
applicable to profits in the w2 BAMETE
tax jurisdictions concerned (BT aE0) ~ (i) % (i) )
(see Notes (i), (ii) and (iii)) (345,328) (57,870)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A~ A] 13 X H 2 B S 2 & 228,568 56,555
Tax concessions (see Note (iv)) MEER (AR E)) 69,577 (5,841)
Tax effect of unused tax losses AIERKRE BT IS E I 2§15
not recognised T 45,440 28,187
Over-provision in respect of BAEFEBBERE
prior years (2,166) (5,013)
Income tax PGt (3,909) 16,018
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited L
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBEBRAMSBH (£)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%). No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made,
as the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: RMBNil).

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the PRC
(including Hong Kong) are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate
of 25% for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
25%).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC obtained approvals from the respective
tax bureaux in 2012 that they are entitled to tax
benefits applicable to entities under the Second
Phase of the Western Region Development Plan of
the PRC, and enjoy a preferential PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate of 15% for the calendar years from
2011 to 2020.

(b) BIEXHREFERZERB
RRBWMT: (&)

Ff et -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RARRAEEREBEMAK
hvivdl S NEIEE b R
BRHEEE165% (ZF—h1
F:165%) HRARA R
& B R E S e A L 2 B
BRAREBZEZE-_Z_ZTF=A
=+ —BIEFETEEMNE
BHEH 2 ERR R (=
—NEAREZIT) B
RELBE ARG EL B -

ARBRAEERPE (24
BB ) ASNBEI R A SL 2 Bt
BRAIREE S 8 M E
KRR ROER BRBMER
PS5t o

2T _TF=-FA=+—H
LEEE AEBRFBERKLZ
BB R R BB AN B 2 TS
M=K E25% (—ZT—HF:
25% ) °

RZB——F KrEEETE
R BBk 57 2 Y B A R ER1S AE RS
MBI AEZZERARN
FEEBAFRETEEZBAT

FR 2 AT R
RIEB——FEZ_ZT_TFE
FER15% 2 BEPEBERR
FHME -

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS B8 BRAIAAREZ3)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8 EEFHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section BIBEBR B R AHEGIFE383(NIE KA T
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (BBREEFNRER) RO E 2305 5E
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about ZEEHMOT

Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2020
SRl
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2HR
Eshe HEEUEN MiERS BAGHEER At

RMB0O)  RMBO00  RMBOO)  RMBO00  RMBY00D
ARBFL  ARKETR ARBFT  ARKETZ  ARETR

Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) R-BRE (1) 3351 586 - 16 3953
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter =t e
(resigned on 21 October 2019) (R=F-NE+R=1+-REH) 1113 52 - 9 1,234
Mr. Sha Yingjie (resigned on 21 October 2019) &A% &
(RZZ-NETAZt-HER) 45 - - - 45
Mr. Qin Chuan (appointed on 21 October 2019) %JI| % 4
(RZE-NETA-T-REZRE) 381 - - 8 389
Non-executive directors FhHrEE
Mr. Chen Shuai ks = - - - i
Mr. Cao Yonggang R
(resigned on 21 October 2019) (R=B-n&E+A-+-BEL) - - - - -
Mr. Qu Jiagi (resigned on 21 October 2019)  EFxHE %4
(RZE-NETAZT-HEE) 51 - - - 51

Independent non-executive directors ~ BU#HTEZE
Dr. Han Qinchun (appointed on 30 Sept 2019) BZ&E+

(RZE-NENA=TEEEH) 10 - - - 70

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng gL s 203 - - - 203
Dr. Cao Guogi (resigned on 30 Sept 2019)  EEHAL

(RZE-NFAA=TREHE) 133 - - - 133

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BRELE 230 - - - 230

5,637 638 - 33 6,308

1 94 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EELHM (&)

2019
ZE-0F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ ~ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
=1 )
ESfe HOENEHN MERE RIGELR At

RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR

Executive directors HFEE
Mr. Wu Yijan (Chairman) R-BRE(2E) 479 695 - 15 4,989
Mr. Chan Wai Kiong, Peter RAtLE 1,540 246 - 15 1,801
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (resigned on LEBIEL
31 Ocober 2018 (RF-NEHA=H-BRE) 1123 : : 9 1
Mr. Sha Yingje PEARE 82 - - - 8
Non-executive directors FHEE
Mr. Chen Shuai B4 - - - - .
Mr. Cao Yonggang EhlEE - - - - -
Mr. Qu Jiagi BREAL 9 - - - i
Independent non-executive directors By ##HEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng PLEle 4 & 257 - - - 257
Ms. Sun Zhili (resigned on 19 October 2018) kB % +
(RZE-NETATAREHL) 141 - - - 141
Dr. Cao Guog EEERL 257 - - - 257
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai il 257 - - - 257
8,028 941 = 39 9,008
o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2019: three) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 8.

The emoluments in respect of the other three (2019: two)
individuals are as follows:

9

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

RE#HAL

EREBERHFALH ME(ZE
—NEF ZR)REF MEMESHE
B SRR -

BREM=%2(ZT—-NF :WE)A
TZMEmT:

2020 2019

—ECEE —ET-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR®T T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %4 « 2 BE & E it B W@ 7 2,720 1,946
Retirement scheme contributions BIRETEIHE TR 120 146
2,840 2,092

The emoluments of the three (2019: two) individuals who
are not directors and who are amongst the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are within the following

=R (ZE-NF MB)LFE
EFZABENAEBREARSHA
T2 BRI AL 2 Fr BT F LA T 8

bands: :
2020 2019
—E-8% <—ZT-Nf
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
& B A & &R A 25
HKD Nil to HKD 1,000,000 =T I0£1,000,000% T 1 =
HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7c £ 1,500,000/ T 2 2

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 HhZ2ms
Tax effects relating to each component of other EHMEHEHBREBOEE2ZBIE
comprehensive income =2
2020 2019
g 32 —Z-0E
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax  Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
NRBE  BEEN nEBHE

BHENEE HERX RER &8 BERX Re®
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  ARMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT AREFT ARETT ARETR

(Note 26(b)) (Note 26(b))
(Hizt26(b)) (Hizt26(b)
Surplus on revaluation of land ~ Efi{EE AL RET
and buildings held for LB (RHE12)
own use (see Note 12) 11,550 (2,185) 9,365 24,677 (5,982) 18,695
Other financial assets: HEepaE:
- Net movement in the -DrEREEDFE
fair value reserve (70,198) 10,531 (59,667) (43,800) 6,569 (37,231)
Exchange differences on BRERZIEN L
translation into 5 =5
presentation currency (17,192) - (17,192) (14,438) - (14,438)
Other comprehensive income ~ E 1 2 E 2% (75,840) 8,346 (67,494)  (33,561) 587 (32,974)
There was no reclassification adjustment relating to FATESEEMEERENRD 2=
components of other comprehensive income during the FoBRAR(ZE—NEF &)

year (2019: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

11 LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB1,279,095,000 (2019:
RMB261,575,000) and the weighted average
number of 2,323,693,000 ordinary and convertible
preference shares (2019: 2,323,693,000 ordinary
and convertible preference shares) in issue during
the year.

The holder of the convertible preference shares
is entitled to receive the same rate of dividends/
distributions as the holders of ordinary shares.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the calculation of
basic loss per share, the convertible preference
shares issued have been included in the calculation
of the weighted average number of shares in issue.

Diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB1,279,095,000 (2019:
RMB261,575,000) and the weighted average
number of 2,323,693,000 ordinary and convertible
preference shares (diluted) (2019: 2,323,693,000
ordinary and convertible preference shares
(diluted)).

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

11 BREE

(a)

(b)

BREXRER
BIREARER IER AR AR
FE (5 Es 18 A R #51,279,095,000
T(ZE—hF: AR
261,575,00070) M R AR ERNE
ZE 17 N4 9 #2,323,693,000
T @R kA mREER (=%
— L4 2,323,693,0000% L& @
A& R AT A AR B AR ) AT E o

AR BB A AR RIREE
BEFTA AR L REERE
SRk Bt A EFRER
ERME st E BT N
FHBRE AR BT RIRE
v

BEREBEESR
FREEREE I ERA R AR
FE(5 B 18 A R #51,279,095,000
T(ZE—-—hF: AR
261,575,0007T ) & hi#E 159 £k
2,323,693,0000% & i A% K 7] 12
RELRKR (BE) (Z2— N1
£F :2,323,693,0000% & 3@ A% &
AIMRELR (HE) )t &E -
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Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥ -BEREE

Residential

properties

landand  held for own
buildings held use carried

for own use at cost and Furniture,
carried at fair leasehold fixtures and Construction
value  improvements equipment  Motor vehicles in progress Total
BRI &2

WRAESIE HFEREE
ZBfFERL  MEREE  GACKE
BRET  NERRE Rite  BEIR  ERIR GE
AMBOOO  RMBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOO0
AERFL  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARKTR

Cost or valuation: BASHE:
At 1 April 2018 R-F-\EMA-A 2,964,310 480,977 103,780 7,114 1,283 3,557 464
Exchange adjustments EHBE - )] 1,155 - - 1,187
Reclassifcation from investment property 4% ENE B3 1 8

(see Note 13) (ZH313) 38,600 - - - - 38,600
Additions AE - 2721 3461 - 11,112 17,294
Transfer inf(out) @)/ (i) - 11,35 - - (11,356) -
Written off and disposal W REE - (57,679) (6,813) (1,237) (414) (66,139)
Surplus on revaluation ERRE (AHH10)

(see Note 10) 24,677 - - - - 24,677
Less: elimination of accumulated B BHRANE

depreciation (96,277) - - - - (96,277)
At 31 March 2019 RZB-NE=A=+-H 2,931,310 437411 101,583 5,877 625 3,476,806
Representing: f
Cost BA - 437411 101,583 5,877 625 545,496
Valuation - 31 March 2019 BE-ZB-NE=A=t-H 2931310 - - - - 2,931,310

2,931,310 437411 101,583 5,877 625 3,476,806

Accumulated depreciationand it ERAEER:

impairment losses:
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\FHA-H - 290,773 74,084 5,737 - 370,59
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 2% 1,081 - - 1,105
Charge for the year FEEHE 9,277 35,356 11,468 249 - 143,350
Written off and written back on disposals 135 k& ER & - (56,743) (6,306) (954) = (64,003)
Elimination on revaluation BfERH (96,277) - - - - (%,277)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NEZA=+-H - 269,410 80,327 5,032 = 354,769
Net book value: BHFE:
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H 2,931,310 168,001 21,256 845 625 3,122,037
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥ -BERRZRE ()
(continued)
Residential
Land and properties held
buildings held  for own use
for own use carried at cost Properties Furniture,
carried at fair ~ and leasehold leased for fixtures and Construction
value improvements ownuse  equipment Motor vehicles in progress Total
BEASIEZ
NARESIR KERRGE
ZEEER  MERHEE B 2B
1HRET Nx%8  BREENE Rif EHIE ERIE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARETT  ARETT ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Cost or valuation; RAGE:
At 31 March 2019 R=E-NE=F=1-R 2,931,310 437,411 - 101,583 5817 625 3,476,806
Impact on initial application of BRERASHBREENE6% 2
HKFRS 16 (Note) 72 (Wit) - - 97,636 - - - 97,636
At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NEMA-A 2,931,310 437,411 97,636 101,583 5871 625 3,574,482
Exchange adjustments [E HE - )] - 1,141 - - 11713
Additions hE - 3,013 100 902 476 - 4491
Transfer in/{out) #A/ (i) - 392 - - - (392) =
Written off and disposal HEREE - (35.427) - (3.201) 0] - (38,632)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10)  Ef R (BHfE10) 11,550 - - - - - 11,550
Less: elimination of accumulated W EHENE
depreciation (98,860) - - - - - (98,860)
At 31 March 2020 RZFZFF=A=1-H 2,844,000 405,421 97,736 100,425 6,349 233 3,454,164
Representing: &
Cost A = 405,421 97,736 100,425 6,349 233 610,164
Valuation - 31 March 2020 ffE-—2-FE=A=T-H 2,844,000 - - - - - 2,844,000
2,844,000 405,421 97,736 100,425 6,349 233 3,454,164
Accumulated depreciation and ZHFERAEFE:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2019 R=Z-NENA-A - 269,410 - 80,327 5,032 - 354,769
Exchange adjustments By HE - ] - 114 - - 1,173
Charge for the year TEEAE 98,860 30,985 26,056 9,047 147 - 165,095
Written off and written back on disposals i3 & & B &[0 - (18,165) - (3,018) 6] 5 (21,186)
Elimination on revaluation B A (98,860 - - - - - (98,860)
At 31 March 2020 WZZZRE=[=1-H - 282,262 26,056 87497 5176 - 400,991
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2020 RZB-BE=A=1-H 2,844,000 123,159 71,680 12,928 1173 B3 30317
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited L
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Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets
relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17. See Note 2(c).

(a)

Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment property

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s land and buildings and investment
property measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

(BRIFSEHEE  BRIUAREZZ)
12 M% BEREE (&)

Kzt - AEBEEERRARERTEYERE
RBEEM R EERF165% - L
BER-_Z-NFHA—BHHIE
o AERELHREFTEGE
A7 ERKEHENEES
FAHEREEE - BME2) °

(a) BAREIRZLIHUREFR
REWMEZRIREE

(i) 2nEEX
TREJRNRERRLE
FUEEFEZAEEHZ
THREFUARKREDE
ZonfE BRZAAE
RO AHE(RE
BB HE ERIE135%
[RAEGE]I ZER)D
B-BRAREFEDSR
EXRDSEWMTEERE
TR ABEZIBRRE
NREZURERF:

e HFAfAE:EMEH
£ — R ABE (H
Rt ERRBEEEN
BENERTIS 2K
RBAERE)FEZ
DRfE

e HB_AfAE:-ERE
— R ABUE (AR
REERE Rz AE
K@ AHE) BYX R
FEREATAHRS
ABEBEFEZRAR
B NI B R E AR
ERET S BERRER
TZBABE-

s F=-HHEEAE
AR ERE i A BUE
HEZARE

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE-—E-—FTHF=A=+—HILFE

(BrIF=B1EH

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment property (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

BAIKAREZS)
12 M% BERRE (&)

(a) BERAEIRZTHBREFR
REVMEZRAARETE (&)

(i) AREER(E)
Fair value measurements

categorised into Level 3

DPER/E=ZRM2DIAEFE

2020 2019
—E-EF = — N
Recurring fair value REMEARBETE RMB’000 RMB’000
measurements AR®FT ARETT
Land and buildings held forown use ~ #{EE At RIEF 2,844,000 2,931,310
Investment property (see Note 13) KEME (RHiE13) 1,265,300 1,294,000
During the year ended 31 March 2020, there HE_Z_ZTF=HA
was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, =t+—HIEFE: ]I?%\Ii
or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2019: no —AREE AR B
transfer). The Group’s policy is to recognise BEASBEHE=R(=F
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy —NF-EER) KAEHE
as at the end of the reporting period in which ZHEABRBEEER W
they occur. FHRERAAEEBRE
7 AR R 2 B o
All of the Group’s land and buildings carried AEEMARAREBEYRKR
at fair value and investment property were ZITHREBFARKE
revalued as at 31 March 2020. The valuations MER_ZT_FTF=H

were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyor, Roma Appraisals Limited, who have
among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being
valued. The Group’s Financial Controller has
discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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Bt 3% R & MY &%
For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBHIEH B AIUAN REZ %)
12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥ -BERRE ()
(continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of land and (a) BOAAEBEIRZTHERFR
buildings carried at fair value and REWMEZIAETE (&)
investment property (continued)

(i) E=RALEAEFERS

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in

Level 3 fair value measurements 215 1E T L R A B 5%
Range
o
Valuation Unobservable 2020 2019
techniques input —E-EE —E-hEF
HER % FTUBEZHAHE RMB RMB
AR ARE

Land and buildings held ~ Market comparison Average market unit 12,000 ~ 51,000 14,000 ~ 53,000

for own use approach sale rate (per sq.m.)
FEERLHRET miHL B FHmGELER
(§¥AK)
Investment property Market comparison Average market unit 28,173 28,809
REMS approach sale rate (per sq.m.)
s B FHmGELER
(§FAK)

The fair value of land and buildings carried
at fair value and investment property located
in the PRC is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a
price per square meter basis in the relevant
market. Comparable properties of similar size,
characteristics and location are analysed and
selected for each property in order to arrive at
a fair comparison of their fair values. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to
the average market unit sale rate.

Fair value adjustment of investment property
is recognised in the line item “Valuation loss
on an investment property” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

R ZEA A2 ESRR
ZEHRBEBFARKREY
XZRAREEAMSBLEER
FEE HEE2EA ML
BRYEREBTISEF T
KEBEEFE ZOHE
B-BRAARLBEZKREY
XZ2PnfE DM REE
MR BERMERIZ
ALLBYME - Z AR ER
SENARFHNEEME
{EAH AR -

BREWMEZ DA ERER
ARG RZIREME
fMEREE] BRER -

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER

203




Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 WX BERSE (&)

(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and (a) RAAREIRZIHBREFR
buildings carried at fair value and REWMEZAAETE (&)
investment property (continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used (i) B=RARETEFEA
in Level 3 fair value measurements Z 1G58 7L R A B
(continued) (%)

Surplus on revaluation and exchange REBRATHREFZE
adjustment of land and buildings held for own HERBRNELFAER Y
use are recognised in other comprehensive FERFEHEINERRE
income in “Property revaluation reserve”. ftby 2 [ 45 55 o

All the losses recognised in profit or loss for AFEEERBERZMEE
the year arise from the properties held at the BELEEREHRBEZ
end of the reporting period. L

(i) Depreciated cost of land and buildings (iii) URAREIRZIFEE R

held for own use carried at fair value THREFITELE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMFT ARETT

Had the revalued land and WA R AR ESER 2 S5 i
buildings carried at fair value ~ RAEFLARKAK Rt E
been carried at cost less MO EEE SR - BREE

accumulated depreciation and  # &
impairment losses, the carrying
amount would have been 1,601,566 1,654,384

204 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

(BRIFSEHEE  BRIUAREZZ)
12 M% BEREE (&)
(b) EAREE

EREEERIFERAEEE
BRIDHT :

31 March 1 April
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
=A=+—H mA—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR®Fr ARETFT
Ownership interests in leasehold 7 B LA A 2 B BE 2
land and buildings held for EERZHE i k1&g
own use, carried at fair value  FrHEAEREZ A
in PRC, with remaining lease BR T AHEAN 102505
term between 10 and 50 years (i) 2,844,000 2,931,310
Residential properties held BRITEXRT R Z#F1E
for own use carried at HREEME
depreciated cost (ir) 13,743 26,594
Properties leased for own use, T E KX AT R 2 B B
carried at depreciated cost HEWZE (iii) 71,680 97,636
85,423 124,230
Ownership interests in leasehold RN ERE W 2 A IE
investment property, carried R EALEYREK:
at fair value, with remaining A T AN T 102504F
lease term between 10
and 50 years 1,265,300 1,294,000
4,194,723 4,349,540

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE-—E-—FTHF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 NE-BERSZE (&)

(continued)
(b) FHREEE (&)
BN ERERAEMYIER

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: DWWT
2020 2019
—E-EHE —NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBF T
(Note)
(Ktat)
Depreciation charge of right-of-use 1288 & E 8 B2 5 &9 {E AR
assets by class of underlying asset: ZEHELH :
Ownership interests in leasehold R R B RRZ FFE
land and buildings held for own BERZEELHREFTY
use, carried at fair value in PRC HEEER 98,860 96,277
Residential properties held for own ZATERK AR 2 H1EB H
use carried at depreciated cost FEME 624 814
Properties leased for own use, BTERAS|RzEAHEE
carried at depreciated cost S 26,056 -
125,540 97,091
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) Tﬁfi\,@\ B2 FE (Kizt6a)) 6,503 -
Expense relating to short-term leases E24%5 HAFR & K FlerfA EHIA —
and other leases with remaining T_EF=A=+—H%xz
lease term ending on or before A 4% 1E#Y E At 7H & 7 B A9
31 March 2020 53 1,059 -
Total minimum lease payments for BEREE B @HER|FE 1758
leases previously classified as DEACEHEC HE &
operating leases under HKAS 17 (KFLE FRIB A% - 39,772

Mt AEBE B RRBEERE

WA e R BB B 7% R 5 e Bl

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach and adjusted

206

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

the opening balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at
1 April 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to
recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See Note 2(c).

F165 URER-_FT—AH
FOA—HVBRYIEEER - DATE
RESTHRBERT LS ER
IR B RKREEENHE
EARNERAREE-RN=-F
—NFMA — B AR R (E
REEER AEB ((FR%E
M) BEREREEENTT
B MIERENERERRE
HAKEHEELNEERH
X EVRER  RAR LT - LB
BRI EED - BHEE2() °
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B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were RMB100,000. This amount primarily related to
the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
Notes 21(c) and 24, respectively.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Ownership interests in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use

The Group holds several commercial buildings
for its department store and shopping mall
operation business. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including
the whole and part of undivided share in
the underlying land. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property
interests from their previous registered
owners, and there are no ongoing payments
to be made under the terms of contract for
assignment.

Residential properties held for own use
carried at depreciated cost

The Group holds several residential properties.
The Group is the registered owner of these
property interests, including the whole and
part of undivided share in the underlying land.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests from their
previous registered owners, and there are
no ongoing payments to be made under the
terms of contract for assignment.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its retail stores through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 1 to 12 years. Lease payments
are usually increased every year to reflect
market rentals.

(BrIEZ=BIEH

BRIAAREZ3)

12 ME - BEREE (F)

(b) EREEE (&)

FRN FREEEABEAARE
100,0007T ° 7% & % * Z H IR IK
FHEREEN CERNMEEER
HA R -

HEZReRORELTHES
B2 EIH B 542 5 &AM &
21(c) X224 -

() FEERAZHELHRE
FRHEEEED
AEBGEBERFRET
UREAERSERESE
B AEERZEMERE
SHNEREAAN BFEE
At esREs RS
BB {0 o A E TR 5 X
—EBRIE A8 HATE
i B A Wi % F 1) <
o Y ERIFEEES QD
1%?&(2\ FrE S RRE

(i) BITERAIIRZIEFES
BlEEYE
AEBEBEETEEY
E-ANEBEAZEMERE
=MEREER A BIEE
L2 RIS KD
F) % 17 o AN 5= B 3B %k 2 A+
—SE@NRE - UNBERIF
MEEE AKRBEZS ERE
H BYEBREEEAYD
R ERESNRA-

(iii) ERHEEYF
ZKE@ELZE?H%WJ**
BEREMODEERET
%EZ%%'J HE—&Y
PR —E2E+-_F-HE
NRBEFFEM AR
RIS EE

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 Y¥ - BERRXE (&)
(continued)
(c) Title ownership () ¥X®EmEHE
As at the date of this report, the Group was RARERH AEEEER
in the progress of applying for registration of HETYXREFELMBERESR
the ownership certificates for certain of its E - ZEMER_ZT_TF=FH
properties. The aggregate carrying value of such “t+—HZBEABEANAR
properties as at 31 March 2020 was approximately #13,743,0007C (ZF— N5 :
RMB13,743,000 (2019: RMB26,594,000). The AR #26,594,0007T) - EER
directors are of the opinion the Group is entitled to RAEEERSEERARGR
lawfully own and occupy these properties. ZEWE -
13 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 13 REW=E
2020 2019
—B-BF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®EFRT ARETRT

Valuation: fh{E :
At 1 April R A—H 1,294,000 1,332,600
Reclassification to property, plant and EEF D EEWE - HE &R
equipment (see Note 12) (A HaE12) - (38,600)
Fair value adjustments NREAE (28,700) -
At 31 March N=A=+—H 1,265,300 1,294,000
14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BREE
Trademark-
use-right
ERE A
RMB’000
ARKFT
Cost: B
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and RZE—N\FEOA—H-
31 March 2020 —E-NAF=ZR=1T—HBRK
—ZE-TFE=A=+—H 424,812
Accumulated impairment losses: ZERERE -
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and RZE—N\FEOA—H-
31 March 2020 —E-AF=ZR=1T—HBRK
—E-FF=A=+—H -
Carrying amount: IREME
At 31 March 2019 and 2020 RZT—NFK
—E-FF=H=+—H 424,812
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B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group's trademark-use-right represents the Group's
which the Group has

use of the trademark “Ginwa”
acquired through its acquisitions of depart
supermarket operations in prior years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are allocated
to the Group's cash-generating units identified according
to the department store and supermarket operations

acquired as follows:

(BRIF=EHEH BRAIKAREZS)

14 /\\\ﬁ/ﬁé (/'/\)

AEBZRAEEAEEASERZ
[EEl 2ERE ERNBEFRES
WiE B ERS MBRT IS XS -

ment store and

E:?H,Hﬂﬁﬁ—fﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁzﬁi%iﬁig@ﬁ
WA B E RS RBRT S
B9 EEiK%IZE%%‘Jfﬁﬁ?_’%ﬁ

fiz :

Country of operation and

operating segments 2020 2019
EXBERREE D —E-ER —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AR®F T
Century Ginwa Company Ltd. Department stores and
("Ginwa Bell Tower") shopping mall-PRC
e EROHBRAR ([RIEER]) BERSREDROL—FEH 210,132 210,132
Golden Chance (Xian) Limited (“GCX") Department stores and
shopping mall-PRC
BERSLREDTL-—FE 140,000 140,000
Ideal Mix Limited Department stores and
shopping mall and
supermarkets-PRC
BERASREDTOEBRT
- 74,680 74,680
424,812 424,812
Details of impairment tests relating to for cash-generating BAEERENRESRAFERFH 2
units containing goodwill and intangible assets with ML EAEZIRSELBEMN ZBE R

indefinite useful life are set out in Note 15.

SIS EAMIFES °

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #H#ZE T -THF=A=+— ELthr/*

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)
15 GOODWILL 15 B8
RMB’000
ARMTF T
Cost: A
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and \—i@—/\imﬂ H-
31 March 2020 —NEF=R=+—HBRK
_7_$$ A=+—H 1,451,814
Accumulated impairment losses: At EERBE:
At 1 April 2018 RZZFE—-N\FMA—H 563,663
Impairment losses VERIEN SR 194,728
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 A\ZE—-AF=A=1t—HEK
—E-NFHA—H 758,391
Impairment losses BEEE 470,605
At 31 March 2020 R-_E-ZTF=H=+—H 1,228,996
Carrying amount: BREIE :
At 31 March 2020 R-_E-_ZEF=FA=+—H 222,818
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-hF=A=+—H 693,423

Impairment tests for cash-generating units BERECRSELENZRENR
containing goodwill and intangible assets with AREEHRAEAFHZERLE
indefinite useful life E

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating HERIBEL T 2 B EEi5 LS
units identified according to the department store and BB EEOIEEARE 22 HAER
supermarket operations acquired as follows: SEESBM:

Country of operation and

operating segments 2020 2019
FBERREE D —E-EF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETFT
Ginwa Bell Tower Department stores and
shopping mall-PRC
TEER BEESIKEDRL—FEH - 396,569
GCX Department stores and
shopping mall-PRC
BERSLEDTL-—FE - 74,036
Ideal Mix Limited Department stores and
shopping mall and
supermarkets-PRC
BEBSEBYHROEBRT
35— 222,818 222,818
222,818 693,423

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life (continued)

Notes:

()

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the financial
performance of the Group’s department store and
supermarket operations, as a consequence of the
slowing down of economic growth in the PRC as well
as a consequence of the intense competition from
surrounding shopping malls and online retail sales,
has underperformed management’s expectations.
Management performed impairment assessments of the
relevant cash-generating units to which goodwill and
intangible assets have been allocated.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
were determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. These cash flow projections adopted
annual sales growth rates ranging from -15% to 2% (31
March 2019: from -21% to 2%), which are based on the
Group’s historical experience with these operations and
adjusted for other factors that are specific to each cash-
generating unit. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3%
(31 March 2019: 3%). The cash flows are discounted
using discount rate of 16% (31 March 2019: 15%). The
discount rates used are pre-taxed and reflect specific risks
relating to the respective cash-generating units.

15

(BRIF=EHEH BRAIKAREZS)

ik AC-P,

BEHECREELENZRER
AREENRACEAFHZETLE
E(&E)

ff & -

) BE_ZT-_TF=FA=1+—HILF
JZ - R BRI R R AR A S A
%%%ﬁ%&ﬁi?%% AR

BE AEBBEERSRBRTS
%%WW%%E@%%@E%%°
EEECHEEIERERETLE
EMEEE S EE EAETRIER
filre

REEEBNMIIRDE S EETHIEE
REBEEMEE - B@TENE
RREEIE E L ER R F M5
BEAEENBESRERA -ZFE
REeReBADNBERNEERZSE
%%ZE%&&%%E%%%E
EH-15%E2% (ZT—NLF=A
=t+—H:-21%%2% ) E{THE -
WS —FEReELEMFEZE
thAEA=FE - AFHARENE SR
SFEAMTEERI% (ZT—hF
ZA=Z+—H:3% ) )#ETHE-R

SREBRAMBEXRI6% (ZE— N
E_H_+ H:15% ) #E1TRLER
FriE AR R B ATRE IR & - R
LR IREEAEBMEREZETER
B o

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

15 GOODWILL (continued) 15 W8 (&)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units HEBECRSELEENZREN
containing goodwill and intangible assets with ARAEEBRACHFHZELE
indefinite useful life (continued) E(E&)
Notes: (continued) fiex: (&)
(i)  As a result of the above impairment test, impairment (i) AR EaRERNS HERERIE

losses on goodwill of approximately RMB470,605,000
were recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the current financial year, which relates to the
cash-generating units of Ginwa Bell Tower acquired in
August 2008 and GCX acquired in December 2010.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations
for the above two cash-generating units are as follows:

Key assumptions

#) AR #470,605,0007T A 28 B By 4F
EWiHeBaRikER PERRZE
ENFNAKENSTEEZRN =
T—TF+ - ARENGCXNIA S
EEEA-

LIRS ELBMNEREEE
Fir {8 P O B B2 R AR it A 2

At 31 March 2020 At 31 March 2019
R=-Z=%F i .2

ZEEE =H=t+-8H =A=+—H
Ginwa Bell Tower Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period 0% - 2% 21% - 2%
EEEE BRFHRNFEHEERE
Annual sales growth rate beyond five-year period 3% 3%
LEMRENFHEERE
Discount rate 16% 15%
BRE K
GCX Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period -15% - 2% -16% — 2%
BRFHRNEHEERE
Annual sales growth rate beyond five-year period 3% 3%
LEMRBNFHERERE
Discount rate 16% 15%

RS

Any adverse change in the assumptions used in the
calculation of recoverable amount of cash-generating
units would result in further impairment losses.

2 1 2 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 REMERF
The following list contains only the particulars of TREHIEZZEASEEXE B
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets EXBEZHB ARG

or liabilities of the Group.

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRRRLD
Particulars of
Place of registered and  The Group's
establishment padup effective  Held by the Held by Principal
Name of companies and operations capital interest Company  subsidiaries activities Legal form
HIR E%:*ﬂ’&& A5E HANE  HMEAR -
EL EXHE SRRrEY  ERER K5 L) IERH EEFR
Ginwa Bell Tower* The PRC RMBA R & 83.88% - 83.88% Operation of Limited liability
tEE H 235,500,0007 department store company
BEREHS EREfAR
Xi'an Century Ginwa Nandajie Shopping  The PRC RMBARH 100% = 100% Operation of Limited liability
Mall Company Limited* (Note (i) mE 5,000,007 department store company
BRUESEEAERNTOERAA BEREHES ERRfAT
(Hit()
Xi'an Century Ginwa Saigo Shopping  The PRC RVMBAR % 100% - 100% Operation of Limited liability
Mall Company Limited* i 30,000,0007 department store company
ARt e ERRNARAT S EREEAT
Xi'an Century Ginwa Shopping Mall ~ The PRC HK$ 100% - 100% Operation of Limited liability
Company Limited* e 65,000,000A7C department store company
ARt R e EENERAR BEREHES ERREAT
Xianyang Century Ginwa Trade and ~ The PRC RMBARH 100% = 100% Operation of Limited liability
Commerce Company Limited* # 3,000,0007 department stores company
HEtEEEEEaRAR and supermarkets BEREEAF
HERERER
BRmG
Xi'an Yixin Property Management The PRC RMBA R & 100% - 100% Properties Limited liability
Company Limited* G 536,885, 7507 management company
RZRENZERERAT nFER EREEAT
Shaanxi Qianhui Properties The PRC RVMBAR 100% - 100%  Operation of shopping Limited liability
Company Limited* H 252,800,007 mall and properties company
RETEEZARAR management BREfAR
LEBND LR
UESE
Xi'an Honghui Property Management  The PRC RMBA R & 100% - 100% Properties Limited liability
Company Limited* G 124,000,000 management company
RZEENZERERAT UES EREEAT
[
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 REMBLTF (&)
(continued)
*  The English translation of the names of these companies *  RERNARZRXBLEHRBREZ
are for reference only. The official names of these FERAIZIERBBABXZE-

companies are in Chinese.

Notes: Mzt -
(i)  The subsidiary has ceased operation in September 2019 (i) ZHBATEHNREEET EER
due to unsatisfactory operational results. —E-NFHLAEILES-
The following table lists out the information relating TERFHV|ANEB M —FER = AIEIZERE
to Ginwa Bell Tower, the only subsidiary of the Group R ([JEERERS 2B AR £
which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI"”). EEREBZER - N2 2875
The summarised financial information presented below BRHE BRI R A A 7] 8
represents the amounts before any inter-company ZEEEo
elimination.
2020 2019
—EEF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®FT ARKTFT
Revenue W %5 82,668 274,204
Loss for the year REZEE (207,785) (13,958)
Loss for the year attributable to NCI R4 [E JE4E I A 5 e (h E5 18 (33,495) (2,250)
Non-current assets JEMBEE 1,489,049 1,728,986
Current assets mEEE 659,728 617,733
Current liabilities mEAE (1,610,068) (1,540,553)
Net assets BEFH 538,709 806,166
Net assets attributable to NCI IR ER L EE TR 86,840 129,954

2 1 4 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF 17 WEBYEZBNFRE

PROPERTIES

RMB’000
AR F T
At 1 April 2018 H-ZE—NEMmMA—H 1,139,060
Additions INE 176,000
Interest expense capitalised BEERNME 2R B 79,809

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZEBE—NLF=A=+—HBK
—E-NFWMA—H 1,394,869
Additions NE 1,500
Interest expense capitalised EEREZFERX 88,756
At 31 March 2020 R-_E-_EF=HA=+—H 1,485,125

The amounts represent partial payments made by
the Group for its intended acquisition of commercial
properties under development that are situated in the
PRC. On 4 December 2014, the Group, through Ginwa
Bell Tower, entered into an acquisition agreement with
Shanghai Huade Investment Company Limited (“Huade
Investment”), pursuant to which Huade Investment
agreed to procure a project company to develop the
above properties in accordance with the requirements
of Ginwa Bell Tower, and Ginwa Bell Tower agreed to
purchase part of the above properties for an aggregate
consideration of RMB1,651,112,750. The substantial
construction of the commercial properties commenced in
October 2016. These properties are intended to be used
by the Group to expand its retail operations.

ZRBEEAEERKEBARPRZE
EEEMERMELR Z2BHAR - R
T-NFE+_ANB AEEEBS
EsEEE FgEEREGRAR ([7E
mRE DI WERE B e
KERZRFEER RARRESTER
TRAFLAYE MSEEERE
AR (B AR#1,651,112,750 T8
BEEn Ll -BEVMENELET
BR-ZZE—AF+ARA -ZEWE
BAEAEBARNBARTEXBEE-

18 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 18 Hihe@mEE
2020 2019
—EC_EHF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARBF T
Financial assets at fair value through AR EFFE B HE ST A
other comprehensive income Hth2EWE s EREE 182,400 252,600

Note: These securities represent the 30,000,000 A-shares
of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. (“Ginwa Enterprise
A-Shares”) listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2020, 30,000,000 Ginwa Enterprise
A-Shares of these securities were pledged to secure one
of the Group’s short-term bank and other loans (see Notes
23(a) and 23(c)).

Bt at : 3% %75 %$530,000,0000% 1A £ /&%
ERGEIEMzERECE (5R)
BOERATAKR([ETELEA
f&1) o

RZE_ZEFNLA=+H ZZE
& % 2.30,000,0004% % 7E & AR
WEHRNAAEE 2 EHBRTR
i EREER(RHFE230@) %
23(c)) °

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

19

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )
INVENTORIES 19 78
2020 2019
—EEHF —T—NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBF T
Merchandises Sl 24,831 38,916
Low value consumables EE S FEm 2,731 2,907
27,562 41,823

20

An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss is as follows:

ERAAXAINAGERERZFE

SEOTWT

2020 2019
—EBERE —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Frx ARMTFIT
Carrying amount of inventories sold ~ BE&FEEREE 252,183 517,105
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 FEUNBRFR R H fib FE WK
2020 2019
—EBERE —T-hnF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TF T ARMTFT
Trade receivables from third parties, JEWEE = HERF . kR EIE RS
net of loss allowance (see Note 20(a)) (R K1z20(a)) 34,893 41,269
Amounts due from related parties FENR FRE A+ 5RIE
(see Note 20(b)) (R HtaE20(b)) 2,693 3,712
Other receivables from third parties H bW SE = IR
(see Note 20(c)) (R Hta20(c) 105,267 370,723
Financial assets measured REEKATTEC ERERE
at amortised cost 142,853 415,704
Deposits and prepayments: me RFERNKIEA -
— Value added tax recoverable — AR B IS (E R 23,948 28,578
— Prepayments and deposits — BN RERIZS 4,412 4,398
— Other prepayments — H A TET FRIE 21,984 26,477
193,197 475,157

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019/20
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # £
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
Except for deposits of RMB1,788,000 (20109:
RMB1,788,000), all of the trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of loss allowance) with the
following ageing analysis (based on the invoice
date) as of the end of the reporting period:

Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

bt &2 T 5V ERE 1T

(BIHFZEHERE TRIAAREZS)

20 FEURER 3R % H 1th FE W =X
(#&)
Bize ARH1,788,0007T (— T —1

F

AR #1,788,0007T) 4N BT A& JE

Y BR R Ko At FE MR IR ER S 0 — S A
Yo o X FERR A S U e

(a)

BR#R T

FT ARE N BRIk B2 E A FE UL SR 2 8
WERR (EMBREBRER) R
HHRIEEZ A ZRE ST
T

2020 2019

—E_EHF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥ Tt AR T

Less than 1 month DR —1EA 9,776 20,464
More than 1 month but less than — (@R EEDR=1EAH

3 months 59 5,607

More than 3 months =@EAKE 25,058 15,198

34,893 41,269

Trade receivables from third parties relate to credit
card centres owned by financial institutions and
tenants operating in the Group’s department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets for whom there
were no recent history of default and have a good
track record with the Group. Further details on the
Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade debtors are set out in Note 28(a).

Amounts due from related parties

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

(b)

FEN S8 = 75 BR 5K B R B IS M A 1
BEZERRYLERAERBTE
% BYR O RBRTISEE
ZHEPEBE mZERERER
W ETHE AR B HAEE
BERZABETS - BERAAEE
EEBRKERERELEZE
Rk 2 #E— T ERH R
28(a) °

FEWRBAE A T FKIR
FEW B E AN T RIBREER 2
B e A 48 ] 7 R KA

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 FEURBR 7N & H fb FE W FX
(continued) (&)

(c) Other receivables from third parties () HttEWE=FFE

218
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During the reporting period, certain subsidiaries
of the Company (“Relevant Subsidiaries”) have
conducted business cooperation with a third party
prepaid card management company (the “Prepaid
Card Management Company”) for its provision
of services in managing the issue and usage of
Cash Coupon Card (single-use prepaid card) (the
“Cash Coupon Card”) for the Group’s department
stores, shopping mall and supermarkets (“Relevant
Stores”).

The Group have begun cooperation with the
Prepaid Card Management Company since 20009.
Pursuant to the agreement entered into by Relevant
Subsidiaries and the Prepaid Card Management
Company (the “Original Cooperation Agreement”),
the Prepaid Card Management Company issues
Cash Coupon Card for and provides related
management services to Relevant Stores. Relevant
Subsidiaries shall pay the amount charged for the
issue of Cash Coupon Card to the Prepaid Card
Management Company, while the Prepaid Card
Management Company shall settle the amount
consumers have consumed in Relevant Stores using
the Cash Coupon Card to Relevant Subsidiaries.
For the year ended 31 March 2019, the settlement
between Relevant subsidiaries and the Prepaid Card
Management Company have been carried out and
completed in an ordinary course of business.

RB|BEBMA - ARAETHE
AR (THEMBAR ) BE=
TEMNRERABRAA ([FEM
REERRARDETEBREE
HERAKENES BT L
R m 5 ([1aRFIE]) R
ThEREE R (—EERER
) (TABRDIEH‘REER
75 o

AEEBE -_ZTTNFRKRETR
NREEQBETEE RENE
BB LR RENREERR
Itk (TRA EHEE]) -
BNREEQRSHEEMEET
P Bt R I 42 AR B B B AR S © A
FAMBARRAN REREARX
817 B B R P W ER B 50 - 7R
NREEQBREBENE QRS
BEORBEEEMAEM-RERREIE
HENER -BE_ZT—NF=
A=t—BLLFE HENBA
AIMBENREEARNGEEGRN
AERGBARPETMITK -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

20 FE Ui R K % H A FE U K
(%)
HiEWE=5%0E (&)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(c) Other receivables from third parties (c)

(continued)

Based on the assessment of the circumstances and
prospect of such cooperation with the Prepaid
Card Management Company, the directors of the
Company determined that Relevant Subsidiaries
entered into a termination agreement with the
Prepaid Card Management Company on 31
October 2019 terminating the Original Cooperation
Agreement and the cooperation with the Prepaid
Card Management Company in respect of the
Cash Coupon Card thereunder, pursuant to which
no new Cash Coupon Card will be issued and
sold by the Prepaid Card Management Company.
At the same time, Ginwa Investments Holding
Group Limited (“Ginwa Investments”) in which
Mr. Wu Yijian, the original substantial beneficial
shareholder of the Company, holding 96% equity
interest, agreed to enter into a guarantee contract
with Relevant Subsidiaries, to provide joint and
several guarantee for the receivables from the
Prepaid Card Management Company under the
Original Cooperation Agreement, including (1) the
amount of the Prepaid Card Management Company
owed to Relevant Subsidiaries in respect of the
Cash Coupon Card consumed in Relevant Stores
with a total of approximately RMB503,405,000
as of 31 October 2019; and (2) the consumption
amount of the issued Cash Coupon Card during
the period from 1 November 2019 to 31 October
2022, which will be settled according to the
actual consumption on an annual basis. After the
termination of the Original Cooperation Agreement,
pursuant to the applicable PRC laws and regulations
and the rules related to the Cash Coupon Card,
consumers can still use the issued Cash Coupon
Card for consumption in Relevant Stores, while
the Prepaid Card Management Company remains
obliged to repay the consumption amount of the
abovementioned Cash Coupon Card to Relevant
Subsidiaries. In order to continue to abide by
applicable laws and regulations and maintain
normal business operation, Relevant Stores
continue to accept consumptions by Cash Coupon
Card during the daily operations. As of 31 March
2020, the total amount of the Cash Coupon Card
issued but not yet consumed is approximately
RMB937,776,000.

RIEHEBMNREREAREER
RIS AF S NARIESR
EHEWNBARR - —NF+
A=+—HHEBNREEAQF
IR RIERE B &
MEBTEHEMNRKEEQF ]
RN EE BIEENRER
UNEIE =2 SR IE k- Tl
R-AR - ARARFEEZR
RR—BELERFEICHIR AR
BZEEREEREEERA
A ([£ERE]) HE@BHNE R
AR IRBEER AN RER
RAEREEREETEAE
MEBRREESRBER 21
MEZz2=—ZE—NF+A=1+—
BIETEMREEQAGMD EMH
PG EE 2 R RIS HEE
B ARRIE Gt AARK
503,405,0007T : & (2)E #1778
BrE_ZT—NF+—HA—H=ZE
B+ A=1+—HHRH
BT MRERHEEFE
TEEEE -NREEBZRRLE
% BRBERAPBEERERRY
BMRER HEEDIUERAD
BEMEB RRE@EMEEE -
mIE R E IR A T H P L it i B
RHEESBEDEEREEARE A
AERNER RFEETER
ERABMIRST BB L=
HEEFIER BB EEBIETES
EX HBEFREBRNEE -
BHE_Z-_ZF=HA=+—H
I BEBTERBEEZER R~
E#) A AR %937,776,0007T
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 FEURBR 7N & H fb FE W FX
(continued) (&)

(c) Other receivables from third parties ()0 HttEWE=FE (&)

220
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(continued)

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic since
early 2020, the business operations and financial
conditions of many companies, including the Group,
the Prepaid Card Management Company and Ginwa
Investments, were negatively affected, and therefore
the turnover days of the Relevant Subsidiaries’
receivables due from the Prepaid Card Management
Company was also negatively affected.

The Company has assessed the credit risk
associated with the receivables from the Prepaid
Card Management Company. As at 31 March
2020, the amount due from the Prepaid Card
Management Company before the loss allowance
was RMB588,481,000 (2019: RMB345,225,000).
The credit loss of RMB586,477,000 (2019:
RMB2,004,000) has been recognised in other
operating expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2020.

“E_THEY M ARBER
H EREASE BANREEARQ
AINEEREEANRZ ARIE
BEE MBI R B BEE
& Atk - 1HEIKT B 2 B W TR
NREE QR EYRIR R B
RETZBNAETE -

AAR B HHEBENREREA
RIEWREBEENEERR-
R-_E-_TF=F=+—8"
BREEREBEIERKEBENRERE
N AEIFRIE A AR 588,481,000
T(ZZE—hhF: AR
345,225,00070) ~ 5 E BB A
R #586,477,000T (=& — A1
& AR#2,004,0007T) B A&,
E_E_EF=-A=1+—HItF
BriERBanRAZ HMbELR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

20 FE Ui R K % H A FE U K
(%)
HiEWE=5%0E (&)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(c) Other receivables from third parties (c)

(continued)

The Group continues to pay attention to the
development of the epidemic and the conditions
of the Prepaid Card Management Company
and Ginwa Investments. Relevant Subsidiaries
have issued demand letters to the Prepaid Card
Management Company and Ginwa Investments,
and entrusted lawyers to issue lawyer’s letters
to the Prepaid Card Management Company and
Ginwa Investments. Depending on the progress of
such matters, the Group will also consider the use
of other appropriate legal means to safeguard its
rights and interests. The Group is actively exploring
and seeking effective ways to recover the above
mentioned amount. Save as the above demand
letters and lawyer’s letters, the Group is negotiating
with the Prepaid Card Management Company and
Shanghai Huade Investment Company Limited
("Huade Investment”) to deduct the amount
of approximately RMB441,000,000 payable to
Huade Investment in respect of the acquisition
of commercial properties under development in
next years with the creditor’s rights of the Group
in the corresponding receivables from the Prepaid
Card Management Company. The Group will
also continue to monitor the credit risk that the
Group has to bear in relation to the above debts in
accordance with the credit policies of the Group.
After comprehensively considering the amount
of Cash Coupon Card that is expected to be
consumed in the future, as well as the economic
benefit inflows that the guarantee and the above
collection measures may bring, long-term liabilities
of RMB94,046,000 has been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020 accordingly.

NEBBEBITZRIBZEREN
RBHREEARREEREZ
AR - ABRAKT B AR 2 MIEN
EEARRESEEREZHERR
K W ERTEMAEMNREERQ
A R B IEI B B AN K - 1748
HEHEZER AEBETEERE
FREMBEE AR FER A ERE
Ho ARBEERBERRS K
BIR i RIEO I 2 B BEEE -
B it 2 o 1 3R K A2 A B O -
AEEFHEBNRERARKLE
BREEREFR AR ([TEREE
& )BT LB A B R
BN REBAREERIB B
B EFERESZ[HEIEREE
ENEEBEDERBEROAR
#£441,000,000C - NEB N g
BEARBZEEBER  HEE
TAREEBEM M ESTASH
ZERR - AEBLIEEEER
AREEENEHRE28E UK
SR EalifERIE e R BEAR B %
EIRMEEFZRA - HENE
E_E_EF=-A=1+—HItF
EZHREMBERRAERREE
& AR #94,046,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #H#ZE T -THF=A=+— ELthr/*
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND 21 |BITEFRFERSE
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () ReRRELEEEHEE:
2020 2019
—EB-BFf —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand in the  GABBRRKRIEB FRITES
consolidated statement of financial NFSEIR S

position 500,806 544,690
Less: restricted cash at bank B RRIBITRE
(see Note (i) (RH13E3)) (475,075) (291,238)
Cash and cash equivalents in the  #ZRAEREREBRZRENRE
consolidated cash flow statement  Z{EIEH 25,731 253,452
Note: it &t
()  Restricted cash at bank at 31 March 2020 () RBE-_ZTF=A=1+—HH
represented bank deposits of RMB443,090,000 XRBITELERISREE
(2019: RMB287,080,000) pledged to secure the RITERMEBERORITER
Group’s bank loans (see Note 23(c)), bank deposits A R #443,090,0007T (==&
of RMB10,520,000 sealed up by courts as a result — N F : AR%287,080,000
of legal proceedings against the Group’s subsidiaries 7o) (RKI5E23(c)) « A&t ¥
and bank deposits of RMB21,465,000 pledged to a NEEM B AR RERFR
bank for the performance guarantee in relation to a i #% Br & H H R1TE A
sales contract. [R#10,520,0007T it fB1TH

B—BEEHEANNERME
HFRITHBITERARE
21,465,0007T °

The Group's operations of department stores, AEERFBEzBERES  BY
shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC are RO RBR TG &L R TIAA
conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible RiEk#ET- A\RE SIEE AR H B
currency and the remittance of RMB out of f"i”ﬂ% W E P BRRME S AR
Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules P& K78 5 B R AT AR 4 B0 A R A1
and regulations of foreign exchange control EE%‘J%EE'J&%ET@'JF)?%EFE

promulgated by the PRC government.

2 2 2 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20




Notes to the Financial Statements

B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z T~ % fFr A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 21 SR{T&EFERFERE (&)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEZTBELEZEBZYHE

financing activities

Payables for
Other interest Lease
Bank loans borrowings expenses liabilities Total
Ef
RTERN HttfEE MERX HERE At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARETT

(Note 23) (Note 23) (Note 22) (Note 24)

(Bizt23) (Hz23) (Brit22) (Hz224)

At 31 March 2019 RZB-AE=A=1-H 2,223,401 141,000 20,147 - 2,384,548
Impact on initil application of B REAEAHHERLEE

HKFRS 16 (Note) 1652 %2 (Mit) - - - 108,445 108,445
At 1 April 2019 RZB-AEMA-R 2,223,401 141,000 20,147 108,445 2,492,993
Changes from financing cash ~ BEREHELH:

flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans — FTEEB{TEFFEFA 698,000 - - - 698,000
Proceeds from new other borrowings #7328 E 1155108 - 87,172 - - 87,172
Repayment of hank loans BEEAER (377,466) - - - (377,466)
Repayment of other borrowings BB Ef{EE - (79,700) - - (79,700)
Other finance costs paid EEMEERA S - (159,009) - (159,009)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 4z ARHH 5 - = (23,571) (357)
Interest element of lease rentals paid £ 74 2 FI855 - - - (6,503) (6,503)
Total changes from financing REAEREEE

cash flows 320,534 1472 (159,009) (30,074) 138,923
Exchange adjustments EXRE 14,517 479 533 - 15,529
Other changes: HfRE:
Interest expenses, bank charges and ¥l 8B RTFEEREM

other finance costs (Note 6(@) BB (Hfit6()) - - 112,521 6,503 119,030
Capitalised borrowing costs EMLEERA (M)

(Note 6(a)) - - 88,756 - 88,756
Increase in lease liabilities fom ~ FREIuHRAZAERE

entering into new leases 10

during the year - - - 235 235
Total other changes Bt es - - 201,283 6,738 208,021
At 31 March 2020 RZBZ5£=5=+-A 2,558,452 148,951 62,954 85,109 2,855,466

o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE-—E-—FTHF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 21 SR{T&ERFERE (&)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEZTBELEZEBZYHER
financing activities (continued) (%&)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Kist: REBE §REAKLERE
modified retrospective method and adjusted the WA e F B 7 B s 3R 5 22 B
opening balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease Fle9 WRABR=ZZ— 1
liabilities relating to leases which were previously FM A — BRIV RR - DARE
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. See REERIBIRE S S5 2R
Note 2(c). B1TEO A RKEEENE

EFMMEEaZ R
2(c) °
Payables
Other for interest
Bank loans borrowings  expenses Total
ANEVES)
RITER  HMEE - CE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETFTT AREFT AREFIT AR FL

(Note 23)  (Note 23)  (Note 22)

(K:F23)  (Kiat23)  (Kia222)

At 1 April 2018 R=ZE-NFWNA—AH 2,097,973 235,176 20,648 2,353,797

Changes from financing cash RIEBR & REE S

flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans #1&R1TEXMBHKIE 1,097,896 - - 1,097,896
Proceeds from new other I HMESRERE

borrowings - 240,000 - 240,000
Repayment of bank loans BEIEITER (988,237) = - (988,237)
Repayment of other borrowings{& & H i & & - (334,176) - (334,176)
Other finance costs paid H 4B E & B AR - - (170,028) (170,028)

Total changes from financing RER S T=EHE

cash flows 109,659 (94,176)  (170,028)  (154,545)
Exchange adjustments EXAR 15,769 - 21 15,790
Other changes: Hith 28 :
Interest expenses (Note 6(a)  F B F X (Kfit6(a)) = = 89,697 89,697
Capitalised borrowing costs &7k {& & F A&

(Note 6(a)) (Kiztea)) - - 79,809 79,809
Total other changes HihE o) EazE - - 169,506 169,506
At 31 March 2019 RZB-AFE=ZHA=+—H 2,223,401 141,000 20,147 2,384,548

2 24 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20




Notes to the Financial Statements

B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z T~ % fFr A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 21 SR{T&EFERFERE (&)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEZRESRLARE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for AR RERNEESER
leases comprise the following: 1’

2020 2019

—B-BF —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TF T ARMTFIT

(Note)

(KiaE)

Within operating cash flows KEHSMEA 1,059 39,772

Within financing cash flows BEREREN 30,074 -

31,133 39,772

Note: The adoption of HKFRS 16 introduces a change in Hist - MBS MERELERZE 16

classification of cash flows of certain rentals paid WEIAHELZNETHEZ

on leases. The comparative amounts have not been RemEnBEs -k RE

restated. I EE T o

These amounts relate to the following: ZECHEANTSIBEAR:

2020 2019

—EEHF —ET-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FRT ARETT

Lease rentals paid BfHEe 31,133 39,772

wesgmasnzncs )5




Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 ENERFREMENSR

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARMTFIT
Trade payables arising from: ENBEREATSBESE -
— Concession sales — I EEHEE 751,555 816,531
— Purchase of inventories —BEFE 50,193 55,511
801,748 872,042
Amounts due to related parties FEfTREsE A £30I8 (BHAEG))
(see Note (i) 3,749 8,002
Other payables and accrued expenses: HfENA KL EFER
— Payables for staff related costs —ENZETIHBEAER 28,633 30,269
— Payables for miscellaneous taxes AR 1,985 8,806
— Payables for interest expenses and ~ —EMNFIEAY MEER FKA
transaction costs on borrowings 62,954 20,147
— Payables for rental (see Note (ii)) — NS (R EG)) 27,825 36,368
— Deposits from concessionaries — R e REFES
and customers 30,154 32,198
— Dividends payables —ERRE 3,661 5,682
— Others — HA{th 77,118 72,656
232,330 206,126
Financial liabilities measured at REHKAAE 2 EMAE
amortised cost 1,037,827 1,086,170
Deferred income FIELA 5,170 6,908
Receipts in advance U FRIE 79,330 42,001
1,122,327 1,135,079




Notes to the Financial Statements

B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #HZE—-—ZF_-_TF=A=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EHEH BRAIKAREZS)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 22 FEERFREMENR (&)
All of the trade and other payables are expected to FT B FE 1S RR 3R R HL fth FE - SRTB B E AR
be settled or recognised as revenue or net income or —FAEERIERR/WRIOFIAZL
in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on BaRkREREE-
demand.

Notes: Bt aF -
()  The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and () ZEFELAEERR R2EKTEFE
have no fixed terms of repayment. EEE
(i)  On the date of transition to HKFRS 16, accrued lease (il NPBEZHELBHBRELERE16
payments of RMB10,810,000 previously included in SER LR ATEMNEEHE
“Payables for operating leases” were adjusted to lease EXE| 7EAHEEZTREARK
liabilities recognised at 1 April 2019. See Note 2(c). 10,810,000;LEAEBER = — N,
FOA—BARAZHEARE LM
5E2(c) °
Ageing analysis SRR 2 AT
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables T AET BR IR B2 H th & 5 R 2 FE A BR
with the following ageing analysis (based on the maturity TR E AR R o1 (IREIHR )
date) as of the end of the reporting period: N
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKFT
Due within one month or on demand A —1& 8 R F| 8k 3% B SKEE 2 1+f 801,748 872,042

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

23 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 23 BITRHEMEES

(@) The Group’s short-term bank loans and other (a)

AEEZERBTERRHEM

borrowings are analysed as follows: BESHMT:
2020 2019
—E-EHE —E—-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETFT
Bank loans: RITER -
— secured by Group’s bank deposits —IAREE 7 RITIFRIER
and guaranteed by the Company - I lEARRQ A K& A
and/or a subsidiary of the Group B —EM B A RER 404,452 239,935
— secured by Group’s bank deposits — AZREE 7 $RITEXVER A 18,000 -
- secured by the Group’s land and ~ —LAREE 2 + i M FEER
buildings and guaranteed by B WHARRFAR IR
the Company and/or a director DA —BESER
of the Company 300,000 100,000
- secured by the Group’s land and ~ — AZAREE Z + 1 R IEF IR
buildings and guaranteed by a e WEARFR—RES
director of the Company and/or R,/ AL BB A B
subsidiaries of the Group R 150,000 =
- secured by the Group’s land and  — LAZREE 7 +ith RIEF{EE
buildings and guaranteed by . WHARR—RBE
a director of the Company, a B —RZE=FKAKEH
third party and subsidiaries of M8 R RER
the Group 70,000 =
— secured by a third party’s —A—REZHZRITERE
bank deposits Eid 80,000 -
- guaranteed by a director —HARE—REE —F
of the Company, a third party F=ARAEEWB AR
and subsidiaries of the Group R 30,000 =
— guaranteed by the Company —HAREER - 181,466
1,052,452 521,401

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

23 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

(@) The Group’s short-term bank loans and
other borrowings are analysed as follows:

23 RITKEMBEE (&)

(a) AEEZEHRTERREAM
BEIMMT : (&)

(continued)

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARMTFIT
Other loans: HMER -
- secured by the Group’s land and ~ —AREE 2 + i MIEFEER
buildings, and guaranteed by a e WAHARR—RES
director of the Company and a MASEE—EHB AR E
subsidiary of the Group R 10,000 =
— secured by the Group's equity — AREE 2 B A R
securities (see Note 23(c)) (R HKfat23(c) 120,800 121,000
— secured by future income right and — LAZR2RUG ARE(EIE 4 - 7
guaranteed by the Company and HAARIRAAR—RE
a director of the Company EHER = 20,000
130,800 141,000
Add: current portion of long-term  #n : RHIRITE X 7 BNHAED
bank loans (see Note 23(b)) R (RHKE23(b) 265,000 204,000
Bond payables ERHES 17,634 -
1,465,886 866,401
o ° L SFEERERAA
BN CREFR
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

23 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

23 RITKEMBEE (&)

(continued)
(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans and other (b) XEBZRHKRITERREM
borrowings are analysed as follows: BEESHMT:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FRT ARETFT
Bank loans: RITER -
— secured by the Group’s investment —IAZN5 B 2 35 & 2 -
property, land and buildings 3 SR TFE R SR AR 1
and future income right and B WRAREKRAAT
guaranteed by the Company and a —HEFER
director of the Company 432,000 453,000
— secured by the Group’s bank deposits — AZREE 7 $R1 7772 5,2k
and/or land and buildings and THERAEFVEER - WA
guaranteed by the Company and/ AR SHAAF—LES
or a director of the Company and/ N SAEE 2 —FEHEBAR]
or a subsidiary of the Group ER 1,074,000 1,249,000
1,506,000 1,702,000
Less: current portion of long-term  J& : KHIERTTEZ 2 BNEA
bank loans (see Note 23(a)) in (RHaE23(a) (265,000) (204,000)
1,241,000 1,498,000
Bond payables FEfHE S 517 -
1,241,517 1,498,000

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

23 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans and

()

other borrowings are analysed as follows:
(continued)

The Group’s long-term bank loans and other
borrowings are repayable as follows:

(BIHFZEHERE TRIAAREZS)

23 RITKEMBEE (&)

(b) KBz RPBRIT

AR E A
BEIMMT : (&)

AEE Y RHRTERR L b
B /8M T 5 SRR 1R

2020 2019

—EZEHF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBF T

Within 1 year —FR 265,000 204,000
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFEA 707,000 257,000
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZERFA 315,517 973,000
After 5 years FF% 219,000 268,000
1,506,517 1,702,000

All of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
None of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings is expected to be settled
within one year.

FrA SERN AT BER1TE AR S E
& B R SR AN AR - 4 3F
BNEET BRITER R EMERE
HERN—FRBE-

The following assets and their respective (00 FIEERERBZEEER

carrying values as at the end of the reporting WIREH RS WK LLIEA R

period are pledged to secure the Group's EEHTREMBEE ZIE
bank and other borrowings: 1%

2020 2019

—E-EHE —E—-hEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT AR®F T

Property, plant and equipment M- WER&RE 2,857,743 1,997,384

Investment property L E 1,265,300 1,294,000

Other financial assets (see Note 18) Hit&m&rE (AME18) 182,400 252,600

Cash at bank (see Note 21(a)(i) RIT&EGF (RAEE213)3)) 443,090 287,080

4,748,533 3,831,064

HESHEEXERERDA

BN REER

231



232

Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE-—E-—FTHF=A=+—HILFE
BAIUARKEZZ)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrIF=B1EH

23 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

24

31 March 2020 1 April 2019 (Note) 31 March 2019 (Note)
“2-8FZh=t+-f “E-NEMB-B (M) —E-AE=A=1-B(H:)
Present Present
value of the Total Present Total  value of the Total
minimum minimum  value of the minimum minimum minimum
lease lease minimum lease lease lease
payments payments lease payments payments payments payments
BEREMS RERENR SERERT REHENH SERERR REHENH
ZHfE an LRE a5 LRE &%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARMTR ARETT AREFr  ARETT  ARETR
Within 1 year —ER 23,198 28,039 25,448 30,645 - -
After 1 year but within 2 years —ERERER 13,348 14,683 25219 26,679 - -
After 2 years but within 5 years MEEBRER 24,169 28,869 29,957 32,915 - -
After 5 years nER 24,394 33,107 27,821 38,773 - -
61,911 76,659 82,997 98,367 - -
85,109 104,698 108,445 129,012 - =
Less: total future interest expenses 35, A FI B F % 44 (19,589) (20,567) =
Present value of lease liabilities fHEaE/BE 85,109 108,445 =
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited PS L

(d) Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings

(e)

are subject to the fulfilment of covenants commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the loan would become repayable on
demand. At 31 March 2020, none of the covenants
relating to the bank and other borrowings had been
breached.

At 31 March 2020, the Group’s banking
facilities amounted to RMB900,000,000 (2019:
RMB500,000,000) were utilised to the extent of
RMBNil (2019: RMB181,466,000).

LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods and at the date of
transition to HKFRS 16:

23

24

RITREMEER (&)

(d) AEEETRITEEMEEER
Eéﬁi vﬁ%TﬁZ%?X?TﬁWZ%
fofMANEBERRSE &

?I“’“ (EIRBREE- R _-F
—QEF_H_—'— B #EER
BRRTREMEENRE-

e) R—E-_ZFEF=A=+—H"
KEBHMETEEARE
900,000,0007C ( =& — L&

A R #500,000,0007T) R 2 &
BAREZT(ZZE—NF: A
R #181,466,0007T ) °

HESE
TRINTARERARERREBE
BEPRENBEEEBUEREE
AFE16c B HEREZHTA
HB B R
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Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

24 HEEE (&)

ffat: REBE ERRABEETEWER

24 LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17. Comparative information
as at 31 March 2019 has not been restated. Further details
on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in
Note 2(c).

RBEBHBHREERF 165 X H
BR-_ZF-NAFHA—BOHOE
g NRERELHRERE S E
ABI7TED EREERENHESR
AR EHERBE-R_F-NE=H
St-BZEBEHLESS A
MR & BV SIS LR E 1658 K
LB E— T FHBHENME200) -

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 BRELEURAIF 2RSS

TRANSACTIONS
(a) Share option scheme

(a) BRI

The Company has a share option scheme which
was adopted on 15 February 2011, whereby the
directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees and service providers
of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, to take up share options at HK$1 to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company.

On 28 May 2013, 67,105,000 share options were
granted to directors of the Company and employees
of the Group under the above share option scheme.
Of the share options granted, 50% will vest one
year from the date of grant, 30% will vest two years
from the date of grant, and the remaining 20% will
vest three years from the date of grant. The share
options granted have lapsed on 28 May 2019. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share in the Company at HK$1.73
each, and is settled gross in shares.

On 30 May 2013, in order to comply with the
Listing Rules, 4,750,000 of the share options
granted to certain directors of the Company on 28
May 2013 were cancelled, and the Company has
replaced them with the granting of 2,300,000 share
options to these directors. Of the share options
granted, 50% will vest one year from the date of
grant, 30% will vest two years from the date of
grant, and the remaining 20% will vest three years
from the date of grant. The share options granted
have lapsed on 30 May 2019. Each share option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company at HK$1.76 each,
and is settled gross in shares.

ARRBER-—Z—F—_A+H
HEMBIRES Bt A2
RESERERNBEEREE RN
EBZRGEESE (BIEAEER
TRIKERRES)KRIBLE
MO RN R ERALALD 2 B
A& #E

R-BE—=FFA-+N\B &
B LEBRET S ARRF T
767,105,00017 B #E T AR A
EERAEEEES - BREHZER
R - 50% A5 B & L A BE—
FREB 30% BN ERE A H
HEREREE  UARBT20%18
REHEBHE=ZFERE B
ErEREECR-_ZE-hERA
“tNBX%-BHERERT
G AR AER1. 7380 RE AR
NIRRT - WEARD
PEEE R -

R-_ZE—=FRF=+H"5A
FELEMRAN RZTE—=F
AAZ+N\BETETARAF
T = 74,750,00010 BE AR #E 2 5
- ARBMEMZEESERL
2,300,00017 BE AR #E LAER R 52 &5
ERE - RE 2 EREF  50%
BRERE AR —FEREE -
30% R ER T HEERFIE
B RSB T20%ERRHBE
HE-FERREE -BERHZER
BER-_E—NFRA=+HXK
Mo FMHERERTHE AR
1. 768 TRBARAR —RE
WAL WA 2 EEE ~
R o

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER

233




Notes to the Financial Statements

U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #H#ZE T -THF=A=+— ELthr/*
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 EREGEUROZFT2RS

TRANSACTIONS (continued) (#&)

(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BRESE (E)
On 27 September 2017, 44,000,000 share options R-_ZE—+tFEFNA-_t++B"
were granted to service providers of the Group 44,000,000 ERERE T
under 2011 Share Option Scheme. The share —— FEREAERTAERZ
options do not have a vesting condition and are RS AL e - % F B ARIE T M 55
exercisable within a period of two years. The share B R AT AW F B AT o
options granted have lapsed on 26 September EREZEREER-_ZE—NF
2019. Each share option gives the holder the right NAZTRBXRB - GinEARE
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company BT HRB AR AEAR0.328 TR
at HK$0.32 each, and is settled gross in shares. BANR IR T EIEID - W IA

iy 2BEE 2R -

(i)  The terms and conditions of the options () BERHBREZIGEREE
granted are as follows: BT
Number of Contractual life of
instruments  Vesting conditions share options
IEYE GREH BRESHTS

Share options granted to directors:

BRTEsScBRE:
-on 28 May 2013 5,250,000  One year from the date of grant 6 years
“Z-=fRA=-tN\A BRLAHE—F 6%F
-on 28 May 2013 3,150,000  Two years from the date of grant 6 years
“Z-=fRA=+NR BB HRmE 6%F
-on 28 May 2013 2,100,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
AZZE-=FRA-TN\A BRLBHE=F 6%
-on 30 May 2013 1,150,000  One year from the date of grant 6 years
N_Z—=FAA=1H BREAHE—F 6%F
-on 30 May 2013 690,000 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
R_E—=F1HA=+H BB R E 6%F
-on 30 May 2013 460,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
WZE-=FRHA=+H BRLBHE=F 6%
Share options granted to employees and service providers:
BTRERRBMUEE  BRE:
-on 28 May 2013 25,927,500  One year from the date of grant 6 years
RZE—=FRAA=1/\H BEHAHE—F 6%F
-on 28 May 2013 15,556,500  Two years from the date of grant 6 years
AZZE-=FRA-TN\A B B R R E 6%
-on 28 May 2013 10,371,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
R_ZE-—=FfRAA-TN\A BREBHE=F 6F
- on 27 September 2017 44,000,000 No vesting condition 2 years
—tEAAZT+A 3 8 5 B 1 25
Total share options granted 108,655,000
ERIEBRIEES
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 BEREZEUROG M2
TRANSACTIONS (continued) 5 (&)
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BRESE(E)
(i)  The number and weighted average exercise (i) BB 228 KNk FH
price of share options are as follows: TEENT:
2020 2019
-t 22 —T-NF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options
miE R fntE Bl
FHTEE 8B THITEE A
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning  RE M1 KT E
of the year 1.095 73,205,000 1.103 74,205,000
Forfeited during the year FRZH - - 1.730  (1,000,000)
Expired during the year FRBE 1.095  (73,205,000) - =
Outstanding at the end RERMKITHE
of the year = = 1.095 73,205,000
Exercisable at the end EXRATFIE
of the year - - 1.095 73,205,000
(b) Share award scheme (b) BOEBE
On 17 October 2014 (the “Adoption Date”), the RZZE—MFE+A++R8 ([
directors of the Company adopted a share award MBEH]) AR RESFEMRS
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a mean of EENETE (R 2@t 2l ) 7k
rewarding and retaining employees of the Group REBNRBEREEETIRET
and certain eligible participants and to attract EER2HE WARNEEE—
suitable personnel for further development with the FSERRSIGEAS - ARFIE
Group. A trust has been set up for the purpose of B EsEAE B AR () 22t &)

administering the Share Award Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

25 BREGEURON2ZX
5% (4&)

(b) RtPERFE (&)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Share award scheme (continued)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may
purchase shares in the Company from the Stock
Exchange with cash contributed by the Group, and
to hold such shares until they are vested.

The directors of the Company may, from time to
time, at its sole and absolute discretion, select any
employee of the Group and eligible participants
including suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers and other service providers (other than
those specifically excluded as stated in the Share
Award Scheme) for participation in the Share Award
Scheme and grant such number of awarded shares
to any selected employee of the Group and eligible
participants at nil consideration. The directors of
the Company are entitled to impose any conditions
(including a period of continued service within the
Group after the award) with respect to the vesting
of the awarded shares. The Share Award Scheme
came into effect on the Adoption Date, and shall
terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth anniversary
date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of
early termination as determined by the directors of
the Company.

RIERAD B2 B 5T & - (= FE AT B
XA EEZ MR EEEAR
REED THAZEREEE
HORB-

RRBEFANRITEEENE
HERERE EEASEEMAEE
RAEBERSEE BREMHER-
P BOR - B N E A AR
Fem (Bxtn 22Ehat 81807 BAREHE
Rz ALBRSN) 2 B {n BB ET
g WATKERL THFEEK
N8B TAKBEEIAEERE M
BEB2EE - ARREEARE
h BB AN B 55 88 B A0 (47T 16k 4
(BREERRSEREAEE—
BB ) o Bt SR E) AT 3R
B HAR AR WA ()ER 48 B 53
HEHm B B E  R(i)B A
RAEFETERAAR LA A
ZBREEKIL-

Subsequent to the reporting date on 18 May 2020, WEHRER-ZZ_TEFHATN
the Company has terminated the Share Award H RARQFIE KRN EEE
Scheme. ==

Details of the shares held under the Share Award
Scheme are set out below:

RIE R BT 8B A &
BT

Average No. of
purchase price  shares held Value
FHBEE FARGHE BEE
HK$°000 ‘000 HK$°000
BT T AR TETT
At 1 April 2018, 31 March R =—ZF— \ 4
2019 and 2020 L Rl =
—F-NER
—E_TF
=A=+—H 1.17 3,070 3,600
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 26 B MRRERAZAEHR
FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Movements in current taxation in the (a) HEMBRRRAZZRHABIE
consolidated statement of financial position BEE:
are as follows:
2020 2019
—E-BF T NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Balance of income tax payable R A— B RS A%

at 1 April 38,970 44,618
Provision for income tax on the BANFE R FT R R AR 4

estimated taxable profits for the WFTSEL (RK13E7(a)

year (see Note 7(a)) 3,394 13,557
Over-provision in respect of prior B FE R
years (see Note 7(a)) (BHfaE7(a) (2,166) (5,013)
Income tax paid during the year FRNENPTER (5,861) (14,192)
Balance of income tax payable R=R=+—BENMEH
at 31 March S 34,337 38,970
o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 26 MBRRRAZAER ()
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEBEEERER:
Fair value
adjustments
on property,
Expected plant and
Financial credit equipment, Interest
assets losses on Financial  investment capitalisation
at fair value financial ~ assets at fair property and on
Accrued through assets value intangible prepayment
expenses other  measured at through  assets and for
and deferred comprehensive  amortised profit related  acquisition
income income cost orloss  depreciation of properties Net
% HER
R RE

BRAAEHE REERE BOAEHE  NEREW
BERBHA HEZER HEREBHA HE.OAE  UBYE
Eifixk HbrEks HEZRH  BENSR  BERER  BAREZ

BLZHA HEBEE  REER AE & HRAAL FE
RMBO0)  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARETT ARRTT  ARETT  ARRTT  AREFR

Deferred tax arising from: ~ E SIS EEEZBERE:
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEBA-A 2,803 6,173 - 2417 (601,506) (20,009) (610,122)

Impact on initial application of B RERE B KRS ERS
HKFRS 9 e . - 2 - - - mn

Adjusted balance at 1 April 2019 B=E-h4ME-R7:5%

fizs 2,803 6,173 m 2417 (601,506) (20009 (609,3850)
(Charged)credited to the (Ma)/FAGARRER
consolidated statement of profit (£ ff3£73))
or loss (see Note 7(a)) (206) - 2,628 (2,417) 12473 (19.952) (7.474)
Credited/(charged) to reserves 3t A/ (1B BB
(see Note 10) (ZHi#10) - 6,569 - - (5,982) - 587
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NE=F=1-H 2,597 12,142 2,900 - (595,015) (39,961) (616,737)

(Charged)credited to the (Ma)/FAGARER
consolidated statement of profit ~ ( £ff#7(3))

or loss (see Note 7(3)) (261) - 7481 - 20,106 (22,189) 5137
Credited/(charged) to reserves 3t A/ (M8 EfE

(see Note 10) (ZHiz0) - 10,531 - - (2,185) - 8,346
At 31 March 2020 R-E-EF=F=1-H 2,336 23273 10,381 - (577,094) (62,150) (603,254)

2 3 8 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

()

(d)

(e)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

(BIHFZEHERE TRIAAREZS)

26 BHBMRRRAZAEBHR (&)

()

RERE BRI REZNIEL
BEEEREBEYHR

2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F ARETFT
Deferred tax assets recognised in the 4G4 BTSN R FER
consolidated statement of financial EZEFIBEE
position 35,990 18,239
Deferred tax liabilities recognised RET B BIFSARR RIER 2
in the consolidated statement of BEERIBEBE
financial position (639,244) (634,976)
(603,254) (616,737)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(t), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses
of RMB447,750,000 (2019: RMB374,920,000) as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
remaining unused tax losses at 31 March 2020 will
expire on or before the financial period ending 31
March 2025.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 March 2020, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of certain subsidiaries
of the Group established in the PRC amounted to
RMB1,662,186,000 (2019: RMB1,656,221,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of RMB83,109,000 (2019:
RMB82,811,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits from these subsidiaries will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

(d) RERZELEHEEE

(e)

BB T20MEH 2 S HBUR
AEBWAERE BABBHG
58 A R #447,750,0007T (=
T —LF: AR ¥®374,920,000
TIZBEERBEE  RARE
ERARER ZERLEEET
A A e 2 HU1S R R FE R Bl A
NEAEBE RZT_FF=A4
=+t RZBRTABARKEIRER
BREBEE T _RAF=A=1+—
B 1 B B HA R 3k 2 AT JE O o

ABRZELEBEAR

R-_TE_ZTF=A=+—H #HA
AEEETRPBEKLZHBA
RAZARDEE N BB ERZE
£ 5 AR #1,662,186,0007T ( =
T — 9 : AR¥1,656,221,000
L)  EEMBEBAEARK
83,109,000 (=ZE—NF: AR
#82,811,0007T ) KR I AGIRZE
REBEF 2 2R ER 2 BIEm
F AR RA BN R FHEH %
ZhEWNB AR ZBREBRERERE
EEREZEMBAR ZafT
KA e Al T8 A8 2R F LA DK ©

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX-RHERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) ER=IHED
The reconciliation between the opening and REBGREER 2R EBMN 2 BT
closing balances of each component of the Group’s NEAR &R Z SRRV E N AR &
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated =B EEK AREHYEHRAK
statement of changes in equity. Details of the NARlz B AR 2 ZBFE
changes in the Company’s individual components of (N

equity between the beginning and the end of the
reporting period are set out below:

Shares held

Share Share  under share Contributed Exchange  Accumulated

capital premium  award scheme  Capital reserve surplus reserve losses Total
RERHZE

k& RbEE EEEZRE B4R #ARS Bl ZiER ait

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ABEFR  AREFR  ARETR  AEETT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFR
(Note 27()  (Note 27(d)f)) ~ (Note 27()il) ~ (Note 27(alii) ~ (Note 27(a)i) ~ (Note 27(c)vi)

(F270) (W) (W) (W) — (BEzdn)  (KE2mi)

Balance at 1 April 2018 R=Z-\£BA-A
3] 199,369 1,136,595 29) 43,749 995,255 57,672 (298,161) 2,131,557

Changes in equity AEERESE:

for the year:

Total comprehensive income REE2 AN HES

for the year - - - - - 150,290 (6,629) 143,661
Equity-settled share-based )

transactions

(see Note 25(a)) - - - 1179 - - - 1,179
Balance at 31 March 2019 R=F-E

and 1 April 2019 ZA=t-Ak

Z2-hE
MpB-Ate 199,369 1,136,595 2.922) 44928 995,255 207,962 (304,790) 2,276,397
Changes in equity AEERERD:
for the year:
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENAES

for the year - - - - - 148 362 (1,015) 147,347
Equitysettled share-based  EREBEENRGE A

transactions 5 (2H:

(see Note 25(a)) - = - 577 - _ - 577
Transfer between reserves  ERRER - - - (36,599) - - 36,598 -
Balance at 31 March 200 W=-2-2&

ZR=t-R&# 199,369 1,136,595 29) 8,907 995,255 356,324 (269,207) 2,424 321

240 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(b) Dividends

(i)

(ii)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company and holder of the
convertible preference shares attributable
to the year

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: RMBNil).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company and holder of the
convertible preference shares attributable
to the previous financial year, approved
during the year

No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year has been approved for the year
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: RMBNil).

(c) Share capital

(i)

(BIHFZEHERE TRIAAREZS)

27 EXR-HERRE (&)

(b) BR

(i)

(ii)

ARARRR TR RESL
RIFE A Bt F A BN K

sen

ARABREBETTEZIK
NBEE-_ZT_-_ZTF=AH
=t+t—HBIEFEZERE
—E-NF ARET
JT) °

ARRRRR LR ES
REFBAEM L —BIBF
EEMKRE (RFAEH
)

BE_Z_-_ZF=H
=+ —BLFELEIE
EF—UVEBRFENRBRE
(ZTE2E—hF:AREZ
JL) °

(0 B=A
Issued share capital () ERITRE
2020 2019
—BC8F “E2-NF
Number Number of
of shares shares
RO#A gnE
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
FR AR%EFr7 TR ARETT
Ordinary shares, issued BRIRBREERR:
and fully paid:
At 1 April and 31 March REOA—B K
=A=+—H 1,149,695 103,602 1,149,695 103,602
Convertible preference ERTRARTAR
shares, issued BER:
and fully paid:
At 1 April and 31 March REA—B &
=ZR=+—H 1,177,068 95,767 1,177,068 95,767
Total share capital it 28 4 25 2,326,763 199,369 2,326,763 199,369
® RS EEEIERERA T

BN REER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

(i)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

Issued share capital (continued)
Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares do not carry the
right to vote. The holder of the convertible
preference shares has the right, at any time
and at the sole option of such holder, to
convert the convertible preference shares in
whole, or in any part, into fully paid ordinary
shares in the Company. The conversion ratio
is 1 convertible preference share to 1.1
ordinary shares. Holder of the convertible
preference shares ranks pari passu with other
holders of the ordinary shares in respect of its
entitlement to dividend or other distribution of
the Company. In the event of any liquidation,
winding-up or dissolution of the Company,
holder of the convertible preference shares
shall receive an amount equal to HK$1.60 per
convertible preference share, plus all accrued
but unpaid dividends in preference to the
ordinary shareholders.

At 31 March 2020, 3,070,000 ordinary shares
are held by the Company under the share
award scheme (2019: 3,070,000) (see Note
25(b)).

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

27 EXR-FERRE (&)

() B=A&(4&)

(i)

(ii)

ERITRA (&)
EBK
EAERTE AR EKET
HERZKRERAERAK
RAAELEEBRE—F-
A EBRNARRZH
BREENEOREBRFH

fiz

AJ 18 R 18 5 iR

AR B S R AR 2
EorBRELRITAEA
BRERNE ] R iRz
BAZBEHEEZRK TR
f% 18 5t B% 2 2B s A fa] 2015
ERARKNBZEHEE
AR -EBmE AR AR
BEMRERI AR E AL
AMRRELERIFEEARE
tEBBRIFEALRRE
BARRQREE S E M DK
FEEEREHAL A
N BHE BEE R T
BRELERFEABRLE
BRBRRELNEREES
[G] 7 1% B 1% 7] 42 f% (8 50 A%
1.60787C ' M _EFTE EEHE
KRB Z KB

RN-ZEBE_ZTF=F=+—
H - 3,070,0000% & i@ A%
AR AR &R (5 2 E
HEEEa(ZE—hNEF:
3,070,000R%) ( BBz
25(b)) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised

(BIHFZEHERE TRIAAREZS)

27 EXR-HERRE (&)

() B=A& (&)
(iii) PR & F K i R 2R R 1

share options at the end of the reporting RITEEIREZ K
period
2020 2019
t . 33 —E-NF
Number Number
A #H
Exercise price ‘000 ‘000
Exercise period T fTEE F&r Fi7
Share options: R
28 May 2013 to “E-ZERA-TNHE
27 May 2019 “T-hFRAZ-TLH HK$1.73% T - 39,055
30 May 2013 to “T-=FfAA=1AHE
29 May 2019 ZE-NFRAZTNH HK$1.76/8 T - 1,150
27 September 2017t0c Z—E—+HFAA=-F++tHZ
26 September 2019 ZE-NAEAAZTRH HK$0.3278 1T - 33,000
- 73,205

Each share option entitles the holder to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company. Further details of these share
options are set out in Note 25(a) to the
financial statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the consideration
paid for shares held under the Share Award
Scheme.

BHERER TEBEAR
BEBARNA 2 —RERBA-
ZEBREZE—TFHB
B M ISR R M E25(@a) ©

(d) REZMERRARZR

(i)

(i)

R G &EE
o aERMERE B R
ZE—NN\—FRAEFEL0

fREZE ©

RIER 7 R BIFHRZ
47

TR RIER N ZE
A BN EI M 2K

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii) Capital reserve

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, capital reserve
comprises the following:

the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
directors of the Company, and employees
and service providers of the Group that
has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(s)(ii);

the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000;

the difference between the carrying
amounts and the principal amounts of
the unsecured notes redeemed in 20711
and 2012; and

the difference between the consideration
paid on the acquisition of non-controlling
interests and the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests.

(iv) Contributed surplus

The application of the contributed surplus
account is governed by Section 54 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

27 EXR-FERRE (&)

(d) FEEZ2MERAERE (&)
(iii) BEX#E
RZBE_EFER_FT—AN
F=ZHA=+—H &XF
BEEATEIE:

- BYARAEBEEUR
KEBE 2 EE MRS
RS Z W ARITERE
RERFERHZA
RERG HEBRE
Bt 5E2(s)(ii) 3k A B R
MBI R g5
KR

- ARFRBBER-ZEZ
ZTEHNA-+/\B#E
TZEBEAET
Tl EEHEER
B AR 3 i U BB 2 —
e BT /B A B) 2 B A B
[ mERRRE 2 M2
=%

- RZFE——FKk=F
— —F MO
RRCEAERAS
Mz &

- KBRS
Z BRI AR
FEECHZEZ®R-

(iv) #AZEE
MABBEZERSTAR
E—NN\—FRAEFES4

B -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in Note 2(h).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of other financial
assets held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Notes 2(g) and

2(1)().

(vii) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries were required
to set up certain statutory reserves, which
were non-distributable. The transfers of these
reserves are at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves
can only be utilised for predetermined means
upon approval by the relevant authority.

(viii)Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(w).

(BIHFZEHERE TRIAAREZS)

27 EX - ERRE (&)

(d) REZMEERRAR (&)

(v)

(vi)

WRE M #E
MEEGHRBEERILALAR
EM 20 EERZ -
WRBFRMZ GEE
BRI o

RAERFE
AAERBEESRREH
AREHMMEMEEND
RERFEHFELRIE
M eE2(g) R2(N()E &
ATBREHE -

(vii) S E &

BEASERF HK L
ZHBARZHEBER
MA  ZERNBARIAR
A TAA DR ZEE 7
H-ZERECEBREBS
MBARESEMIBEET
EEREETREHEER
HERBNRELETE R
%o

(viii) (& 5% f# 15

EXFEREERMARKE
LEBUBERREERE
JIEMFELMER =
7 o RE T REM EE2(w) A
G HORERIE -

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes bank and other borrowings), plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash at bank on
hand and short-term investments. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

During the year, the Group’'s strategy was to
maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio to
an acceptable level. In order to improve the Group's
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.

(continued)
(e) Capital management (e) EXER
The Group’s primary objectives when managing AEBEREARFERHERER

SEMFEKLER N AEAE
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B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z T~ % fFr A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX -RERRE (&)
(continued)

(f) Capital management f) EXERE

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 March RZEBEZZFER-T-NF=A

2020 and 31 March 2019 is as follows: =+—8" &“ B®S ,\IE¥T§$
R

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Current liabilities: MEEE -

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 1,465,886 866,401
Non-current liabilities: ERBAE

Bank and other borrowings RITREAMBEER 1,241,517 1,498,000
Total debt ER 4R 2,707,403 2,364,401
Less: cash at bank and on hand B RITRFERE (500,806) (544,690)
Adjusted net debt RARFEE 2,206,597 1,819,711
Adjusted capital BB E R 2,708,718 4,088,225
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio FEFABFEHEEARLLE 81% 45%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are AR REEAKBRRBMTT
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. INFLHEIN 2 B AR EARR o

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BI%REMEBEER AAE
VALUES

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk as AR AR D RS AEERELENY
most of the transactions are denominated in the same RREEHARNERTE  AEETE
currency as the functional currency of the operations HREEAEBER RAEEZESR
in which they relate. Exposure to credit, liquidity and ¥R BRETEEAEE RHEER
interest rate arises in the normal course of the Group’s ﬂT’J—L cAREENEHERERR
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk % /JKE%"E. REMER 2 #En
arising from its equity investment in another entity. &
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk REBFTEAS 2 ZER R &$’§ = A
management policies and practices used by the Group to NEBZERR 2T BERREEBR
manage these risks are described below. BRI F N T -

[

wesgmxsnznin )47
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place, and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with
acceptable credit quality. Management does not
expect any of these financial institutions which fail
to meet their obligations

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 30, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in Note 30.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor rather than the industry in which the debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At the
end of the reporting period, 16% (2019: 9%) and
57% (2019: 49%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest debtor and the five
largest debtors, respectively.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all debtors requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the debtor’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the debtor
as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the debtor operates. Trade receivables
are generally due within 3 months from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from debtors.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

28 MEEAREERAAE(E)

(a)
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B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z T~ % fFr A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BIEMEERAAE (&)

VALUES (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERK (£)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
Trade receivables are mainly due from credit
card centres owned by state-owned financial
institutions in the PRC and tenants operating in
the Group's department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets, and accordingly, the management of
the Group considers the concentration and credit
risks to be low. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:

FEWERS (&)
AEBZBENEETFTERNTE
HEEBE 2R KERR
ZESERE  WERREEEL
H-EWNEREZEAEKPER
EeREEMEEERPOLER
AEEBERS BYHLKE
MK E 2 EE 2 FE At
AEEERERRERREER
SBE BARAKEZBEEER
BIELERITRRATIRAEFEHZ
EEE N KMEERE AR ER
FRRFTE BB E TS E—
FERAAEEBZTRARER-

TERIIAEEERE EEAR
RRERER 2 B EEERY &
H

2020
—BEF
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHEER HBEREE BiERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARM T
Current (not past due) BDER (A6 85 ) 0.5% 10,026 50
Less 3 months past due  EHINHERE =18 A 1.2% 25,219 302
Over 3 months past due  #HIFE:E =18 A 100% 8,932 8,932
44,177 9,284

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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BF 15 3Rk WY &
For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

28 MEEAREERAAE(E)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERKR (&)
Trade receivables (continued) FEWERR (&)
2019
—E-NF

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHES R = REREE EEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARMTFIT
Current (not past due) BUHE (R#HP) 0.5% 29,850 149
Less 3 months past due  BHI B =187 1.2% 11,708 140
Over 3 months past due A HIHEE =18 A 100% 16,947 16,947
58,505 17,236

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Movements in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade receivables during the year are as follows:

BHEREDRIEEE=F28
REBEREREL -ZFLXREHE
th 8 A S R 57 5 58 1 BUR AR
ZROBEARM BRI A R
e M SR IR TR A S B AR AR
LB ER-

FRRKERZEREEERS
ERUNNE

2020 2019

—B-BF _—TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARKTF T

Balance at 1 April KU H—B#&e 17,236 -

Amounts written-off during the year FA#ifi$H 2 F I8 (8,114) -
Impairment losses recognised during AR 2 R EE1E

the year 162 17,236

Balance at 31 March R=A=1+—H#&%% 9,284 17,236

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # £
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following significant changes in the gross
carrying amounts of trade receivables contributed to
the increase in the loss allowance:

—  origination of new trade receivables net of
those settled resulted in an increase in loss
allowance of RMBNil (2019: RMB149,000);

- increase in days past due not exceeding
3 months resulted in an increase in
loss allowance of RMB162,000 (2019:
RMB140,000); and

- a write-off of trade receivables with a
gross carrying amount of RMB27,839,000
(2019: RMBNIl) resulted in a decrease in loss
allowance of RMB8,114,000 (2019: RMBNil).

Credit risk arising from other receivables
from third parties

The Group measures loss allowance for other
receivables at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated based
on the Group’'s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for the short-term investments of their
cash surpluses, where the raising of financings are
centrally managed by the head office of the Group
to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

Bt 3% 8 AR MY A

bt &2 T 5V ERE 1T

(BIHFZEHERE TRIAAREZS)

28 MIBEEAREERAAE (&)

(a)

(b)

FER (&)

W R (&)
RUPRFRRAE L ERESHE
BB BB R N

- ESFERER(HKRE
BT BREBREE
MARKZET(ZZE—H
F: AR#149,0007T) :

- BHTBBE=M@AZXH
#hnE B E R EEE A
R#162,000C (ZZE— A
F: AR¥140,0007T) :
P54

- WHEBLEmEARKE
27,839,000 (= ZE— N
F:AREZ L) 2 BUGR
REREBREERLOAR
#8,114,000c (=& — /1
F:ARBEZTT) o

REFE=F 2 HMERHEE
EZEERRE

AEERBEEN T —EARMRE
EEE B EE MR IR
ZERRE wEeRMEEZR
HEEBEIREAEE ZBHE
EEBBRERMA  UREER
ARBEZRRETHE  RGH
W& B E R RIRR 2 BB
UETTRI S

RBEERR
AEERNENKEERRAERS
ReBupsairEg mEes
SRIAAEE B SR EEAE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #H#ZE T -THF=A=+— ELthr/*
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiIEMBEERAAE (&)

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) ﬁiﬁ]ﬁﬁﬂl‘ﬁ( g)

At 31 March 2020, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB1,924,183,000. The Group has
undertaken and will continue to undertake various
measures in order to further improve its liquidity
position in the short and longer term. Further details
are set out in Note 2(b).

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the

RZE-_TF=A=+—H 'K
SEZRBEEFEAEAREK
1,924,183,0007T ° A~ & E & 7%
R 1% e A R BN 2 TR B DA —
THEERBHERBZAEE
AR o 3 — S FEBEH I A M FE
2(b) °

TREEAEEZNTEESHE
BERRERR BT EHENEBE
)R BERBRTIRES X RMEA
ium% (BREERG O X
BonEFEBA R ARER
&%EﬂﬂiZﬂﬂ— At E 2B
) A Be 7 5= (B °] BE 1 2B SR B K

reporting period) and the earliest dates the Group ZEFHEBEL
can be required to pay.
2020
ZBCE2F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARRERASRY
More than
More than 2 years
Within 1 1yearbut  but less Carrying
yearoron less than than More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 March
R=A
-FRy  BB-F HBBWF =t-H

BREX BORWE BOREFE BBIF gt  ZkEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTn ARBTR ARETT ARETT AREFT ARET:R

Trade and other payables REEKATECRAE

measured at amortised cost 3R H R 1,037,827 - - - 1,037,827 1,037,827
Lease liabilities (Note) MEGRRE( /W&) 28,039 14,683 28,869 33,107 104,698 85,109
Bank and other borrowings TR EMEE 1,615,165 771,402 399,459 252,730 3,038,756 2,707,403

2,681,031 786,085 428,328 285,837 4,181,281 3,830,339

2 5 2 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBHIEH B AIUAN REZ %)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiEMEERANAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Other
lease liabilities include amounts recognised at the
date of transition to HKFRS 16 in respect of leases
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17 and amounts relating to new leases entered
into during the year. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note
2(c).

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELER (&)
2019
“E-NEF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANRERR SR

More than

More than 2 years
Within 1 1 year but but less Carrying
yearoron  less than than  More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 March
R=A
—FRy  BER-F BEMF =t-H
REX BIRME BIRLE BALF aif  <EEE
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETRT

Trade and other payables REHRNATEZEAR

measured at amortised cost 7 RE M ER 1,086,170 - - - 1,086,170 1,086,170
Bank and other borrowings TR EMIEE 1,011,730 362693 1,144,636 320242 2,839,301 2,364,401
2,097,900 362,693 1,144,636 320,242 3,925471 3,450,571
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Hiat: NEBD B IREEAKIEETE W

ARSI ISHRE 2RI 16
5 WHABN -ZE—hEMmA
— BB ARERR R L
AIARIRE S ST ERIE 175D
EAKERENTHEREMNTE
EaE-HMAEAERER
BEERBUISIRELERIFE 16
SE AR ERRIEE SR E
B 7Rn AL =HE 2
EMRELE UNEBBEER
RV CHMAEZ & E - RIEN
FE HBREARYEES R
B 5E2(c) °

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #H#ZE T -THF=A=+— ELthr/*
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiIEMBEERAAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (0 FMEE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from AEBZNERBRFERETR
interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at B E o A B F X RIRE E =X
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group BT BEFEAER D RIFAZIR
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest enEFERREAABENER
rate risk respectively. % o
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FUERER
The following table details the interest rate TRHAIIAEBRGFERBE
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of R EHAR 2 TG -

the reporting period.

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BERA=E ERRF =
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR T ARMTFIT
Fixed rate borrowings: EE R XEE
Other loans HEiER 8.80% 148,951 8.30% 141,000
Bank loans BITER 9.90% 1,230,000 7.40% 553,000
1,378,951 694,000
Variable rate AEMNEEE:

borrowings:

Bank loans IRITE 5.80% 1,328,452 6.20% 1,670,401
Total borrowings EE®E%a 2,707,403 2,364,401
Fixed rate borrowings [& & F|2& F“WH

as a percentage of BB sAD

total borrowings 51% 29%

2 54 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z T~ % fFr A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

28 MIBEEAREERAAE (&)

(o NEmER (&)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2020, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately RMB10,944,000 (2019:
RMB13,797,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate borrowings held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact of which on the Group’s loss
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

(d) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from other financial assets (see Note 18).

The Group’s investments in other financial assets
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The
performance of these equity securities is regularly
monitored.

At 31 March 2020, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% in the relevant stock price with all
other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s other comprehensive income
by RMB 15,504,000 (2019: RMB21,471,000).

(i) BBEEED T

R_E—EF=A=1+—
H EmBHEMAZEHE
ERFEITEZBERT
fth &1 F) & — A% 38 hn 3K OR
A 100E B #5 Rk 4> =5 32
NEE %R A &R B
i Al 49 A R #10,944,000
T(ZE—hF: ARKE
13,797,0007%) °

bl SRR 3 AT TR R R R
THMRERNEBEARALZ
BEBMNERGFRZEEM
EEZE@%%W%@

CHASBERRRER
&%mmﬂz CETRE
AN XBHHMNEREZ
FlFEMMEET MO
ENBE_T-NLF=H
ST HLEFEZHERE
BT

(d) ®EZEEERRE

AEEHBREMCESREEES
ZHDEREFHEK (FKE
18) °

AEEREMEREEZRER
LBBESR BT LT - ZFHES
ERREACETEMER-

R-ZE-_ZTFE=A=+—8"
HETEAREER LR TH
10% " FEFT A A fth Al B B A =R
BITEZ2BRAT AEBZEM
EEREFEN, B AR
15,504,0007C (—=ZF— LF: A
E#21,471,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Equity price risk (continued)

(e)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s other comprehensive income
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock price had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure this
financial instrument held by the Group which
exposes the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that
none of the Group’s other financial assets would be
considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock price, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

(BRIF=EIEH  BRIAAREZS)

28 MEEAREERAAE(E)

(d) ®#mESRR(E)

(e)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

28 MBEAREERAAE(E)

DMREFE (F)

(e)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured () BARBHEZEHEE
at fair value (continued) REME(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREER (&)
e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured e FZHHE:FHAE
using significant unobservable inputs. ANAIE R A BIR
SFEZ AR E.
Fair value Fair value
measurements measurements
as at as at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Fair value at categorised  Fair value at categorised
31 March 2020 into Level 1 31 March 2019 into Level 1
R-g-%% R-Z2-1%
R-E-Z% =ZA=+-H MR-E-A% =A=1+-H
ZA=t-B AREHESNE =A=t-B AREBHELE
ZARE BE-R ZARE BE-4
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL ARETL ARET
Recurring fair value RERDAETE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Other financial assets Lo mEE
- Listed (see Note 18) —Em(Bf:E18) 182,400 182,400 252,600 252,600
(i) Fair value of financial assets and (i) EHFBEAALEIIRZEH

liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair
values at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

BEREBZARE
R-FB_ZER_F—N
F=ZRA=1t—8 X&H
VAR 7 3 8 55 A AN 51 B 22
ERMTAZKRABEEER
REIESEAEH-
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

29 COMMITMENTS 29 EiE

(a) Capital commitments (a)

At 31 March 2020, the outstanding capital
commitments of the Group not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements were as follows:

BAREE
R-E_ZEF=A=1+—H" K&
SERELRETIERRPEEZ

RETARESEMT
2020 2019
—g-%F —T-AnF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FRT ARETT

Commitments in respect of purchase EEE Y%« M= M RIENU K
of property, plant and equipment & & ¥ 3 2 &2
and investment properties

— Contracted for — B4

At 31 March 2020, capital commitments in respect
of purchase of property, plant and equipment
and investment properties are for leasehold
improvements to be installed in the Group's
department store and supermarket operations and
the remaining payments for the acquisitions of
properties.

(b) At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum (b)
lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases were payable as follows:

414,601 416,490

R-TE-_THE=A=+—-8F
BAREVE BERREUREK
B2 BERFEETEEN AL
ErzEERSMNBRTHERR
HIHAERERWEMEZHT
NEER-

R=—B-NRF=A=+—8"
BEFTIBE2KEHEEH
BREMS2REESNREEN
T:

Properties

LUES
RMB’000
ARETTT

Within 1 year —F R
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFR
After 5 years hFi&
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

29 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases were payable as follows:
(continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances
at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating
to these leases (see Note 2(c)). From 1 April 2019
onwards, future lease payments are recognised as
lease liabilities in the statement of financial position
in accordance with the policies set out in Note 2(c).

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has
issued the following guarantees:

(a)

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of an interest-bearing bank loan drawn
by an independent third party in 2005. The loan
will mature in July 2020. In September 2010,
Ginwa Investments provided a counter-guarantee
to indemnify Ginwa Bell Tower on any losses
incurred arising from the above guarantee. As of
31 March 2020, the outstanding loan balance is
RMB60,680,000 (2019: RMB60,680,000).

29 AIE(E)

(b) A=ZE—hFE=A=+—8"
BEFATHE2CEHEER
BENSzREESENHEEDN
T:(£)
RNEBABERERSETEL
BB PEAKEREZSZA
BEREZEE ZMEZAMA -
REBEBFERLETBWEE R
EREBYIERELERE 1657 -
BEWT A AEBAER-Z
— LY A — B R HB 45 fR LA R
REZSHEEENHEERRE
(RM#20) BT —AEM
A— B BB E2E K
B RRBENRET AT
NERBHEGE-

30 HAEE
RIMEMF REBD LU TE
1R :

(a) LEEER —ZBBILE=ZFR
—EERFRNZABETE
KR 2 R - ZEETHER
—ECEFL AR -RN T —
TFNLA EREERETE
EIZR M —IARER  ARER
FRUERTE A ZEAEK &
E-_E-_THF=A=+—H"
MAEEZERGRBEAARE
60,680,000 (= ZF — NF: A
K #60,680,0007T ) °

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #H#ZE T -THF=A=+— ELthr/*
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 30 HREE(F)

(b) A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in b) SEEEERSAERER_ZZ
respect of a payable for acquisition of a property hENAKE-—BEYEZERN
by Ginwa Investments in August 2005. Ginwa mEMRHER 2ERER
Investments has defaulted repayment of the above ?’_KE%LL}‘EH RIH B EC
payable. As of 31 March 2020, the outstanding ZE_EF=A=+—H ®HRK
balance of the payable is RMB9,500,000 (2019: BEZENZTEBERBAARK
RMB9,500,000). 9,500,0007T (=E—NF: AR

#9,500,0007T) °

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors RBERR ARRESERRB/ETRK
of the Company do not consider it is probable that a EI%E@*E?J%E@L@%%%%WK%
claim will be made against the Group under any of the ERERE - AEERBEHARZE
above guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group BHERE N 2R Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂé%&
at the end of the reporting period under the guarantees ZHBITEFRREEAR70,180,000
issued is the outstanding amount of the bank loans and T (ZZE—N%F: AR%670,180,000
liability of RMB70,180,000 (2019: RMB670,180,000) plus JL) NEFTFI B ©
accrued interest.
31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXBEALIRS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in Mz S Bk B BB 00 PR B 2 45
these financial statements, the Group entered into the BRIN REBTRETATEREEA
following material related party transactions. TR
(a) Transactions with equity shareholders and () EAAFRRERBEEHBEAL
their affiliates, and a director of the Company UR—BEFETZRS
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FRT ARETT

Net decrease in advances granted to 7 [ B8sE A T8 R A58

related parties (see Note (i) (B K1aE0)) (3,235) (30,036)
Guarantees provided by a director ~RIREEREAA *7 HEER

of the Company for the Group’s REERITERREHE

bank loans at the end of the BER

reporting year 1,252,000 918,000
Further details on the guarantees the Group BRAANEE ABEEATIREER
provided for related parties are set out in Note 30. ZHE—FFHBENM 30
Note: it &t
(i)  The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing () ZBRAEER RERTE

and have no fixed terms of repayment. & 7E & AR o

2 60 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXBAEALRE (&)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) TEEEBAESHMH
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEEBABZHM (BIENT
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors STEBEE N TARARIEE 2K
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid BRMFFMEEEN TET &
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows: SEFMER ZFE)MT

2020 2019
—EZEF —_ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits Hie s EBEREMEER

in kind 13,785 17,683
Retirement scheme contributions  R{REF IR 608 819
14,393 18,502
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see FMaETATE IRA] R
Note 6(b)). (R HtzE6(b)) °
(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to () LTRABRBAREBERS 2E
connected transactions A%
None of the related party transactions disclosed in LB 3 1()FT I B 2 B E A
Note 31(a) above constitute continuing connected TR SBMEEK ETRAFE14A
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the EMRECAER S NIFERE
Listing Rules. X5 e
o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #H#ZE T -THF=A=+— ELthr/*
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)
32 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF 32 AREIEEMBARRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

2020 2019
—E_EHF =—NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aF AR¥TFT ARBF T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N NIEINGIP - T 2,609,413 2,460,689
2,609,413 2,460,689
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables b fE U 3R 33,252 31,862
Cash at bank and on hand RITHEGFNFERS 105 123
33,357 31,985
Current liabilities REBEE
Other borrowings HEER 17,633 -
Interest payable JE -t 71| B 305 =
Other payables Emﬁ‘éﬁ%‘k 199,994 216,277
217,932 216,277
Net current liabilities REBEEEHE (184,575) (184,292)
Non-current liabilities 'a'quEbﬁF
Other borrowings HibfgE % 517 -
517 =
NET ASSETS EESH 2,424,321 2,276,397
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R #E 27
Share capital f& 7 199,369 199,369
Reserves B 2,224,952 2,077,028
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 2,424,321 2,276,397

Zw%%ABA—?—?i/\H +j—LEI
HEAE R A T

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 29 June 2020.

Huang Shunxu Qin Chuan
EIR & eI
Chairman Director
*E EE

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z—-F_-_FTF=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(a) Decrease in carrying value of assets
measured at fair value

Due to the recent uncertainties surrounding the
stock markets in the PRC, the Group's investments
in Ginwa Enterprise A-Shares (see Note 18) have
experienced a decrease in value by approximately
18% since the end of the reporting period.

(b) Change in substantial shareholder

On 5 June 2020, all the conditions precedent in
the sale and purchase agreement (“SPA") which
was entered into among Maritime Century Limited,
Ginwa Investments, Mr. Wu Yijian, Xi‘an Quijiang
Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. and
Quijiang Investment on 1 December 2019 have
been satisfied or waived, and the sale and purchase
of the shares under the SPA was completed (the
“Completion”). Following the Completion, Qujiang
Investment has become the substantial shareholder
of the Company, holding 29.24% of the total
number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company at 31
March 2020 to be Maritime Century Limited and Ginwa
Investments, respectively. Neither of these companies
produces financial statements available for public use.

(BIHFZEHERE TRIAAREZS)

33 MEBPRFAREE

(a)

(b)

BRAREFEBZEEZIREE
"

ML HIR B 2 N EE T
BREHARE AEEHSED
AR ZIRE (RHE18) 2B
BETFE#18% °

FTERRZEE
R—_ZE_ZFTF,XAAAB -

Maritime Century Limited * & 7

BE R—BEE -FALTHITX
EEemZER(SEE)ERAFK
HMIREZENR - T—h&E+—
A—BEY2EEHZE(EE
WiEl) 2B R RIGHEE EE
KEEHE MEBHZETZ
HEBROHZEEE K ([
K1) o SERTE  BTIRE B KA
ARRZEERRE FHEARQF
BEEBITEBREE229.24% °

3 EERBRARERAT

RARAEZRR ARAIN_ZT_F
FZA=T—RAZEEREKERA
A7 Bl &Maritime Century Limited &
TERE - ZFERARALERAEAHER

RER 2|

RS EEEERERD T
—E-hEFFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #EZ=—FT-_TF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFSBHE8 BRAIAAREZ )

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2020 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

35

EEAEMARARBE-Z-F
F=ZA=+t—BLEFEERZ
M EAIRRBZEBERE

BETEZSZUWBHRERAY FES
AR ASERMEZERNARBE_F
—EF-A=tT—HIEFELEMAH
R F T 5 RR IR M IS RT s 2
Al -ZFERBE T EEAEE
HEE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT B2 &BHRN
S HBER

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business

BB mEEREI KRB [EHF2EE]

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material

BB ENBIREEB G RAUESR BT [EAZEE

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

BRMBREEMNFENTR [RREA]

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/20

1 January 2020
—T_TF—-H—H
1 January 2020
—E-_FEF—H—H
1 January 2021
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AREETENEZFERRBRER
HHEBAMERNEE - 298 K
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